10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE-POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
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Agreement Form for Construction of RO Well #4, ASR #2, and Transmission
Mains Construction Contract Approval

. FY 2024 Audit Presentation

FY 2024 Audit Management Letter

FY 2024 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

First Quarter FY’25 Management Report

General Manager’s Monthly Report

SCIIP and ARPA Projects Summary

Press Release: “Hilton Head PSD earns EPA WaterSense Excellence Award”

Charts, Graphs and Water Quality Report






HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE - POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052
www.hhpsd.com

AGENDA
Hilton Head Public Service District Commission
9 am.
October 23, 2024
PSD Community Room
21 Oak Park Drive, Hilton Head Island, SC 29926
I.  Call to Order & Freedom of Information Act Announcement
II.  Pledge of Allegiance
HI.  Roll Call of Commissioners
IV.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
V.  Adoption of Draft Minutes of the September 18, 2024, Regular Meeting
VI.  General Obligation Debt Private Placement Bond Approval (Action)
VII.  S.C. Infrastructure Investment and American Rescue Plan Act Projects
A. RO Well #4, ASR Well #2, & Associated Mains Contract (Action)
VIII.  FY 24 Audited Financial Statements Adoption (Action)
IX. FY 25 1st Quarter Management Report
X.  General Manager’s Monthly Report

XI.  Adjournment

*Public Comment will be taken before Commission vote on any action item.
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IV.

HILTON HEAD NO.1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT

21 OAK PARK DRIVE - POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

MINUTES

COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 18, 2024

The meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Jerry Cutrer at 8:00 a.m.

Those in attendance were:

Mr. Frank Turano (via Zoom)
Mr. Jerry Cutrer

Mr. Stuart Bell

Mrs. Patti Soltys

Mr. Andy Paterno

Mr. Ibrahim Abdul-Malik
Mr. Michael Marks

Present by request:

Mr. Pete Nardi

Mr. Bill Davis

Ms. Amy Graybill

Mr. Lawrence Flynn (via Zoom)
Mrs. Amy Vitner

Ms. Connie Whitehead

Visitors

None

Pledge of Allegiance

Chair

Vice Chair
Treasurer
Secretary
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner

General Manager

Operations Manager

Finance Manager

Pope Flynn

First Tryon Advisors
Commission Recording Secretary

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Andy Paterno.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

None



VL

VIL

Adoption of Draft Minutes of the August 28, 2024, Commission Meeting

Key Discussion Points

e M. Cutrer stated that his motion in Section VII-C should be expanded to include
“with a comparison of bank placement and public offering.”

Action

e Mr. Bell moved to adopt the minutes of the August 28, 2024, meeting as
amended. Mr. Marks seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

General Obligation Debt Private Placement Bids

Key Discussion Points

e Mrs. Amy Vitner of First Tryon Advisors was present to discuss the bond option
comparison.

e While TD Banks has the most desirable terms, there is a requirement that the PSD
keep $3 million dollars on deposit. While PSD legal counsel does not feel the
requirement is legally enforceable, staff suggested negotiating a compromise to
keep the bond proceeds on deposit rather than $3 million.

Action

e Mrs. Soltys moved to authorize staff to accept the TD Bank proposal contingent
on the successful negotiation of the $3 million deposit requirement. If
negotiations are not successful, staff is authorized to award the bid to Huntington
Public Capital at the terms proposed. Mr. Bell seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

Draft Drought Management Plan and Drought Response Regulation Update

Key Discussion Points

e Under the South Carolina Drought Response Act, the PSD is required to have a
Drought Management Plan and Drought Response Regulation. The PSD’s current
plan was last updated in 2003.

e The S.C. Climatology Office, the primary state agency tasked with coordinating
drought response, has asked all public water utilities in the state to update their
drought plan and regulation. A draft update was presented for board
consideration,

Action
e Mr. Bell moved to adopt the draft revisions to the PSD’s Drought Management

Plan and Drought Response Regulation as presented. Mr. Abdul-Malik seconded.
The motion passed unanimously.



VIIIL.

IX.

XL

U.S. 278 Corridor Project Update

Key Discussion Points

Mr. Nardi presented an update on the U.S. 278 Corridor Project.

Hilton Head PSD and the Town of Hilton Head had to take action recently to
prevent SCDOT plans to conduct barge-based geotech bores for design purposes
related to the U.S. 278 Corridor Project on top of the subaqueous portions of the
drinking water transmission pipeline from the mainland to Hilton Head Island, as
the boring presents an extreme risk to this critical infrastructure and public health
and safety.

SCDOT has not formally declared the corridor project, which would establish the
basis to allow for the relocation of the pipeline.

No board action is needed at this time.

General Manager’s Monthly Report

Key Discussion Points

Mr. Nardi presented the GM monthly report. A copy is included in the agenda
packet.

Two more PFAS class actions lawsuits have been filed, and staff recommends the
PSD opt-out.

Action

Mr. Bell moved to authorize the general manager to opt-out of any PFAS class
action lawsuits on an as-needed basis. Mr. Abdul-Malik seconded. The motion
passed unanimously.

New Business

None

Executive Session

Key Discussion Points

The executive session item pertaining to the purchased water pipeline was
removed from the agenda.

Action

Mr. Bell moved to enter into executive session for the purpose of discussing
purchased water agreements. Mrs. Soltys seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

Executive session began at 10:02 a.m.



XII. Reconvene Regular Session

Action
e Regular session reconvened at 10:13 a.m.
e No action was taken as a result of executive session.

XIII. Adjournment

Action

e Mr. Marks moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Abdul-Malik seconded. The
meeting adjourned at 10:14 a.m.
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HiltonHead

PSD

e
~taglie

(843) 681-5525

Hhpsd.com
To: All Commissioners
From: Pete Nardi, General Manager
Re: General Obligation Debt Private Placement Bond Approval

October 16, 2024

Dear Commissioners:

We are prepared to close on our General Obligation Debt Private Placement Bond obtained for the purpose of covering
the local match of our S.C. Improvement Program and American Rescue Plan Act projects, along with remaining funds to
be used toward our local match for a pending S.C. Rural Infrastructure Authority grant project to replace the screw
pumps in our Recycled Water Plant.

Attached is the bond term sheet and final Sources & Uses of Funds Analysis from our financial advisor.

Staff is need of the Commission authorizing the Chair and Secretary of the Commission, along with the General
Manager, to execute the bond closing documents. The bond closing date is set for Nov. 5.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.

Best regards,

QL

Pete Nardi

General Manager
Hilton Head PSD
(843) 305-0638
pnardi@hhpsd.com




TD Public Finance LLC

America’s Most Convenient Bank® 104 South Main Street

Greenville, SC 29601

Tel: 864-421-1344 (o)
864-554-4923 (c)

Email: Kelly.Carson@td.com

September 19, 2024

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina
21 Oak Park Dr.,
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 29926

RE: Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina $20,400,000 Tax Exempt Non-Bank Qualified
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B

Ladies and Gentlemen,

In response to the Request for Proposal for the Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina (the "District"
or "Borrower") General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B (the "Bond"), TD Public Finance LLC (the "Purchaser") is
pleased to submit the following proposal.

The structure of the proposed Credit Accommodation is outlined in the attached term sheet (Exhibit A) which provides
a statement of suggested terms, but under no circumstance shall such statement be construed as a complete
summarization of terms necessary for consummation of the proposed Credit Accommodation. PLEASE NOTE THIS
PROPOSAL IS SUBJECT TO FORMAL CREDIT REVIEW AND UNDERWRITING IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PURCHASER’S INTERNAL POLICY AND NOTHING HEREIN SHALL CONSTITUTE A BINDING
COMMITMENT TO LEND. Further, we expressly advise you that TD Public Finance LLC has not approved the
Credit Accommodation. The Purchaser shall not be liable to the District or any other person for any losses, damages
or consequential damages which may result from the District’s reliance upon this proposal letter, the proposed Credit
Accommodation, the proposed term sheet or any transaction contemplated hereby.

The Purchaser’s Proposal is subject to acceptance by the District prior to 3:00 p.m. on September 19, 2024 and is
contingent upon a Loan Closing with mutually acceptable documents between the District and Purchaser on October
23, 2024, unless otherwise agreed between the Parties.

This letter, including the terms contained within the proposed Credit Accommodation, is delivered to you on the
condition that its existence and its contents will not be disclosed without our prior written approval, except (i) as may
be required to be disclosed in any legal proceeding or (ii) as may otherwise be required by law and on a confidential
and “need to know” basis, to your directors, officers, employees, advisors and agents. :

We appreciate this opportunity to provide this Proposal. We look forward to working with you to successfully
complete this transaction. My contact information is noted above.

Very truly yours,
TD Public Finance LLC

By Ksny Conorom

Kelly Carson
Vice President
Market Leader

PPAB 11496474v2



ACCEPTED on this

(4

day of September, 2024:

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, SC

R ler %

Name: 72t2_ N ar 5( (

Titley_Gm8val M‘W‘j”’

Please indicate rate selection with an "x" below:

15yr 15yr 20 yr
Amort Amort Amort
w/Deposits
Option A
Option B
Option C X
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Borrower:

Bond Purchaser:

Credit Facility:

Purpose:

Repayment:

Closing Date:

Maturity:

PPAB 11496474v2

Summary of Terms and Conditions
For Discussion Purposes Only
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina
SEPTEMBER 17, 2024

Direct Purchase Option

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina (the "District" or "Borrower" or
"Issuer")

TD Public Finance LLC (the "Purchaser") (A wholly owned subsidiary of TD Bank, N.A.)

Direct Purchase of $20,400,000 Tax-Exempt Non-Bank Qualified General Obligation Bond,
Series 2024B (the "Bond")

The Bond will be used to finance (i) improvements and/or repairs to the wastewater system, (ii)
improvements and/or repairs to the waterworks system, (iii) design and engineering costs related
to the U.S. Highway 278 bridge relocation project, (iv) other general improvements, repairs and
expansion to the District's water and sewer system and (v) pay the Costs of Issuance of the Bond.

Interest on the Bond will be paid semi-annually (May 1 and November 1), commencing on May
1, 2025 based upon a 30/360 day basis.

Principal on the Bond will be paid annually each May 1, commencing on May 1, 2028 in
accordance with one of the following Amortization Schedules:

Maturity 15-Year 20-Year
5/1/2028 $ 826,000 $ 316,000

5/1/2029 1,445,000 914,000
6/1/2030 1,504,000 952,000
6/1/2031 1,566,000 990,000

5/1/2032 1,630,000 1,031,000
5/1/2033 1,696,000 1,073,000
5/1/2034 1,765,000 1,117,000
5/1/2035 1,837,000 1,162,000
5/1/2036 1,912,000 1,210,000
6/1/2037 1,991,000 1,259,000
5/1/2038 2,072,000 1,310,000
6/1/2039 2,156,000 1,364,000

6/1/2040 - 1,420,000
5/1/2041 . 1,477,000
5/1/2042 - 1,538,000
6/1/2043 . 1,601,000
5/1/2044 1,666,000

Total $ 20,400,000 $ 20,400,000

October 23, 2024

15 yr. Amortization: May 1, 2039
20 yr. Amortization: May 1, 2044



Interest Rate:

Tax-Exempt Fixed Rate:

PPAB 11496474v2

Option A (Make Whole) 335% 3:27% 3.38%
Option B (Partial Term Par Call) | 3-47% 339% 3:52%
Option C (2% through 5/1/27) | 3-58% 3:50% 3.65%

I The 15 year amortization interest rate options with deposits is if the District maintains a
minimum of $3,000,000 in deposits with TD Bank.

2The 20 year amortization interest rate options require the District to maintain a minimum of
$3,000,000 in deposits with TD Bank during the term of the Bond,

These deposits would not be subject to yield restriction (i.e. yield restriction: could not bear
interest at a rate higher than the Bond). The deposit monies shall not be pledged as security for
the Bond, and TD Bank will expressly waive any offset right it might have to such funds. The
District shall be authorized to withdraw such funds at any time for any purpose. In the event that
the deposit requirement is not met for any reason, an event of default on the Bond will not have
occurred; however, TD Bank may assess a payment of not greater than 1% per annum of such
deficiency against the District. This payment would be subject to annual appropriation by the
District and if not appropriated by the District, TD Bank would have no recourse against the
District.

The deposits shall be maintained in a traditional banking account option such as a money market,
CD, etc. as selected by the District and will be collected in accordance with SC law. An example
of rates/products are shown below with CD rates as of 9/19/24, Rates are subject to change.

CDs (collateralized)

See corresponding prepayment options for each interest rate option in the section below.

4



Prepayment:

The interest rates quoted are based on the Bond being a non-bank qualified tax-exempt obligation.

The Bank will hold the above selected interest rate through the Closing Date if notified of award
no later than 3:00 p.m. on September 19, 2024 and final par amount and rate structure are in
substantially final form. If notified of award after 3:00 p.m. on September 19, 2024, the rates are
subject to change based on current market conditions. Any movement in the interest rates will be
communicated to Borrower and/or its Financial Advisor prior to locking the interest rate. There
will be no Rate Lock Agreement other than correspondence (email or otherwise) between Bank
and authorized party of Borrower.

Option A) Make-Whole: The District may select that either the Bond will not be subject to
redemption, or the Bond may be prepaid in whole or in part upon thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the Bank. Any partial prepayment of the Bond shall be applied in inverse order of
scheduled maturities. In the event of any prepayment of the Bond, whether by voluntary
prepayment, acceleration or otherwise, the Borrower shall, at the option of the Bank pay the
greater of (i) 1% of the principal balance being prepaid plus accrued interest, or (ii) a "Break
Funding Fee" in an amount computed as follows:

The "Current Rate" shall be subtracted from the "Original Rate". If the result is zero or a negative
number, there is no Break Funding Fee. If the result is a positive number, then the resulting
percentage shall be multiplied by the amount being prepaid times the number of days in the
"Remaining Term" divided by 360. Break Funding Fee =[Amount Being Prepaid x (Original Rate
- Current Rate) x number of days in the Remaining Term/360 days] plus accrued interest.

The Break Funding Fee shall be calculated by the Bank in accordance with its customary practices
and the Bank's calculation shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

"Remaining Term" as used herein shall mean the shorter of (i) the remaining term of the Bond, or
(ii) the remaining term of the then current fixed interest rate period.

"Current Rate" means the Treasury Constant Maturities Rate effective on the date of the
calculation.

"Original Rate" means the Treasury Constant Maturities Rate effective on the day the Bank
received the District's proposal acceptance.

"Federal Reserve Banking Day" means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday that is neither a
legal holiday nor a day on which Federal Reserve is authorized or required by law, regulation or
executive order to close.

"Treasury Constant Maturities Rate" as used herein shall mean the bond equivalent yield for
United States Treasury securities (bills on a discounted basis shall be converted to bond equivalent
yield) with the maturity closest to the Remaining Term as published on the Federal Reserve Board
website (currently: federalreserve.gov/releases/h15/), or another recognized electronic source,
two (2) “Federal Reserve Banking Days” prior to the determination date. :

Option B) Partial Term Par Call: The Note may be prepaid at any time in whole or in part upon
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Purchaser at a price of the amount of principal to be
prepaid plus accrued interest thereon beginning 5/1/32. In the event of prepayment before the call
date, the Make Whole Prepayment as outlined in Option A applies prior to 5/1/32.

Option C) Par Call with 2% first 3 years: The Bond may be prepaid in whole or in part at any
time upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Bank. Any partial prepayment of the Bond
shall be applied in inverse order of scheduled maturities. Any amount prepaid prior to 5/1/27 shall
be subject to a 2% prepayment penalty.

Origination I'ee:  $10,000

PPAB 11496474v2




Security:

Late Charges:

Financial
Covenants:

Financial
Reporting:

Representations

And Warranties:

Other
Covenants:

Events

of Default:

Default Rate:

Other
Conditions:

PPAB 11496474v2

The Bond will be secured by an irrevocable pledge of the full faith, credit and taxing power of the
District,

If any payment due the Purchaser is more than fifteen (15) days overdue, a late charge of six
percent (6%) of the overdue payment shall be assessed.

All standard covenants and provisions shall be applicable to the Bond, as outlined in the Bond
Resolution:

The Credit Facility shall include the following reporting requirements:

1. Within 270 days of each fiscal year end, the Borrower shall provide an Annual Audited
Financial Statements of the Borrower, prepared on a consolidated basis by a CPA acceptable
to the Purchaser. The Audited Financial Statements shall be accompanied by a Certificate of
Compliance signed by an authorized officer of the Borrower confirming compliance with the
terms of the Credit Facility.

2. Annual Budget due within 30 days of approval.

3. Any additional information as the Purchaser may reasonably request.

The Credit Facility shall include representations and warranties appropriate for facilities of this
type, size, and purpose and generally consistent with the Borrower's existing facilities, including,
but not limited to, the following: no material adverse change, true and accurate financial
statements, no material litigation, requisite insurance, enforceability, no events of default,
government consents, solvency, compliance with tax law and maintenance of tax-exempt status,
compliance with environmental law and full disclosure of environmental matters.

In addition to the terms and conditions outlined herein, the Credit Facility will contain affirmative
and negative covenants appropriate for a borrower and a financing of this type and generally
consistent with the Borrower's existing credit, liquidity and direct purchase facilities and such
covenants shall include, no material amendments to, or terminations or substitutions to, the
transaction documents.

The Credit Facility shall include, but will not be limited to, the following Events of Default and
as further outline in the Resolution:

1. Breach of representations and warranties.

2. Violation of any covenants

3. Bankruptey or insolvency

4. Payment default

Notwithstanding the forgoing, failure to maintain any deposits provided herein shall not be
considered an Event of Default for any reason.

The “default rate of interest” charged to the extent permitted by law shall be six (6) percentage
points in excess of the Prime Rate as quoted in the Wall Street Journal. Prime Rate shall have a
floor of 3%

Closing of each of the Purchaser’s Credit Facility shall be contingent on the following conditions:

1. Final credit approval of the Purchaser.

6



No Advisory or
Fiduciary Role:

Fees and
Expenses:

Governing Law:

Waiver of Jury
Trial:

Confidentiality:

Patriot Act
Notice:

2. Documents will include taxability language (including retroactive interest, penalties and other

fees and costs associated therewith) allowing for a higher taxable rate should the IRS deem the

Bond to be a taxable facility solely due to events associated with action or inaction of Borrower.

No material contingent obligations other than those disclosed to the Purchaser prior to approval.

No material threatened or pending litigation.

Delivery of properly executed opinions of counsel (including Bond counsel and Borrower's

counsel) satisfactory to the Purchaser and its counsel.

6. Execution of documentation in form and substance satisfactory to the Purchaser and its
counsel.

7. Any other conditions the Purchaser may reasonably require.

©naw

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the transaction contemplated by this Term Sheet
is an arm’s length, commercial transaction between the Borrower and Purchaser in which
Purchaser is acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor
or fiduciary to the Botrower; (ii) the Purchaser has not assumed any advisory or fiduciary
responsibility to the Borrower with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby and the
discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Purchaser
has provided other services or is cutrently providing other services to the Borrower on other
matters); (iii) the only obligations the Purchaser has to the Borrower with respect to the transaction
contemplated hereby expressly are set forth in this Term Sheet; and (iv) the Borrower has
consulted its own legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent
it has deemed appropriate,

The Borrower shall pay to the Purchaser on demand any and all costs and expenses (including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements, court costs, litigation and other
expenses) incurred or paid by the Purchaser in connection with the loan. The District’s bond
counsel will provide documentation associated with this transaction. Documentation will be
subject to the review and approval of the Purchaser and the Purchaser’s counsel. The District
agrees to pay all legal fees and expenses of the Purchaser associated with the review and closing
of this transaction in an amount not to exceed $10,500. Legal counsel engaged to represent the
Bank in review of the bond documents is expected to be Patker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP.

State of South Carolina

To the extent permitted by law, the Borrower shall waive its right to a trial by jury.

These Summary of Terms and Conditions contain confidential and proprietary structuring and
pricing information. Except for disclosure on a confidential basis to your accountants, attorneys
and other professional advisors retained by you in connection with the Bonds or as may be
required by law, the contents of this proposal may not be disclosed in whole or in part to any other
person or entity without our prior written consent, provided that nothing herein shall restrict
disclosure of information relating to the tax structure or tax treatment of the proposed Bonds.

The Purchaser is subject to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L. 107-56)
(signed into law October 26, 2001)) (the "Act") and hereby notifies the Borrower that pursuant to
the requirements of the Act, it is required to obtain, verify and record information that identifies
the Borrower, which information includes the name and address of the Borrower and other
information that will allow the Purchaser to identify the Borrower in accordance with the Act.

These Summary of Terins and Conditions are provided for discussion purposes only, are not binding on any party,
and therefore, do not constitute a commitment o lend by the Purchaser. The Summary of Terms and Conditions are
intended to be merely a summary of the provisions by which the Purchaser has contemplated the proposed financing,
and, therefore, do not include all of the terms and conditions that would be included in definitive documentation

PPAB 11496474v2
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required by the Purchaser 1o execute the proposed transaction. Consequently, the terms proposed herein are provided
Jor the purpose of discussion for a period of 30 days following the date of this letter, unless otherwise extended in
writing by the Purchaser. Any extension of credit is subject to final credit approval through the Purchaser's normal
approval process. If credit is offered in the future, the required terms and conditions will be made inwriting and may
differ subsiantially from those contained in this proposal.

PPAB 11496474v2




Sep 30,2024 3:28 pm Prepared by First Tryon Advisors

Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Seties 2024B
Proposed Final Numbers

Dated Date 11/05/2024
Delivery Date 11/05/2024
Sources:
Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 20,400,000.00
20,400,000.00
Uses:
Project Fund Deposits:
Project Fund 20,271,500.00
Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 128,500.00
20,400,000.00
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Page 2

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B

Proposed Final Numbers

Dated Date

Delivery Date
First Coupon
Last Maturity

Arbitrage Yield

True Interest Cost (TIC)
Net Interest Cost (NIC)
All-InTIC

Average Coupon

Average Life (years)
Weighted Average Maturity (years)
Duration of Issue (years)

Par Amount

Bond Proceeds

Total Interest

Net Interest

Total Debt Sewice

Maximum Annual Debt Senice
Average Annual Debt Service

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
Average Takedown
Other Fee

Total Underwriter's Discount

Bid Price

11/05/2024
11/05/2024
05/01/2025
05/01/2044

3.650036%
3.650036%
3.650000%
3.714735%
3.650000%

12,604
12.604
9.955

20,400,000.00
20,400,000.00
9,385,074.67
9,385,074.67
29,785,074.67
1,655,249.75
1,528,310.56

100.000000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price  Coupon Life change
Bond Component 20,400,000.00 100.000 3.650% 12.604 19,882.40
20,400,000.00 12.604 19,882.40
All-In Arbitrage
TiC TiIC Yield
ParValue 20,400,000.00 20,400,000.00 20,400,000.00
+ Accrued Interest
+ Premium (Discount)
- Underwriter's Discount
- Cost of Issuance Expense (128,500.00)
- Other Amounts
Target Value 20,400,000.00 20,271,500.00 20,400,000.00
Target Date 11/05/2024 11/05/2024 11/05/2024
Yield 3.650036% 3.714735% 3.650036%

v
¥
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BOND PRICING

Hilton Head Public Sewvice Disttict

General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B

Proposed Final Numbers

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price
Bond Component:
05/01/2028 343,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2029 940,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2030 975,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2031 1,011,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2032 1,049,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2033 1,088,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2034 1,128,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2035 1,170,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2036 1,214,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2037 1,259,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2038 1,305,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2039 1,354,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2040 1,404,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2041 1,457,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
05/01/2042 1,511,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2043 1,567,000 3.650% 3.650% 100.000
05/01/2044 1,625,000 3.650%  3.650% 100.000
20,400,000

Dated Date 11/05/2024

Delivery Date 11/05/2024

First Coupon 05/01/2025

Par Amount 20,400,000.00

Original Issue Discount

Production 20,400,000.00  100.000000%

Underwriter's Discount

Purchase Price 20,400,000.00 100.000000%

Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 20,400,000.00
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BOND DEBT SERVICE

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B
Proposed Final Numbers

Dated Date 11/05/2024
Delivery Date 11/05/2024
Period

Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
12/31/2025 736,326.67 736,326.67
12/31/2026 744,600.00 744,600.00
12/31/2027 744,600.00 744,600.00
12/31/2028 343,000 3.650% 738,340.25 1,081,340.25
12/31/2029 940,000 3.650% 714,925.50 1,654,925.50
12/31/2030 975,000 3.650% 679,976.75 1,654,976.75
12/31/2031 1,011,000 3.650% 643,732.25 1,654,732.25
12/31/2032 1,049,000 3.650% 606,137.25 1,655,137.25
12/31/2033 1,088,000 3.650% 567,137.00 1,655,137.00
12/31/2034 1,128,000 3.650% 526,695.00 1,654,695.00
12/31/2035 1,170,000 3.650% 484,756.50 1,654,756.50
12/31/2036 1,214,000 3.650% 441,248.50 1,655,248.50
12/31/2037 1,259,000 3.650% 396,116.25 1,655,116.25
12/31/2038 1,305,000 3.650% 349,323.25 1,654,323.25
12/31/2039 1,354,000 3.650% 300,796.50 1,654,796.50
12/31/2040 1,404,000 3.650% 250,463.00 1,654,463.00
12/31/2041 1,457,000 3.650% 198,249.75 1,655,249.75
12/31/2042 1,511,000 3.650% 144,083.75 1,655,083.75
12/31/2043 1,567,000 3.650% 87,910.25 1,654,910.25
12/31/2044 1,625,000 3.650% 29,656.25 1,654,656.25
20,400,000 9,385,074.67 29,785,074.67

Y,
X
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BOND DEBT SERVICE

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B

Proposed Final Numbers

Dated Date 11/05/2024
Delivery Date 11/05/2024

Period Annual

Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
05/01/2025 364,026.67 364,026.67
11/01/2025 372,300.00 372,300.00
12/31/2025 736,326.67
05/01/2026 372,300.00 372,300.00
11/01/2026 372,300.00 372,300.00
12/31/2026 744,600.00
05/01/2027 372,300.00 372,300.00
11/01/2027 372,300.00 372,300.00
12/31/2027 744,600.00
05/01/2028 343,000 3.650% 372,300.00 715,300.00
11/01/2028 366,040.25 366,040.25
12/31/2028 1,081,340.25
05/01/2029 940,000 3.650% 366,040.25 1,306,040.25
11/01/2029 348,885.25 348,885.25
12/31/2029 1,654,925.50
05/01/2030 975,000 3.650% 348,885.25 1,323,885.25
11/01/2030 331,091.50 331,091.50
12/31/2030 1,654,976.75
05/01/2031 1,011,000 3.650% 331,091.50 1,342,091.50
11/01/2031 312,640.75 312,640.75
12/31/2031 1,654,732.25
05/01/2032 1,049,000 3.650% 312,640.75 1,361,640.75
11/01/2032 293,496.50 293,496.50
12/31/2032 1,655,137.25
05/01/2033 1,088,000 3.650% 293,496.50 1,381,496.50
11/01/2033 273,640.50 273,640.50
12/31/2033 1,655,137.00
05/01/2034 1,128,000 3.650% 273,640.50 1,401,640.50
11/01/2034 253,054.50 253,054.50
12/31/2034 1,654,695.00
05/01/2035 1,170,000 3.650% 253,054.50 1,423,054.50
11/01/2035 231,702.00 231,702.00
12/31/2035 1,654,756.50
05/01/2036 1,214,000 3.650% 231,702.00 1,445,702.00
11/01/2036 209,546.50 209,546.50
12/31/2036 1,655,248.50
05/01/2037 1,259,000 3.650% 209,546.50 1,468,546.50
11/01/2037 186,569.75 186,569.75
12/31/2037 1,665,116.25
05/01/2038 1,305,000 3.650% 186,569.75 1,491,569.75
11/01/2038 162,753.50 162,753.50
12/31/2038 1,654,323.25
05/01/2039 1,354,000 3.650% 162,753.50 1,516,753.50
11/01/2039 138,043.00 138,043.00
12/31/2039 1,654,796.50
05/01/2040 1,404,000 3.650% 138,043.00 1,542,043.00
11/01/2040 112,420.00 112,420.00
12/31/2040 1,654,463.00
05/01/2041 1,457,000 3.650% 112,420.00 1,569,420.00
11/01/2041 85,829.75 85,829.75
12/31/2041 1,655,249.75
05/01/2042 1,511,000 3.650% 85,829.75 1,596,829.75
11/01/2042 58,254.00 58,254,00
12/31/2042 1,655,083.75
05/01/2043 1,567,000 3.650% 58,254.00 1,625,254.00
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BOND DEBT SERVICE

Hilton Head Public Serice District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B
Proposed Final Numbers

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
11/01/2043 29,656.25 29,656.25
12/31/2043 1,654,910.25
05/01/2044 1,625,000 3.650% 29,656.25 1,654,656.25
12/31/2044 1,654,656.25
20,400,000 9,385,074.67 29,785,074.67 29,785,074.67

N/
) 4
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FORM 8038 STATISTICS

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B
Proposed Final Numbers

Dated Date 11/05/2024
Delivery Date 11/05/2024
Redemption
Bond Component Date Principal Coupon Price Issue Price at Maturity
Bond Component:
05/01/2028 343,000.00 3.650% 100.000 343,000.00 343,000.00
05/01/2029 940,000.00 3.650% 100.000 940,000.00 940,000.00
05/01/2030 975,000.00 3.650% 100.000 975,000.00 975,000.00
05/01/2031 1,011,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,011,000.00 1,011,000.00
05/01/2032 1,049,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,049,000.00 1,049,000.00
05/01/2033 1,088,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,088,000.00 1,088,000.00
05/01/2034 1,128,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,128,000.00 1,128,000.00
05/01/2035 1,170,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,170,000.00 1,170,000.00
05/01/2036 1,214,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,214,000.00 1,214,000.00
05/01/2037 1,259,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,259,000.00 1,259,000.00
05/01/2038 1,305,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,305,000.00 1,305,000.00
05/01/2039 1,354,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,354,000.00 1,354,000.00
05/01/2040 1,404,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,404,000.00 1,404,000.00
05/01/2041 1,457,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,457,000.00 1,457,000.00
05/01/2042 1,511,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,511,000.00 1,511,000.00
05/01/2043 1,567,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,567,000.00 1,567,000.00
05/01/2044 1,625,000.00 3.650% 100.000 1,625,000.00 1,625,000.00
20,400,000.00 20,400,000.00 20,400,000.00
Stated Weighted
Maturity Interest Issue Redemption Average
Date Rate Price at Maturity Maturity Yield
Final Maturity 05/01/2044 3.650% 1,625,000.00 1,625,000.00
Entire Issue 20,400,000.00 20,400,000.00 12.6042 3.6500%
Proceeds used for accrued interest 0.00
Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters' discount) 128,500.00
Proceeds used for credit enhancement 0.00
Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund 0.00

Y
¥
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PROOF OF ARBITRAGE YIELD

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B

Proposed Final Numbers

Present Value

PV o 11/05/2024
Date Debt Service Factor@ 3.6500361385%
05/01/2025 364,026.67 0.982471698 357,645.90
11/01/2025 372,300.00 0.964862778 359,218.41
05/01/2026 372,300.00 0.947569464 352,780.11
11/01/2026 372,300.00 0.930586100 346,457.20
05/01/2027 372,300.00 0.913907129 340,247.62
11/01/2027 372,300.00 0.897527098 334,149.34
05/01/2028 715,300.00 0.881440647 630,494.49
11/01/2028 366,040.25 0.865642514 316,860.00
05/01/2029 1,306,040.25 0.850127533 1,110,300.78
11/01/2029 348,885.25 0.834890628 291,281,03
05/01/2030 1,323,885.25 0.819926816 1,085,489.02
11/01/2030 331,091.50 0.805231201 266,605.21
05/01/2031 1,342,091.50 0.790798977 1,061,324.58
11/01/2031 312,640.75 0.776625422 242,804.75
05/01/2032 1,361,640.75 0.762705902 1,038,531.44
11/01/2032 293,496.50 0.749035862 219,839.40
05/01/2033 1,381,496.50 0.735610831 1,016,243.79
11/01/2033 273,640.50 0.722426419 197,685.13
05/01/2034 1,401,640.50 0.709478311 994,433.54
11/01/2034 253,054.50 0.696762274 176,318.83
05/01/2035 1,423,054.50 0.684274147 973,759.40
11/01/2035 231,702.00 0.672009846 155,706.03
05/01/2036 1,445,702.00 0.659965359 954,113.24
11/01/2036 209,546.50 0.648136746 135,814.79
05/01/2037 1,468,546.50 0.636520139 934,759.42
11/01/2037 186,569.75 0.625111737 116,626.94
05/01/2038 1,491,569.75 0.613907808 915,686.32
11/01/2038 162,753.50 0.602904689 98,124.85
05/01/2039 1,516,753.50 0.592098779 898,067.90
11/01/2039 138,043.00 0.581486544 80,270.15
05/01/2040 1,542,043.00 0.571064514 880,606.04
11/01/2040 112,420.00 0.560829278 63,048.43
05/01/2041 1,569,420.00 0.550777489 864,401.21
11/01/2041 85,829.75 0.540905860 46,425.81
05/01/2042 1,596,829.75 0.531211160 848,253.78
11/01/2042 58,254.00 0.521690219 30,390.54
05/01/2043 1,625,254.00 0.512339923 832,682.51
11/01/2043 29,656.25 0.503157213 14,921.76
05/01/2044 1,654,656.25 0.494139086 817,630.33
29,785,074.67 20,400,000.00
Proceeds Summary

Delivery date 11/05/2024

ParValue 20,400,000.00

Target for yield calculation 20,400,000.00

Y
¥
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DISCLAIMER

Hilton Head Public Service District
General Obligation Bond, Series 2024B
Proposed Final Numbers

This communication was prepared by First Tryon Advisors, LLC ('First Tryon Advisors') and is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as an offer
or solicitation to sell or buy any securities. This material does not provide tax, regulatory, accounting, or legal advice. Prior to entering into any proposed transaction,
recipients should determine, in consultation with their own investment, legal, tax, regulatory and accounting advisors, the economic risks and merits, as well as the
legal, tax, regulatory, and accounting characteristics and consequences, of the proposed transaction.

Any proposal included in this communication is confidential information of First Tryon Advisors and is solely for the benefit of the recipient(s), and the recipient(s) is (
are) not authorized to sell, redistribute, forward or deliver this communication to any other person without the prior written consent of First Tryon Advisors.

The statements within this material constitute the views, perspective and judgment of First Tryon Advisors at the time of distribution and are subject to change without
notice. First Tryon Advisors gathers its data from sources it considers reliable; however, it does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of the information
provided within this communication. The material presented reflects information known to First Tryon Advisors at the time this communication was prepared, and this
information is subject to change without notice. First Tryon Advisors makes no warranties regarding the accuracy of this material.

Any forecasts, projections, or predictions of the market, the economy, economic trends, and equity or fixed-income markets are based upon current opinion as of the
date of issue, and are also subject to change. Opinions and data presented are not necessarily indicative of future events or expected performance. Actual events may
differ from those assumed and changes to any assumptions may have a material impact on any projections or performance. Other events not taken into account may
accur and may significantly affect the projections or estimates. Certain assumptions may have been made for modeling purposes only to simplify the presentation
and/or calculation of any projections or estimates, and First Tryon Advisors does not represent that any such assumptions will reflect actual future events. Accordingly,
there can be no assurance that estimated projections will be realized or that actual performance results will not materially differ from those estimated herein.

First Tryon Advisors is registered as a municipal advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission ('SEC') and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (*
MSRB"). Neither the SEC, MSRB, nor any other regulatory organization endorses, indemnifies, or guarantees First Tryon Advisors' business practices or selling
methods.
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(843) 681-5525
Hhpsd.com

To: All Commissioners

From: Pete Nardi, General Manager

Re: RO Well #4, ASR #2, and Transmission Mains Construction Contract Approval

October 16, 2024

Dear Commissioners:

The construction agreement for the RO Well #4, ASR #2, and Transmission Mains project is attached.

BRW Construction Group, LLC, of Savannah, Ga., was the low responsive bidder, in the amount of $14,953,766.

The project is being funded in part with a $10-million grant from the S.C. Infrastructure Investment Program (SCIIP). The
PSD will cover the local match using general obligation (GO) debt.

The project is estimated for construction completion in summer 2026.
As always, please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.

Best regards,

D

Pete Nardi

General Manager
Hilton Head PSD
(843) 305-0638
pnardi@hhpsd.com




DOCUMENT 00 52 15
AGREEMENT FORM

SCIIP Grant # A-23-C095
THIS AGREEMENT, made the day of

, 20 by and between Hilton Head Public Service District, hereinafter called "Owner", and
BRW Construction Group, LLC, doing business as an LLC, hereinafter called "Contractor".

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of payments and agreements hereinafter
mentioned:

1. The Contractor will commence and complete the construction of:
RO4 / ASR2 Wells & Transmission Mains

2. The Contractor will furnish all of the materials, supplies, tools equipment, labor, and
other services necessary for the construction and completion of the project described herein.

The Contractor will commence the work required by the Contract Documents within 10 calendar days
after the date of the Notice to Proceed. Work will be fully complete 540 calendar days from the date of
the Notice to Proceed. Should the Contractor fail to complete the work within the time stated above, the
Contractor agrees to pay as liquidated damages the sum of $1,000.00 for each consecutive calendar day
thereafter until said work is fully complete.

4. The Contractor agrees to perform all of the Work described in the Contract Documents
and comply with the terms herein for the sum of $14,953,766.38 (Words) Fourteen million, nine
hundred fifty-three thousand, seven hundred sixty-six dollars and .38/100 as shown in the Bid.

S. The term "Contract Documents” means and includes the following:

Invitation to Bid

Instructions to Bidders

Available Project Information

Affidavit of Compliance (E-Verify)
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment Cert
Debarment Certification Form

Statement of Bidder’s Qualification
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder
Corporate Certificate

Drug-Free Workplace Affidavit
Attestation Regarding Personnel Used in Contract Performance
Contractors License Certification

Bid Form

Bid Bond

Notice of Award

Agreement Form

Notice to Proceed

Performance Bond and Payment Bond

Hilton Head Public Service District Agreement Form
RO4 / ASR2 Wells & Transmission Mains 005215-1
WKD Project Number: 20220975.00.CA



Contractor’s Affidavit
Partial Payment Estimate
General Conditions
Supplementary Conditions
Special Provisions

Addenda

Change Order

Technical Specifications

Addenda

No. 1, Dated: July 31, 2024, and Signed by: David Bennett, PE

No._2 , Dated: August 5, 2024, and Signed by: David Bennett, PE

No._3 , Dated: August 9, 2024, and Signed by: David Bennett, PE

Drawings prepared by W. K. Dickson & Co. Inc., Numbered below and dated September
09, 2024.

G-000 COVER

G-001 GENERAL NOTES AND LEGEND

G-002 SHEET INDEX

CS101 SITE LAYOUT

CS102 WELLHEAD PIPING DETAILS

CS103 WELL ELEVATION DETAIL

C-101 PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 0+00 THRU 11+00
C-102 PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 11+00 THRU 21+81
C-501 WATER DETAILS 1

C-502 WATER DETAILS 2

C-503 WATER DETAILS 3

E-001 ELECTRICAL LEGEND

E-101 ELECTRICAL PLAN

E-501 ELECTRICAL DETAILS

E-601 ONE LINE DIAGRAM

E-602 SCHEDULES

L-100 PLANTING PLAN 1

[.-101 PLANTING PLAN?2

M-101 ELECTRICAL BUILDING MECHANICAL PLAN

6. The Owner will pay to the Contractor in the manner and such times as set forth in the
General Conditions such amounts as required by the Contract Documents.

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their
duly authorized officials, this Agreement in three (3) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original on the date first above written.

Hilton Head Public Service District Agreement Form
RO4 / ASR2 Wells & Transmission Mains 005215-2
WKD Project Number: 20220975.00.CA



OWNER:

Hilton Head Public Service District

By (Signature)

Printed Name

Title

(Seal)

CONTRACTOR:

BRW Construction Group, LLC

By (Signature)

Printed Name

Title

(Seal)

Hilton Head Public Service District
RO4 / ASR2 Wells & Transmission Mains
WKD Project Number: 20220975.00.CA

ATTEST:

By (Signature)
Printed Name

Title

ATTEST:

By (Signature)
Printed Name

Title

Agreement Form
005215-3
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Financial Audit Presentation
Year Ended June 30, 2024

HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

OPINION

» The District’s responsibility:
> Maintain effective internal controls
» There are limitations on internal controls.
» Regular risk assessment is important,
including assessing the risk of fraud.
» Financial Statements

» Accuracy, completeness, and propriety of
balances, amounts, and disclosures




HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

» Greene Finney Cauley, LLP’s (“GFCLLP”)
responsibility:
» Opinion — reasonable assurance that financial
statements are materially correct

» Does not address the financial condition of the
District

» Purpose of the audit is not to detect fraud. GFCLLP cannot
take responsibility for finding fraud, if it existed

» Issued unmodified opinion

HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Total net position NET POSITION
increased $4.2M to
s 60 . 5 M $70,000,000
Net investment in capital ">
$50,000,000
assets of $46.3M $40,000,000

Restricted net position of #***
$20,000,000

$1.3M for debt service $10,000,000

Unrestricted net position
of $12.9M




HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

e Unrestricted net
position is $11.9M,
which is 74% of 2024 %

70

operating expenses 0 1
* . 50 ]
This is a good, healthy b
net position as of June %0
30, 2024 2

10

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Unrestricted Net Position as a % of
Operating Expenses

HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Major Reasons To Maintain An Adequate

Unrestricted Net Position:
* Significant emergencies and unanticipated expenditures
* Flexibility for discretionary funding needs

* Funding of major capital improvements with operating reserves
rather than debt issuances

* Unique funding requirements of a coastal community (higher
risk of natural disasters, other acts of God)

Potential for better interest rates on future debt issues




HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Revenues: REVENUES
¢ $22.2M for 2024:

« $15.2M in operating revenues
< $3.1M in property tax revenues $25,000,000
< $598K in tower lease income
+ $1.4M in capacity fees

- $863K in developer contributions $15,000,000
+ $1.1M in other revenues

$20,000,000

$10,000,000
° $2.9M (15%) increase from
2023 $5,000,000
* $481K increase in operating $0
revenues 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
« $1.8M increase in capacity fees and Other Revenues
developer contributions u Tower Lease Income
» $656K increase in nonoperating u Property Tax Revenues
revenues m Operating Revenues

HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Expenses: EXPENSES

* $18.0M for 2024:

$4.7M in payroll and related expenses
* $1.0M in administrative expenses

) : : $20,000,000
$3.3M !n opejranons expenses $18,000,000
¢ $1.5M in maintenance expenses $16,000,000
* $1.1M in purchased water $14,000,000
+ $277K in interest expense $12,000,000
« $5.2M in depreciation expense s;g’ggz'zgg
« $964K in other expenses ss:ouo:auu
$4,000,000
> $388K (2%) increase from 2023 ‘2'°°°'°gg
¢ Primarily due to increases in payroll 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
and related expenses and operations
expenses = Non-operating Expenses

m Operating Expenses




HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Other Items of Note
° Capital Assets
* Total capital assets were $65.2M at 6/30/2024 —
decrease of $841K from 6/30/2023 as depreciation
expense of $5.2M exceeded capital additions of $4.4M
* Long-term Obligations

» Total long-term obligations were $20.5M at 6/30/2024 —
decrease of $3.9M from 6/30/2023 due to scheduled
principal payments

» Scheduled debt service requirements of $3.9M for FY2024

HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Net Pension Liability
« Relates to the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability of the South Carolina Retirement System

» Total Net Pension Liability of $5.1M on the District’s
Statement of Net Position as of 6/30/2024

* State mandated rate of 18.41% for FY2024 (increased by 1%
compared to prior year)

10



HILTON HEAD PSD
2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT

Management Letter

 Required communications to management and
those charged with governance — no issues to
report

Summary
e Unmodified opinion on the Financial Statements
from GFCLLP

» Good financial condition as of June 30, 2024




fg) Greene FinneyCauley,LLp

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS

October 22, 2024

Board of Commissioners

Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District
21 Oak Park Drive

Hilton Head Island, SC 29926

We have audited the financial statements of Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District (the “District”) for the year
ended June 30, 2024 (“2024”). Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards as well as certain information related.to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 4, 2024.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.. No new significant accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not significantly changed during 2024. We noted
no transactions entered into by the District during the year for  which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because. of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
significant sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital assets and the resulting depreciation expense
is based on historical data and industry standards. Management’s estimate of the property taxes
and accounts receivables and the allowance for uncollectible amounts associated with these
balances are based on information provided by the County and historical collection rates.
Management’s estimates: of the pension balances are based on an actuarial valuation (the
assumptions used in the| actuarial valuation are based on accounting requirements, actuarial
standards, historical data, and industry trends) prepared and certified by an independent actuary.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. For purposes of
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this communication, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the
financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures. An
audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a significant effect on the District’s financial
reporting process (that may or may not cause future financial statements to be materially misstated). No significant
adjusting journal entries were identified during the audit process.

In our judgment, there were no material known unrecorded and uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in
the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, repofting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the finan¢ial statements or the auditor’s
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are mcluded in the management 1epresentat10n
letter dated October 22, 2024, '

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants -

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants,fabout auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the District’s financial statements ot a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consultmg accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts To our knowledge there ‘were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues =

We generally discuss a variety of matters mcludmg the apphcatlon of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditor. However, these discussions occurred in the
normal course of our professional I‘EIaUODShlp -and-our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certam limited plocedures to.the management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of the District’s
South Carolina Retirement System Contributions, and the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net
Pensxon L1ab111ty which are required supplementary information (“RSI”) that supplement the basic financial
statements, Our plocedmes consisted of inquities of management regarding the methods of preparing the
mformatwn and comparing the mfonmatlon for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not
audit the RSI'and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the supplemental financial information, as listed in the table of contents, which
accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled this information to the underlying accounting records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section or statistical section which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSL. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.



Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of
the District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Gots, Fonray oy 1P

Greene Finney Cauley, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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INTRODUCTION SECTION

PSD Water Quality Supervisor, Sarah Hickman, was selected to represent the United States on
behalf of the Water Environmental Federation (WEF) at the World Water Skills Competition at
IFAT Munich, the world’s leading trade fair for environmental technologies in Germany. Sarah
and her teammate were sponsored by Empowering Pumps & Equipment; they finished in first place
in the process control event and received the silver medal for overall performance in the wastewater
professionals category.



EXECUTIVE STAFF

J. Pete Nardi, General Manager

Amy Graybill, Finance Manager
William C. Davis, Operations Manager

COMMISSIONERS
Frank Turano, Chair

Jerry Cutrer, Vice-Chair
Stuart Bell, Treasurer
Patti Soltys, Secretary
Ibrahim Abdul-Malik
Michael Marks

Andy Paterno

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT

October 22, 2024

To the Members of the Commission and Customers of Hilton Head PSD:

Letter of Transmittal

The management and staff of the Hilton Head Public Service District (PSD or District) are pleased to
present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This
is the fifteenth report issued as an ACFR and it will be made available to the general public via the
www.hhpsd.com web site. It also can be viewed in person at the PSD’s Customer Service Center at 21
Oak Park Drive off Mathews Drive, on Hilton Head Island. The District is required to publish a complete
set of annual audited financial statements; this report fulfills that requirement for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2024.

The District’s management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
information contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits,
the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free
of any material misstatements.

Greene Finney Cauley LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified opinion on the
District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024. The independent auditors’ report is
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis ("MD&A") immediately follows the independent auditor's report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements.

Profile of Hilton Head PSD

The PSD is a special purpose district created by the South Carolina General Assembly in 1969 to provide
water and sewer services to Hilton Head Island. The PSD provides:

e Tap water production and treatment.
e Tap water distribution.

e Sanitary sewer collections.

o Wastewater treatment.

e Recycled water distribution.
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Residents of Hilton Head Islandselied o Eu\\}té« vells fok't j: drinkingWater needs until 1957. At that
time, a local development firm called the Hilton Head Water Company introduced a community
waterworks system, installing water lines and drilling wells throughout the island. Ten separate utilities,
both public and private, provided water and wastewater services to the residents of the island at the time
of the PSD’s creation. Beginning in 1995, the PSD acquired the four utilities that now comprise its current
service area. In addition, the PSD acquired two small systems on the island previously served by a
mainland utility. Consolidation of the remaining island utilities formed the three public service districts
currently serving Hilton Head Island — Hilton Head, Broad Creek, and South Island PSDs.

The PSD serves a population of more than 25,500 in the north- and mid-island areas of Hilton Head Island,
from Jenkins Island to the Hilton Head Resort. The utility’s service area includes many of the
neighborhoods where the island’s 40,000 full-time residents reside, including the Historic Gullah
Neighborhoods as well as the large-scale subdivisions of Hilton Head Plantation, Indigo Run, Port Royal,
and Palmetto Hall. The District also services Hilton Head Island’s medical center, airport, and the public
school campus.

Percent of Supply

13.8%

m Wholesale Purchased Water m Freshwater Wells
m Reverse Osmosis Aquifer Storage and Recovery

The PSD can provide a total water capacity of approximately 13 million gallons a day (mgd). It
experiences an average demand of 6-7 mgd and a peak-day demand of 10-11 mgd. The PSD’s Reverse
Osmosis (RO) Water Treatment Facility provides 4 mgd, which is 61.6% of water supplied in Fiscal Year
2024. The RO Facility’s source of water is brackish groundwater from the 600-foot-deep Middle Floridan
Aquifer, pumped from three wells. The brackish water is treated in the RO Facility, which began
operations in 2009 in response to the loss of fresh groundwater wells caused by saltwater intrusion into
the shallower Upper Floridan Aquifer.

Water purchased on a wholesale basis from the Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority (BJWSA) on
the mainland represented 13.5% of water supplied in fiscal year 2024. The treated drinking water is
conveyed to the PSD via its 24” pipeline buried under the Intracoastal Waterway. Fresh groundwater from
the PSD’s remaining Upper Floridan wells provided 13.8% of water supplied in Fiscal Year 2024.

The remaining 11.1% of water supplied in fiscal year 2024 came from the PSD’s Aquifer Storage &
Recovery (ASR) Facility. It is the island’s first-ever ASR facility and began operations in 2011. In the
winter months of lower demand, the facility stores approximately 250 million gallons of treated tap water
in the Middle Floridan Aquifer. It then withdraws and re-treats the water during the summer months of
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higher demand, providing 2 mgd"e e'st

from BJWSA. The PSD’s ASR Facility recovers the st01ed water in the summer months of hlgher demand
when the full wholesale rate from BJWSA is in effect, saving customers’ money. The United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO) in 2020 recognized the PSD’s ASR Facility
as an outstanding worldwide example of a managed aquifer recharge program.

In addition to its RO plant, ASR, and Upper Floridan wells, the PSD maintains over 220 miles of water
distribution mains, 200 miles of sewer collection mains, 5 elevated storage tanks, 3 ground-level storage
tanks, 1,500 hydrants, 120 sewer lift stations, 13,500 customer water meters, 500 customer Low Pressure
Sewer (LPS) systems, and a tertiary-treatment, return activated sludge (RAS) recycled water treatment
plant. The recycled water treatment plant can treat 6.4 mgd of wastewater. Average flow into the treatment
plant is 3 mgd. The PSD is a 100% recycled water utility. All treated wastewater is recycled for golf course
irrigation or interior wetlands nourishment — no treated wastewater is discharged to any receiving bodies
of water.

The PSD Customer Servnce Center and Recycled Water Plant

Local Economy

Tourism is the largest industry in Hilton Head Island’s economy. In addition to being a premier vacation
destination, the island is also known as a retirement destination. Maintaining and preserving the natural
environment has been a key component in the island’s strategy to attract visitors and residents to the area
and the island is well-known for its beaches, waterways, bike paths, golf courses, and other natural and
outdoor amenities.

While the District continued to see new growth, redevelopment, and development in its service area, the
growth was not enough to keep consumption on par with the previous fiscal year when coupled with
continued cooler, rainy weather. The PSD’s water and irrigation customer count grew by 0.6% during
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fiscal year (FY) 2024, which lower ithan i rage ¢ er growthirate of 1.1% per year over the
last ten years. The District received capacity fee payments from four larger scale developers during the
fiscal year; the District expects to see growth continue in upcoming years as the units related to these
projects connect to the system.

Real estate prices continue to remain much higher than their pre-pandemic levels and the short-term rental
market continues to grow in areas that were previously residential. These real estate market conditions
have brought challenges for workers seeking affordable housing. The Town of Hilton Head has identified
this workforce housing shortage as one of its most pressing challenges. In recent fiscal years, it has
developed programs aimed to help develop land in the Historic Gullah Neighborhoods and created a
program using American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to assist low-income renters and homeowners
with connecting to the public sewer system. Public private housing partnerships are also being investigated
across Beaufort County. As the majority of undeveloped land on Hilton Head Island is in the District’s
service area, the District has already begun to see development in relation to these programs and expects
this to continue in the upcoming fiscal years.

The District and its service area continued to be affected by the inflationary pressures and supply chain
issues felt across the nation during the last several fiscal years. In particular, the District saw substantial
increases in construction costs during the previous fiscal year which brought some projects in at more than
double the anticipated pre-pandemic cost. While two years of double digit increases in biosolids handling
and chemicals costs gave way to more normal inflationary increases during the past fiscal year, the
District’s purchased water rate increased 9% in FY 2024 and will increase another 20% in FY 2025. The
District also continued to experience longer lead times when sourcing inventory and parts

Long Term Financial Planning

The District has developed and adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies that are consistent with
the District’s goals and objectives. Financial policies are an integral part of the development of service,
providing of capital, and establishing of financial plans and the annual budget. They provide the basis for
decision-making and ensure the District’s ongoing financial stability. The financial policies of the District
provide the structure and direction for financial reporting, planning, and decision making by management
and the Board. The District’s financial accounting system is based on the full accrual basis in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP). The accounts of
the District are organized on the basis of a proprietary fund type enterprise fund. The fund is accounted
for by a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, net position, and revenues and expenses. The fund is established to account
for water and sewer operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent is to provide goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis
with costs recovered primarily through user charges.

The District operates on a current funding basis and is required by state law to adopt a balanced operating
budget by June 30 of each year. Expenditures are budgeted and controlled so as not to exceed current
revenues plus the planned use of Fund Balances accumulated through prior years. In addition to its annual
operating budget, the District also prepares a five-year capital improvement program, cash flow
projection, and debt coverage projection to bring a longer-term perspective into the current financial
planning.



To prepare for emergencies o . ~ ies set a target of six months to
one year of the total budgeted operating expenditures, net of depreciation, to be maintained as an
unrestricted operating cash reserve.

Rates and Charges

The District maintains and administers a revenue system that assures a reliable, equitable and sufficient
revenue stream to support the District’s services. Since the principal revenue stream for the District is
comprised of the fees and charges established by the Commission, the governing body of the District, it
is important that the District adopts policies that identify the manner in which fees and charges are set and
the extent to which they cover the cost of the service provided.

As stated in the District’s financial policies, all user charges and fees are set at levels related to the costs
(operating, direct, indirect and capital) of providing its services. The District reviews these fees and
charges annually during the budget process and targets rates that are expected to produce revenues
sufficient to fully fund the costs of providing services — particularly in the District’s key businesses (water
and wastewater).

The cost of service includes direct and indirect costs such as operating and maintenance costs, overhead,
and charges for use of capital. The District may choose not to recover all costs, but it must identify such
costs. Reasons for not recovering full costs are identified and explained. The District also examines rates
and charges levied by other water and sewer systems for like services in establishing rates, fees and
charges. These fees (water and sewer user fees, capacity fees, tap fees, etc.) are reviewed through the
District’s annual cost of service process. In projecting revenues - and where judgment is required -
conservatism is the rule.

Millage

Pursuant to Act No. 596 of 1969, the District is authorized to impose ad valorem propetrty taxes not to
exceed ten mills to defray a portion of its operational costs; however, the District’s operational ad valorem
millage is now capped by statute at 3 mills. As of July 1, 2007, millage rates for operations may increase
only at a rate equal to the sum of (a) the increase in the consumer price index, plus (b) the rate of population
growth of the political subdivision or school district. This limitation may be overridden by a vote of two-
thirds of the governing body of the political subdivision, but only for a certain number of specific,
prescribed purposes.

The limitations described above do not apply to the levy of debt service millage. Therefore, the District is
also authorized to impose ad valorem property taxes, without limit as to rate or amount, to defray the debt
service on general obligation bonds of the District. All such general obligation bonds are approved by the
Beaufort County Council pursuant to South Carolina general law. Absent a referendum, the outstanding
par amount of general obligation bonds issued by the PSD shall not exceed eight percent (8%) of the
assessed value of all taxable property in the PSD.

Major Initiatives

Customer Payment and Usage Portal

The District launched a new customer payment and usage portal in June of 2023. This portal replaces the
District’s previously separate payment and usage portals into one combined customer experience platform
with a single log-in. On the payment side, the new portal allows customers new payment options such as
on demand ACH, Paypal, Google Pay, and Apple Pay which were previously unavailable. Customers with
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multiple accounts can now alsoflink these accounts ’Eogethét\urider one login and pay the account balances
in one payment instead of having to maintain separate logins and make separate payments for each
account. After logging in to make a payment, customers can access hourly, daily, and monthly usage data
by simply clicking the usage tab. The new portal also encourages water efficiency by allowing customers
to sign up for e-mail or text leak alerts as well as to request email or text high usage alerts if usage exceeds
a daily and/or monthly threshhold set by the customer.

The PSD worked with the new portal provider to distribute bill inserts, emailers, postcards, newsletters,
and other marketing materials, such as the one below, to promote customer engagement with the new
portal.

HiltonHeadPa
wherats?

b 4

Get Ready to Experience the New
Hilton Head PSD Web Platform

Introducing the New and Convenient Way
To Manage your Water Account

@ Intuitive Dashboard —

& Monitor Usage
& Receive Leak & Usage Alerts

@ Make Secure Payments

il
1 11T

Register Now at
https://hhpsd.smartcmobile.com/portal/

o ® i, '
M'. - AL e in ihi_ .

Long Term Water Supply Iniatives

During the year, the PSD has continued work on its long-term water supply implementation. This initiative
aims to ensure that the District is in a position to meet its peak demand at build out of the District’s service
area and also considers the potential effects of the future loss of groundwater wells to saltwater intrusion.
The planning includes an evaluation of the future supply options based on areas such as source-water
quality and availability, treatment requirements, regulatory requirements, and capital costs. In fiscal year
2020, the District completed an initial recalibration of its computerized water distribution system model,
which aids in scenario-based analysis of the impact of current and future peak demand periods on water
pressure and fire flow capabilities. The model underwent further updating in fiscal years 2022 and 2023
and allows the utility to evaluate strategic locations for future water production and supply assets, as well
as to identify future distribution system improvements. In fiscal year 2021, the District initiated a
groundwater hydrogeologic modeling effort to determine current and future quality and capacity in the
island’s underground aquifers, as well as a cost versus benefit analysis of differing future water supply
options. The District finalized the cost benefit study during fiscal year 2022 and began planning a timeline
to fund these projects.



In September 2022, the D ‘ & n to theiSouth Carolina Infrastructure
Investment Program (SCIIP) to request American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to expand its RO
plant from 4 mgd to 6 mgd and to build a second ASR facility capable of storing an additional 250 million
gallons of treated tap water in the Middle Floridan Aquifer which it can withdraw and re-treat during the
summer months of higher demand, providing 2 MGD of supply. The District was pleased to be awarded
the maximum $10,000,000 grant amount in April 2023. The grant requires a local matching component
which was estimated at around $7,000,000 by the District’s engineers at the time of the grant application.
The District bid out these projects in 2024. In an example of the intense construction inflationary
environment, the actual matching component is now expected to be $20,500,000. The District closed on
a $2,589,929 engineering only general obligation (GO) loan with the SC State Revolving Fund (SRF) in
August 2024 and expects to issue another $20,400,000 in general obligation debt by the end of 2024 to
fund the remaining match and other needed capital projects. When completed, these projects will add an
additional 4 mgd to the District’s total water capacity which is expected to lower future operating costs
by reducing reliance on purchased water. They will also bolster the PSD’s ability to provide water during
emergency situations and peak days, as well as to accommodate new growth. These projects will improve
resiliency for the District as the purchased water pipeline represents a single point of failure and the
District’s remaining freshwater wells are susceptible to saltwater intrusion.

In October of 2022, the District was excited to partner with Beaufort County to receive a sub-recipient
allocation of $1,000,000 from Beaufort County’s ARPA allocation for two capital projects: a high service
water distribution booster pump station and an emergency generator at the District’s RO Plant. The new
booster pump station will replace critical high service water distribution pumps which are over forty years
old at the PSD’s Leg-O-Mutton ground storage tank. The new water booster station will improve pumping
capacity and allow the District to deliver water and re-pressurize the system in times of high demand and
in response to natural disasters. Since the award of the grant, the District has spent local funds to engineer
and bid this booster pump project in accordance with ARPA guidelines. Bidding was completed in May
2024 and the ARPA allocation will be spent on the actual construction and equipment needed for the
project in the upcoming fiscal year. The emergency generator at the District’s RO plant will also provide
improved disaster resiliency and was bid and will be completed as part of the SCIIP grant RO expansion
project.

In conjunction with these efforts, the PSD is closely monitoring the U.S. 278 Corridor Project being led
by the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT). The PSD’s 24” water pipeline, which is
the sole delivery mechanism of its purchased water supply from BJIWSA, is expected to be required to be
relocated as a part of this project. While the District believes the majority of the cost of the basic relocation
will be covered by the SCDOT under the Utility Relocation Act, the PSD will be considering various
options relating to relocating the line, including implications for increased wholesale water capacity and
disaster resiliency.

Asset Management Planning

During fiscal year 2020, the District completed an Asset Management Plan to supplement development
of the five-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) that is presented annually as a part of the District’s
budget. The plan ranks approximately 100 major assets of the District on the basis of probablity and
consequence of failure, condition, replacement value, and expected useful life, among other categories. It
includes assets such as the RO and ASR facilities, multiple features and equipment within the wastewater
treatment plant, sewer lift stations, drinking water production wells, ground-level water storage tanks and
elevated water towers, and many more. During the past several fiscal years, the District continued to
develop and expand an in house tracking and field inspection program aimed at capturing additional
operational and financial data for the District’s 120+ sewer lift stations. The goal of the Asset Management

10



Plan is to provide predictabilitysifiithe District’s'long-term"CIP, avoid unanticipated repairs and outages,
and maintain appropriate levels of service. Asset Management planning aids the District in designing
stable rates and in managing financial burdens. It is an ongoing process that involves continous updating
and honing of asset condition assessments, and multi-year capital planning to ensure that the District’s
infrastructure, facilities, and equipment are operating effectively and efficiently. Fiscal years 2022 through
2024 have involved the identification and replacement or relining of ductile iron sewer mains, which can
be among the most vulnerable of buried assets as they age. During 2024, the District hired an asset
management specialist who is updating and refining the District’s database of assets and working to
streamline the asset condition and maintenance work order and data collection process.

Awards and Acknowledgements
Organizational Awards

The District has earned the Directors Award from the Partnership for Safe Water for completing a rigorous
self-assessment and peer-reviewed program for the optimization of our drinking water distribution system.

The District has earned the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC)
Facility of Excellence award for the outstanding operation of our wastewater treatment plant, as well as
DHEC’s Laboratory of Excellence recognition for our in-house Water Quality Laboratory.

Sarah Hickman, the PSD’s Water Quality Laboratory Supervisor, pictured above with the District’s
Project Manager, Pete Schuelke, earned the Crystal Crucible Award, which recognizes individuals for
significant contributions which promote professionalism, pride, and distinguished ideals among those
working in water and wastewater analysis. She has volunteered for many years to compete in, organize,
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and judge the Water Environment Association2af Sout rolina’s (WEASC) Operations Challenge
competitions, where wastewater professionals compete as teams in various industry-related categories,
including pipe repair, treatment process controls, confined space rescue, laboratory, and pump
maintenance. Sarah also was selected to represent the United States on behalf of the Water Environmental
Federation (WEF) at the World Water Skills Competition at IFAT Munich, the world’s leading trade fair
for environmental technologies in Germany. She and her teammate finished in first place in the process
control event and received the silver medal for overall performance in the wastewater professionals
category.

The PSD hosted the statewide Asset Management Workshop in the fall of 2023 for the WEASC and its
success earned the WEASC’s Joint Asset Management Committee the annual Education Award. PSD
General Manager, Pete Nardi, is a member of the committee and has served as its secretary. PSD
Administrative Assistant, Connie Whitehead, helped organize the workshop, which brought water and
wastewater professionals from around South Carolina to the island to learn best practices in utility asset
management.

Financial Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Hilton Head Public Service District
for its annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 (shown on page 13).
This was the fourteenth year that the District achieved this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must establish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual
comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Management believes that the current
annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and is submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated service of the entire staff
of the Finance Department. We also want to thank all PSD team members for their service, and our
customers and Board of Commissioners for their support of our utility and its mission.

Respectfully Submitted,

g L. Bl Jare

Amy Graybill, CPA, Finance Manager Pete Nardi, General Manager
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Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District is governed by a seven-member Board of Commissioners.
Commissioners are elected by registered voters of the District during general elections. Commissioners
serve four-year terms. During FY 2024, the District was redistricted from four voting districts to seven
different voting districts within the PSD service area to ensure fair representation.

The Commission establishes policies for the PSD and employs the General Manager. The Commission
reviews and adopts the utility’s annual operating budget and conducts an annual Cost of Service Analysis
in order to determine the utility’s consumption rates, user fees, and millage.

The Commission normally meets on the fourth Wednesday of each month in the PSD Community Room
at 21 Oak Park Drive off Mathews Drive on Hilton Head Island. Public comment is welcome at all
Commission meetings.

The 2023-24 Hilton Head Public Service District Commission

Frank Turano, Chair
District 7
Current Term: 2022-2026

Jerry Cutrer, Vice Chair
District 4
Current Term: 2020-2024

Stuart Bell, Treasurer
District 2
Current Term: 2020-2024
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Patti Soltys, Secretary
District 3
Current Term: 2020-2024

Ibrahim Abdul-Malik
District 1
Current Term: 2022-2026

Michael Marks
District 5
Current Term: 2022-2026

Andy Paterno
District 6
Current Term: 2022-2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners

Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District
21 Oak Park Drive

Hilton Head Island, SC 29926

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District (the “District”) as of and for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the respective changes in
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAS”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond
the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

GREENEFINNEYCAULEY.CPA + INFO@GREENEFINNEY.COM

GREENVILLE, SC MAULDIN, $C CHARLESTON, SC ANDERSON, SC ASHEVILLE, NC
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In performing an audit in accordance with'GAAS; we

e cxercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

s  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

o conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, the schedule of the District’s South Carolina Retirement System Contributions, and the Schedule of the District’s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements. The supplemental financial information, as listed in the table of contents, are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected
material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Goruns Finmsy Caudey NP

Greene Finney Cauley, LLP
Mauldin, South Carolina
October 22, 2024
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Management’s Dis

This section of the Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District’s (the “District”) annual financial statements
presents management’s analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal years ending June
30, 2024, 2023 and 2022. To enhance the reader’s understanding, management encourages considering
the information contained in the MD&A in conjunction with the financial statements as presented in the
financial section of this report, the transmittal letter, and statistical information.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and include statements
of net position; statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net positions; statements of cash flows;
and notes to the financial statements.

The Statements of Net Position present the District’s financial position and provide information on all
of the District’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported
as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as an indicator of whether
the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the business activity and
results of operations for the fiscal year. These statements present the change in net position during the
fiscal year. The statements can be used to evaluate the profitability of the District and to assess whether it
has recovered all of its costs through user fees and charges.

The Statements of Cash Flows present the cash activities of the District segregated in the following four
major categories: operating, investing, noncapital financing, and capital and related financing activities.
These statements provide information as to the sources and uses of cash, where the cash was derived from,
what cash was used for, and what the change in cash balance was during the reported periods.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information essential to
fully understand the data provided in the statements. Required supplementary information presents
schedules concerning progress in funding the District’s obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees. Supplementary information contains additional financial data, such as budgetary
comparisons and detailed debt schedules. Although not a required part of the financial statements, the
supplementary data enhances information provided to users.

General Trends and Significant Events

e The District continued to see growth from development and redevelopment in its service area. The
District received capacity fees from four large scale developments during the current fiscal year
representing approximately 210 new units that are expected to connect in upcoming years.

¢ Additionally, the District still continues to see connections related to its Master Sewer Plan. This
project involved a partnership with the Town of Hilton Head to bring sewer to many previously
unserved areas, a commitment from the PSD’s Commission to continue to fund District
infrastructure necessary to bring sewer to any remaining unserved landlocked parcels, and a
partnership with a local non-profit, the Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, which raised
funds for and administers the Project SAFE and Water Fund programs which provide grants to
low-income homeowners to cover the cost of connecting to the District’s water and sewer systems.
The Town of Hilton Head has also developed programs aimed at assisting native islanders in
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developing their prope: PA funds that provides sewer
connection grants to low-income owners and renters not covered by Project SAFE. This new grant
program brought a number of new Master Sewer Plan connections during the previous and current
fiscal year.

o Water Customer Growth: The District added 110 new water/irrigation customers to the
system in fiscal year (FY) 2024. As of June 30, 2024, the District has a total of 19,766
equivalent dwelling units (EDUs). This is a 0.56% increase for FY 2024. For FY 2023,
there was a 0.68% increase in total EDUs. The current EDUs include 18,653 water service
units, 1,034 irrigation service units, and 79 miscellaneous water units such as dock meters,
hydrants, pool meters, and golf course water coolers.

o Sewer Customer Growth: The District added 137 new sewer customers to the system in
fiscal year 2024. As of June 30, 2024, sewer service EDUs total 17,863. This is a 0.77%
increase for FY 2024 as compared to the F'Y 2023 increase of 0.91%.

o During FY 2024, the sewer to water customer percentage has increased from 95.56% to
95.76% percent since the end of fiscal year 2023.! This increase is related to the District’s
Master Sewer Plan construction projects, Project SAFE funded connections, and Town of
Hilton Head sewer connection program as well as general development in the District.

Billed consumption for FY 2024 decreased 71 million gallons from 1.987 billion gallons billed
during FY 2023 to 1.916 billion gallons during FY 2024 despite decreased rainfall. Total rainfall
in fiscal year 2024 decreased 3.5 inches from 55.9 inches to 52.3 inches in fiscal year 2023.2
Spring/Summer? rainfall decreased 8.5 inches from 35.7 inches in fiscal year 2023 to 27.2 inches
in fiscal year 2024. (See the Rainfall Comparison tables on page 90 in the Statistical section of this
report for further data). Rain can be inconsistent throughout the District’s service area so it may
be that certain areas received more rain than the treatment plant where the rainfall data is recorded.
This may also be a reflection of customers adopting more conservation oriented water usage habits.

Despite decreased consumption, rate increases enacted as of July 1, 2023 led to increases in
operating revenues over the prior year which offset increases in operating expenses over the prior
year. However, strong interest revenues, growth in the District’s tax base, and large-scale
developer capacity fee payments led to the District ending the 2024 fiscal year with a $4.2 million
increase in net position and a $1.5 million increase in unrestricted cash. This increase in
unrestricted cash is also partially attributable to the timing of capital project completion; the
District carried forward approximately $1,175,000 worth of fiscal year 2024 budgeted capital
projects into fiscal year 2025 for completion. The amount of budgeted capital projects carried over
from fiscal year 2023 was only $424,000.

In April 2023, the District received the maximum $10,000,000 SCIIP grant award for expanding
its RO plant from 4 mgd to 6 mgd and to construct a second ASR facility. At the time of the grant
award, the District and its engineers estimated that the District’s matching contribution to these
projects would be $7,000,000. In an example of the intense construction inflationary environment,
the actual matching component is now expected to be $20,500,000. The District closed on a
$2,589,929 engineering only general obligation loan with the SC State Revolving Fund in August
2024 and expects to issue another $20,400,000 in general obligation debt by the end of 2024 to
fund the remaining match and other needed capital projects. When completed, these projects will

1 This percentage is based solely on water customers and does not include irrigation, dock meters, hydrants, pool meters, and

golf course water coolers etc.

2 Rainfall measurements were recorded at the wastewater treatment plant.
3 Months included for each year are March through August.
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add an additional 4 ity and are expected to lower
future operating costs by reducing reliance on purchased water. They will bolster the PSD’s ability
to provide water during emergency situations and peak days as well as to accommodate new
growth. These projects will also improve resiliency for the District as the purchased water pipeline
represents a single point of failure and the District’s remaining freshwater wells are susceptible to
saltwater intrusion. The District anticipates considering its current GO debt repayment schedule
when structuring the new GO issuance so that millage rate impacts to the District’s tax base will
be around 1 mill.

e In October 2022, the District also received a $1,000,000 subrecipient allocation of Beaufort
County’s ARPA allocation to offset the cost of building a new booster pump station at its Leg-O-
Mutton ground storage tank and installing an emergency generator at its RO plant. The District
received these funds in November 2022 and is holding them in a restricted bank account until
actual construction costs are incurred. Since the award, the District has used local funds to pay its
engineers to design the booster pump station and prepare the related bid documents. The District
bid the booster pump project in May 2024 and plans to utilize the GO debt issuances noted
previously to cover the remaining matching costs and reimburse the engineering costs. The RO
Plant emergency generator is being designed and bid as a component of the SCIIP grant project.

Financial Highlights and Analysis of the District

The District’s financial position remained stable during the past fiscal year; large capacity fee payments,
strong interest income and growth in the District’s tax base led to an increase in net position and
unrestricted cash.

Condensed Statements of Net Position
The comparative condensed statements of net position shown on the next page show changes in
financial position from previous fiscal years as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022.*

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources were $89.0 million, exceeding liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $60.5 million (net position). Of the total net position, $12.9 million was
unrestricted. Total net position increased by $4.2 million or 7.4% compared to a $1.6 million or 3.0%
increase in fiscal year 2023. Unrestricted net position increased $1.3 million or 11.5% compared to a
$343,000 or 3.1% increase in fiscal year 2023.

4 FY 2022 financial statement line items have been restated to reflect the implementation of GASB 87.
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ondensed Sta
As of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022

As of June 30, 2024 2023 2022 2023 t0 2024 % 2022 t0 2023 %
Assets Increase (decrease) Increase {decrease)
Current assets $17,402,581 $ 15,780,786 $15,645447 $ 1,621,795 10.3% $ 135,339 0.9%
Restricted assets 2,329,079 2,196,596 887,721 132,483  6.0% 1,308,875  147.4%
Net Property Plant & Equipment 65,276,327 66,116,980 67,919,475 (840,653) -1.3% (1,802,495) -2.7%
Other Noncurrent Assets 3,046,034 2,758,552 2,940,326 287,482 10.4% (181,774) -6.2%
Total Assets 88,054,021 86,852,914 87,392,969 1,201,107 1.4% (540,055) -0.6%
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 722,277 766,566 930,224 (44,289) -5.8% (163,658) -17.6%
Deferred outflows from refinding debt 209,177 534,639 860,101 (325,462) -60.9% (325462) -37.8%
Total Deferred outflows of resources 931,454 1,301,205 1,790,325 (369,751) -28.4% (489,120)  -27.3%
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 88,985,475 $88,154,119 $89,183,294 831,356 0.9% (1,029,175) -1.2%
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 6,001,935 6,103,771 4,876,869 (101,836) -1.7% 1,226,902 25.2%
Noncurrent Liabilities, net of amortization 20,453,887 24,200,671 27,250,331 (3,746,784) -15.5% (3,049,660) -112%
Total Liabilities 26,455,822 30,304,442 32,127,200 (3,848,620) -12.7% (1,822,758) -5.7%

Deferved inflows of resources

Deferred inflows related to pensions 161,707 186,965 854,175 (25,258) -13.5% (667,210 -78.1%
Deferred mflows related to lease revenue 1,823,724 1,280,617 1,469,454 543,107 42.4% (188,837) -12.9%
Total Deferred inflows of resources 1,985,431 1,467,582 2,323,629 517,849 35.3% (856,047) -36.8%
Total Jiabilities and deferred inflows of resources 28,441,253 31,772,024 34,450,829 (3,330,771) -10.5% (2,678,805  -7.8%
Net Position
Net investrent in capital assets 46,323,932 43,634,968 42,602,561 2,688,964  6.2% 1,032,407 2.4%
Restricted for debt service and grants 1,301,824 1,161,690 887,721 140,134  12.1% 273,969 30.9%
Urrestricted 12,918,466 11,585,437 11,242,183 1,333,029 11.5% 343,254 3.1%
Total Net Position 60,544,222 56,382,095 54,732,465 4,162,127  74% 1,649,630 3.0%
Total Liabilities and Net Position $88,985,475 $88,154,119 $89,183,294 $ 831,356 0.9% $(1,029,175)  -12%

Current and Restricted Assets

Of the total net position, $17.4 million are current non-restricted assets available to support short-term
operations. This current asset balance is $1.6 million higher than the June 30, 2023 balance of $15.8
million which was $135,000 higher than the June 30, 2022 balance of $15.6 million. The F'Y 2024 increase
was mostly attributable to an increase in cash and cash equivalents. Total unrestricted and restricted cash
balances consisted of the following:

Cash Balances As of June 30, 2024 2023 2022 2023 to 2024 % 2022 t02023 %

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $13,876,252 $12,392,680 $12,616,934 $ 1,483,572 120% § (224254) -1.8%
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) 2,329,079 2,196,596 887,721 132,483 6.0% 1,308,875 147.4%
Total Cash $16,205,331 $14,589,276 $13,504,655 $ 1,616,055 11.1% $ 1,084,621 8.0%

During fiscal year 2024, overall cash increased $1.6 million or 11.1%. Unrestricted cash increased $1.5
million or 12.0% bringing the District’s unrestricted cash to $13.9 million at June 30, 2024 compared to
$12.4 million at June 30, 2023. This increase was mostly due to capacity fees, increased property tax
revenue, increased interest revenue as well as the timing of capital projects. Restricted cash increased
$132,000 during fiscal year 2024. During fiscal year 2023, overall cash increased $1.1 million or 8.0%
with a $224,000 (a 1.8%) decrease in unrestricted cash and a $1.3 million (a 147.4%) increase in restricted
cash. This was mostly related to the receipt of the $1,000,000 subrecipient allocation of Beaufort County’s
ARPA funds.
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Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2024, the District has invested $65.3 million (net of accumulated depreciation) in water
and sewer equipment and a broad range of infrastructure as shown below. Net Property Plant & Equipment
has decreased $841,000 during fiscal year 2024 with capital additions of $4.4 million being offset by
depreciation of $5.2 million.

Capital Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2024 2023 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,299,193 $ 1,299,193 § 1,299,193
Construction in Progress 2,106,792 1,049,989 37,206
Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 3,405,985 2,349,182 1,336,399
Capital assets being depreciated:
Waterworks System 65,728,178 64,629,846 64,210,835
Sewer Collection System 55,785,073 55,067,932 54,256,168
Office Building and Improvements 4,481,248 4,504,119 4,391,129
Wastewater Treatment Plant 37,859,192 36,971,939 36,279,760
Transportation Equipment 1,396,322 1,428,065 1,341,156
Operations Equipment 2,082,160 2,134,929 2,082,690
Office Furniture and Equipment 589,326 672,988 682,901
Sub Total $ 167,921,499 $ 165409818 $ 163,244,639
Less Accumulated depreciation (106,051,157) (101,642,020) (96,661,563)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 61,870,342 63,767,798 66,583,076
Property, Plant and Equipment, net $ 65,276,327 § 66,116,980 $ 67,919,475

Projects/ additions completed during 2024 include:

e The District spent $126,000 replacing various pumps, controls and valves at its reclaimed water
irrigation/pump stations. Various upgrades and improvements at the wastewater treatment plant
including replacements of blowers, valves, actuators and building resurfacing and roof rehab
totaled $480,000.

e Upgrades and improvements to the District’s existing lift stations totaled $228,000 and LPS
pump replacements totaled $97,000. Other major collection system repairs and replacements
including manhole coating, sewer main relining, new collector mains, and piping to lift
stations totaled $174,000.

e The District continued its meter change out program and $445,000 of meters were replaced.
Other major distribution system repairs and replacements including line replacements,
valves, actuators, and hydrants totaled $284,000.

o Developer contributions of water systems and sewer systems totaled $853,000.

e The District spent $1,261,000 on engineering related to the RO Expansion, ASR-2, and Leg-
O-Mutton booster pump SCIIP and ARPA projects which is included in Construction in
Progress at year end.

¢ Upgrades to the District’s administrative building including generator rehab, HVAC
replacements, and general technology and operations equipment purchases totaled $58,000.

e Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition (SCADA) system upgrades including the
purchase of new monitoring equipment at the District’s lift stations totaled $86,000.
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e Four service trucks a e treatment plant totaled $232,000,
a forklift was purchased for $3O OOO and bypass pump equipment was purchased for
$55,000.

More detailed information on capital asset activity and developer contributions of systems can be
found in Note 7 — Property, plant, equipment, and depreciation on page 47 and Note 13 - Construction
and development commitments on page 54.

Liabilities and Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2024, the District’s current liabilities totaled $6.0 million versus $6.1 million at June 30,
2023 and $4.9 million at June 30, 2022. The increase of $1.2 million or 25.2% from fiscal year 2022 to
fiscal year 2023 was mostly related to the receipt of the $1,000,000 ARPA allocation which was reported
as restricted unearned grant revenue at June 30, 2023 and 2024. As previously noted, the District is paying
for the engineering and necessary bid preparation documents on these projects from its own funds; these
restricted funds will be spent on actual construction costs that have been bid out in accordance with all
applicable ARPA guidelines in the upcoming fiscal year.

Non-current liabilities decreased $3.7 million from $24.2 million at 2023 fiscal year end to $20.5 million
at 2024 fiscal year end in accordance with debt payment schedules combined with changes in net pension
liability values provided by the state pension system. More detailed information on long term debt
obligations can be found in Note 8 — Long term obligations on page 49 and Note 9 — Non-current liabilities
on page 52.

Bond covenants require that the District maintain and collect rates and charges which together with income
are reasonably expected to yield annual net earnings equal to at least the sum of one hundred twenty
percent (120%) of annual principal and interest requirements for all revenue bonds outstanding. The
District’s revenue bonds are secured by the revenues of the District. The District’s debt coverage ratio
increased from 243% in fiscal year 2023 to 303% in fiscal year 2024 which was mostly related to an
increase in capacity fees, taxes, and interest income received during fiscal 2024. Ratios for the prior three
fiscal years are above the 120% required by the District’s bond covenants as shown below:

Coverage of Debt Service

Year Fnded June 30, 2024 2023 2022
Net Income(loss) before capital contributions
per Financial Statements $1,917,123 $1,167,064 1,124,915
Capacity Fees 1,381,832 356,520 1,396,743
Add: Depreciation 5,215,476 5,140,534 5,142,783
Net Pension Expense 406,321 408,173 290,852
SCRS Retirement Contributions (518,900) (466,620) (424,042)
Amortization 325,462 325,462 325,462
Bond Issuance Costs - 37,500 -
Interest Expense (Bonds) 273,469 308,748 347,001
Assessments - Debt Service 237,137 222,184 209,221
Less: Property Taxes — Debt Service (1.793.252) (1.583.535) (1,522.142)
Net Farnings Available for Debt Service $7,444,668 $5,916,030 $6,890,792
Debt Service on Revenue Bonds $2,461,000 $2,437,980 $2,440,269
Coverage of Debt Service by Net Earnings* 303% 243% 282%
Debt Coverage without Capacity Fees 246% 228% 225%
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Statements of Revenues, EXx;

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in net position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides information regarding the nature and source of these
changes as presented below:

Hilton Head PSD
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Comparison Schedule

2023 to 2024 2022 to 2023

Year Ended June 30, 2024 2023 2022 Inc/(Dec) % Change Inc/(Dec) % Change
Operating Revenues
Water Service Revenues $ 8,020935 $ 7774846 $ 7817334 § 246,089 32% §  (42,488) -0.5%
Sewer Service Revenues 6,295,468 6,051,117 6,013,685 244351 4.0% 37432 0.6%
Other Operating Revenues 854,706 864,080 700,048 (9,374) -1.1% 164,032 23.4%

Total Operating Revenues 15,171,109 14,690,043 14,531,067 481,066 3.3% 158,976 1.1%
Operating Expenses
Payroll & Related Expenses 4,669,436 4251,569 3,952,377 417,867 9.8% 299,192 7.6%
Administrative Expenses 1,028,890 1,091,603 1,026,137 (62,713) -5.7% 65,466 6.4%
Operations Expenses 3,284,179 3,259419 2,865,270 24,760 0.8% 394,149 13.8%
Maintenance Expenses 1,505,505 1,409,057 1,529,491 96,448 6.8% (120,434) -7.9%
Purchased Water 1,061,550 1,004,551 1,031,270 56,999 5.7% (26,719) -2.6%
Water Tap In Expenses 109,607 173,700 166,639 (64,093) -36.9% 7,061 4.2%
Sewer Connection Expenses 402,999 325,863 198,236 71,136 23.7% 127,627 64.4%
Professional Fees 126,256 287,305 248,636 (161,049) -56.1% 38,669 15.6%
Depreciation 5,215,476 5,140,534 5,142,783 74,942 1.5% (2,249) 0.0%

Total Operating Expenses 17,403,898 16,943,601 16,160,839 460,297 2.7% 782,762 4.8%
Net Operating Income (2,232,789) (2,253,558) (1,629,772) 20,769 -0.9% (623,786) 38.3%
Non-operating Revenues
Property Taxes - G.O. Debt Levy 1,793,252 1,583,535 1,522,142 209,717 13.2% 61,393 4.0%
Property Taxes - Operations Levy 1,305,973 1,155,522 1,086,204 150,451 13.0% 69,318 6.4%
Interest Income 900,541 604,314 109,605 296,227 49.0% 494,709 451.4%
Other Non-Operating Revenues 752,646 752,530 712,823 116 0.0% 39,707 5.6%

Total Non-operating Revenues 4,752,412 4,095,901 3,430,774 656,511 16.0% 665,127 19.4%

Non-operating Expenses (602,500) (675,279) (676,087) 72,779 -10.8% 808 -0.1%
Increase in Net Position before 1,917,123 1,167,064 1,124,915 750,059 64.3% 42,149 3.7%
Capital Contributions:
Water Capacity Fee 581,400 93,260 551,444 488,140 523.4% (458,184) -83.1%
Sewer Capacity Fee 800,432 263,260 845,299 537,172 204.0% (582,039) -68.9%
Developer Contributions of Systems 863,172 126,046 494,675 737,126 584.8% (368,629) -74.5%
Total Capital Contributions 2,245,004 482,566 1,891,418 1,762,438 365.2%  (1,408,852) -74.5%
Change in net position $ 4,162,127 $ 1649630 $ 3,016333 § 2512497 152.3% $(1,366,703) -45.3%
Net postion, beginning of the year $56,382,095 $ 54732465 $ 51,716,132 $ 1,649,630 3.0% $ 3,016,333 5.8%
Net position, end of year $60,544,222 $56,382,095 $54,732,465 $ 4,162,127 7.4% $ 1,649,630 3.0%
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Operating Revenues (Fiscal !

Operating revenues for fiscal year 2024 total $15,171,109 which is a $481,066 or 3.3% increase from
fiscal year 2023. Total operating revenues increased 1.1% or $158,976 from fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year

2023.

Selected highlights of significant FY 2024 increases or decreases are as follows:

Water service revenues increased $246,089 or 3.2% from fiscal year 2023 to 2024 due to
volumetric rate increases despite a reduction in consumption. Water service revenues decreased
$42,488 or 0.5% from 2022 to 2023 due to reduction in consumption that offset volumetric rate
increases in the upper tiers.

Sewer service revenues increased by $244,351 or 4.0% from fiscal year 2023 to 2024 due to a
volumetric rate increase despite a reduction in consumption. During fiscal year 2023, sewer service
revenues increased $37,432 or 0.6% even with no rate increase due to sewer customer growth.
Sewer revenues are generally not as affected by lower consumption due to water only irrigation
meters and the 10,000 gallon monthly residential sewer cap.

Other operating revenues include water and sewer connection fees, golf course irrigation,
availability fees, service fees, disaster and insurance recoveries, and other miscellaneous items.
These revenues decreased $9,374 or 1.1% from fiscal year 2023 to 2024 compared to a $164,032
or 23.4% increase from fiscal year 2022 to 2023. The fiscal year 2023 increase was mostly related
to increased sewer connection fees related to more connections through the Town’s ARPA sewer
connection program and a miscellaneous class action settlement payment related to the District’s
electricity provider.

Departmental Expenses (Fiscal Year to Year Comparisons)

Total departmental expenses have increased $460,297 or 2.7% compared to fiscal year 2023. For fiscal
year 2023, departmental expenses increased $782,762 or 4.8% compared to fiscal year 2022.

Selected highlights of significant FY 2024 increases or decreases are as follows:

e Payroll and related expenses increased $417,867 or 9.8% in fiscal year 2024 and increased
$299,192 or 7.6% in fiscal year 2023. In fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, a non-cash
decrease adjustment of $112,579, $58,477, and $133,190, respectively, was necessary to
bring pension expense to the South Carolina Retirement Systems (SCRS) actuarially
determined amount. Additionally, these non-cash decreases were offset by merit salary
increases, a FY 2024 one-time inflation payment of $2,000 per employee, increases to
employer health insurance premiums, increases to the employer retirement contribution rate,
and the addition of one new position in each year.

o Operations expenses increased $24,760 or 0.8% in FY 2024 and $394,149 or 13.8% in FY
2023. The FY 2023 increase was mainly related to inflationary increases particularly in
biosolids disposal and chemicals which incurred large year over year increases in FY 2022
and 2023. These increases slowed down in FY 2024,
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o Maintenance expe»»— et .8% in FY 2024 and decreased by $120,434
or 7.9% in FY 2023 mainly due to lower tower maintenance expense in FY 2023 associated
with savings related to the timing of a switch in contracted maintenance providers.

e Sewer connection expenses increased $77,136 or 23.7% in FY 2024 and $127,627 or 64.4%
in FY 2023 which is related to increased sewer connections partially due to the availability of
the Town’s ARPA sewer grant program connections; these connection expenses are offset by
the sewer connection fee revenue in other operating revenues.

o Professional fees decreased $161,049 or 56.1% in FY 2024 compared to a $38,669 or 15.6%
increase in FY 2023. This is related to the completion of water supply planning and modeling
studies and grant application assistance expenses incurred in FY 2023. In FY 2024, most of
the District’s engineering expenditures were design expenditures capitalized into the cost of
the large-scale water supply capital projects.

Non-operating revenues (Fiscal Year to Year Comparisons)

Total non-operating revenues increased $656,511 or 16.0% in FY 2024 compared to an increase of
$665,127 or 19.4% in FY 2023.

Selected highlights of significant increases or decreases are as follows:

e More GO and operating property tax revenue was collected in FY 2024 and FY 2023 due to
increases in assessed taxable values including Beaufort County’s five year reassessment which
occurred during FY 2024.

o Interest income increased $296,227 or 49.0% in FY 2024 and $494,709 or 451.4% during FY 2023
due to overall increases in interest rates. District staff endeavored to keep all excess funds not
needed for immediate operations in its South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool account
to take advantage of rising interest rates.

e Other non-operating revenues include tower lease revenue, rental revenue, and gains on the sale
of fixed assets. Year over year increases in this area are mostly related to tower lease and rental
contract escalators offset by the timing of any asset sales.

Non-Operating Expenses (Fiscal Year to Year Comparisons)

Total non-operating expenses decreased $72,779 or 10.8% in FY 2024 and $808 or 0.1% in FY 2023
related to reductions in interest expense in accordance with debt payment schedules offset by bond
issuance costs in FY 2023.

Capital Contributions (Fiscal Year to Year Comparisons)
Significant, large-scale developer capacity fee payments, which are due before construction begins, were
received in FY 2024 and 2022. No significant large-scale capacity fees were received in FY 2023.

Developer contributions of systems were donated by these large-scale developers when their systems were
completed in FY 2024, 2023, and 2022. The size of these varies by the size of the development completed.
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SUBSEQUENT EVEN

On July 1, 2024, a rate increase was put into effect whereby the following water and sewer rate increases
were put into effect:

FY 2023 FY 2024 |Commerical Water & Irrigation FY 2023 FY 2024
Water Base Rate per Unit: Current Revised Rate {Rates per 1,000 Gallons: Current  Revised Rate
Residential Customers 16.50 17.50 |Block 1 - 0to 10,000 Gal 1.69 1.69
Commercial Customers 21.50 22.50 |Block 2 - 10,001 to 20,000 Gal 2,11 2.24
Residential Water FY 2023 FY 2024 |Block 3 -20,001 to 30,000 Gal 2.54 2.79
Rates per 1,000 Gallons: Current Revised Rate |Block 4 - All Over 30,000 Gal 3.38 3.72
Block 1-0to 10,000 Gal 1.52 1.58 FY 2023 FY 2024
Block 2 - 10,001 to 20,000 Gal 2.11 2.24 |Sewer Base Rate per Unit: Cumrent  Revised Rate
Block 3 - 20,001 to 30,000 Gal 2.54 2.79 |Residential Customers 18.50 19.50
Block 4 - All Over 30,000 Gal 3.38 3.72 |Commercial Customers 18.50 19.50
Residential Irrigation FY 2023 FY 2024 |Residential & Commercial Sewer FY 2023 FY 2024
Rates per 1.000 Gallons: Current Revised Rate | Rates per 1,000 Gallons: Current  Revised Rate
Block 1 -0to 10,000 Gal 2.11 2.24 |Residential sewer usage is capped at 2.16 2.31
Block 2 - 10,001 to 20,000 Gal 2,11 2.24 10,000 gallons per month. There is
Block 3 - 20,001 to 30,000 Gal 2.54 2.79 {no cap on commercial sewer usage.
Block 4 - All Over 30,000 Gal 3.38 3.72

The District’s Commission adopted this rate increase at the June Commission Meeting on June 28, 2024.

At its July 26, 2023 Commission Meeting, the District’s Commission adopted a resolution to petition
Beaufort County Council to authorize the issuance of an amount not exceeding $23,000,000 of general
obligation bonds. On October 9, 2023, after all required readings and a public hearing, Beaufort County
Council formally approved an ordinance approving the issuance. This authorization is valid for five years
and need not be spent in its entirety. The District anticipates utilizing this authorization as follows:

e On August 30, 2024, the District signed a general obligation promissory note to the South Carolina
Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority in an amount not to exceed $2,589,929 to defray the
costs of planning and engineering on the expansion of the RO Water Treatment Plant from 4 mgd
to 6 mgd, the construction of a second Aquifer Storage and Recovery well, and the replacement of
the Leg O Mutton booster pump station. The note bears interest at a rate of 2.10% per annum.
Principal and interest payments of $39,731 are expected to begin quarterly on May 1, 2025 through
February 1, 2045.

e The District’s Commission approved a resolution to issue general obligation bonds in an amount
not to exceed $20,500,000 at its May 22, 2024 Commission meeting. The District anticipates
closing on $20,400,000 of Series 2024B general obligation bonds as a bank loan for the purposes
of expanding of the RO Water Treatment Plant from 4 mgd to 6 mgd, constructing a second
Aquifer Storage and Recovery well, and replacing the Leg O Mutton booster pump station, and
various other water and wastewater system improvements on November 5, 2024. Interest is
anticipated to be payable on the bonds semi-annually at 3.65% per annum. Principal payments are
anticipated to be due annually on May 1st of each year beginning in 2028 through 2044.
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FINAL COMMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

Continued high-end development and the recent real estate boom has compounded the growing need for
workforce housing in the District’s service area. While there are still areas of the District’s service area
that contain potential for development or redevelopment and the District expects to continue to see some
growth in the coming years, the District recognizes that the current rate of growth is likely unsustainable
in the long term due to the limited land space of its service area. Conservatism is maintained during the
budget process so as not to rely on development that may not occur to fund operations. The District also
recognizes that the coming years may bring staffing challenges due to the lack of workforce housing in
the area. This issue is expected to be heightened when the U.S. 278 bridge replacement project takes off
which is expected to negatively affect commuting for off-island workers.

The recent growth combined with the culmination of the District’s long range water planning studies has
identified a need to expand the District’s water supply assets over the next five years to obtain additional
capacity and disaster resiliency. The District was pleased to receive the $10,000,000 SCIIP grant and the
$1,000,000 ARPA allocation from Beaufort County which will provide a great resource to address these
issues. However, the District also recognizes additional local funding will be required to complete these
projects and is planning to utilize its available GO debt capacity in the coming year to assist in meeting
these needs.

The continued effects of inflation, supply chain issues, and vendor availability remain significant
challenges for the District. As an asset intensive organization with aging infrastructure, large price
increases and limited availability of parts and vendors are expected to continue to affect the District’s
ability to preventatively maintain its system.

The U.S. 278 bridge replacement project will also factor into the District’s upcoming financial planning
as the District expects to be required to relocate its main 24” purchased water pipeline. While this project
is anticipated to be substantially covered cost-wise by the SCDOT in accordance with state utility
relocation law, the District may need to expend engineering expenses up front and await reimbursement.
There is also a risk that the pipeline could be damaged in preliminary work before the project is declared
which would have a serious negative impact on the District operationally and financially. This line is a
single point of failure. Without access to purchase wholesale water, the District would be unable to meet
system pressure requirements; costs and lost revenue would be substantial. The District currently holds
approximately one year’s worth of operating expenses in its operating reserve, which is the upper end of
its target balance. This would be used as a buffer in the event of an unanticipated failure.

Consideration of these risks as well as the overall industry and economic environment are considered
during the District’s annual budget and cost of service analysis to ensure that the PSD is poised to meet
these challenges while providing its customers with a high level of customer service. The District always
aims to take a conservative view towards budgeting to ensure long term sustainability while also
maintaining a sensitivity towards the need to keep service affordable for the District’s customer base
which includes many of Hilton Head Island’s full time workforce population.

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers and creditors with a general overview
of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the District’s Finance
Manager, P.O. Box 21264, Hilton Head Island, SC 29925. The District’s website can be found at
www.hhpsd.com.
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For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023
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AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

June 30
2024 2023
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents Available for Operations $ 13,876,252 $§ 12,392,680
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Banks (Restricted) 1,705,042 1,875,769
Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by Beaufort County Treasurer (Restricted) 624,037 320,827
Accounts Receivable - Trade, net 1,885,583 1,886,393
Accounts Receivable - Connection Grants 126,793 39,310
Lease Receivable, due within one year 465,316 328,120
Sewer and Capacity Assessments, due within one year 208,595 225,629
Inventory 495,589 585,326
Prepaid Expenses 344,453 323,328
Total current assets 19,731,660 17,977,382
Noncurrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Nondepreciable Assets 3,405,985 2,349,182
Depreciable Assets, net 61,870,342 63,767,798
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 65,276,327 66,116,980
Lease Receivable, due after one year 1,148,419 761,196
Sewer and Capacity Assessments, due after one year 1,897,615 1,997,356
Total Noncurrent Assets 68,322,361 68,875,532
Total Assets 88,054,021 86,852,914
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 722,277 766,566
Deferred Charges from Debt Refunding 209,177 534,639
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 931,454 1,301,205
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 88,985,475 $ 88,154,119

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

June 30
Liabilities 2024 2023
Current Liabilities
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable-Trade $ 410,247 $ 362,886
Accounts Payable-Construction 173,974 299,288
Finance Purchase Liabilities, due within one year 80,921 36,005
Customer Deposits 184,696 237,368
Unearned Revenue 15,210 15,658
Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities 575,379 423,900
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets 1,440,427 1,375,105
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Interest Payable 27,255 34,906
Unearned Grant Revenue 1,000,000 1,000,000
Notes Payable, due within one year 144,020 142,589
Bonds Payable, due within one year 3,390,233 3,551,171
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 4,561,508 4,728,666
Total Current Liabilities 6,001,935 6,103,771
Noncurrent Liabilities
Finance Purchase Liabilites, due after one year - 80,921
Notes Payable, due after one year 1,642,562 1,786,583
Bonds Payable, due after one year 13,729,862 17,120,094
Net Pension Liability 5,081,463 5,213,073
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 20,453,887 24,200,671
Total Liabilities 26,455,822 30,304,442
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 161,707 186,965
Deferred Inflows Related to Lease Revenue 1,823,724 1,280,617
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,985,431 1,467,582
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 28,441,253 31,772,024
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 46,323,932 43,634,968
Restricted for Debt Service and Grants 1,301,824 1,161,690
Unrestricted 12,918,466 11,585,437
Total Net Position 60,544,222 56,382,095
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources & Net Position $ 88,985,475 $ 88,154,119

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSE

C SERVICE DISTRICT

SAND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2024 2023
Operating Revenues
Water Service $ 8,020,935 $ 7,774,846
Sewer Service 6,295,468 6,051,117
Water Tap In Fees 159,173 239,996
Sewer Connection Fees 420,091 344,630
Golf Course Irrigation 218,906 167,553
Service Fees 20,908 19,913
Disaster & Insurance Recovery, net 6,000 1,700
Other Operating Revenues 29,628 90,288
Total Operating Revenues 15,171,109 14,690,043
Departmental Expenses
Payroll & Related Expenses 4,669,436 4,251,569
Administrative Expenses 1,028,890 1,091,603
Operations Expenses 3,284,179 3,259,419
Maintenance Expenses 1,505,505 1,409,057
Purchased Water 1,061,550 1,004,551
Water Tap In Expenses 109,607 173,700
Sewer Connection Expenses 402,999 325,863
Professional Fees 126,256 287,305
Total Departmental Expenses 12,188,422 11,803,067
Depreciation 5,215,476 5,140,534
Total Operating Expenses 17,403,898 16,943,601
Operating Income (Loss) (2,232,789) (2,253,558)
Non-operating Revenues
Property Taxes - G.O. Debt Levy 1,793,252 1,583,535
Property Taxes - Operations Levy 1,305,973 1,155,522
Rental Income 87,674 86,094
Tower Lease Income 598,399 584,104
Interest Income - Leases 32,368 33,092
Interest Income 900,541 604,314
Gain on Disposal of Assets 34,205 49,240
Total Non-operating Revenues $ 4,752,412 $ 4,095,901

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

34



STATEMENTS OF REVE , EXPENSES 'NET POSITION (continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2024 2023

Non-operating Expenses

Interest Expense $ 277,038 $ 312,317
Bond Defeasance Amortization 325,462 325,462
Bond Issuance Costs - 37,500
Total Non-operating Expenses 602,500 675,279
Total Non-operating Revenues/Expenses 4,149,912 3,420,622
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position, Before Capital Contributions $ 1,917,123 $ 1,167,064
Water Capacity Fee $ 581,400 § 93,260
Sewer Capacity Fee 800,432 263,260
Developer Contributions of Systems 863,172 126,046
Total Capital Contributions 2,245,004 482,566
Change in net position 4,162,127 1,649,630
Net position, beginning of the year 56,382,095 54,732,465
Net position, end of year $ 60,544,222 $ 56,382,095

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 35



FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2024 2023
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 15,002,135 §$ 14,333,372
Cash Paid to Suppliers (8,861,278) (9,101,296)
Cash Paid to Employees (3,172,271) (2,963,123)
Other Revenues 29,628 91,988
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,998,214 2,360,941
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income 900,541 604,314
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 900,541 604,314
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Property Taxes Collected - Operations Levy 1,305,973 1,155,522
Rental and Tower Lease Income 736,682 663,218
Sewer Assessments Collected 163,281 149,378
Sewer Assessments Financed (120,362) (53,549)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 2,085,574 1,914,569
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capacity Fees 1,381,832 223,480
Capacity Fee Assessments 73,856 72,806
Property Taxes Collected - G.O. Debt Levy 1,793,252 1,583,535
Interest Paid (284,689) (314,408)
Proceeds from Series 2023 FFA Bonds - 235,000
Bond Issuance Costs - (37,500)
Principal Payments on Bonds and Notes (3,729,765) (3,647,273)
Proceeds from Restricted Capital Grant - 1,000,000
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 50,826 49,240
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (3,653,585) (2,960,083)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (4,368,273) (3,795,203)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 1,616,056 1,084,621
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year $ 14,589,276 $ 13,504,655
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 16,205,331 $ 14,589,276
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 36



HILTON:-HEAD NO.'1 PUBLICISERVICE DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW (continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2024 2023
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss $ (2,232,789) $ (2,253,558)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 5,215,476 5,140,534
Decrease in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - (8,000)
Difference Between GASB 68 and Actual Contributions (112,579) (58,447)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable - Trade 809 (200,820)
Accounts Receivable - Project SAFE (87,483) (39,310)
Inventories 89,737 (37,307)
Prepaid Assets (21,125) (69,421)
Accounts Payable - Trade 47,361 (125,739)
Customer Deposits (52,672) (16,552)
Other Accrued Liabilities 151,479 29,561
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,998,214 $§ 2,360,941
Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Available for Operations
Demand Deposits (interest and non-interest bearing) $ 1,657,454 § 1,149,379
SC Local Government Investment Pool 12,135,350 $ 11,232,195
Held by Beaufort County Treasurer 83,448 11,106
Total Available for Operations $ 13,876,252 $ 12,392,680
Restricted
Cash in Banks $ 705,042 % 875,769
SC Local Government Investment Pool 1,000,000 1,000,000
Held by Beaufort County Treasurer 624,037 320,827
Total Restricted $ 2,329,079 § 2,196,596
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 16,205,331 $ 14,589,276
Supplemental Disclosures
Noncash Financing Activities:
Developer Contribution of Systems $ 853,392 $ 126,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies

General
The Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District was established in November of 1969. Its purpose is to
provide water and sewer services to the public within designated boundaries on Hilton Head Island, SC.

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies are
described below:

Fund accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of a single proprietary fund type - enterprise fund.
The fund is accounted for by a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, and revenues and expenses. The fund is
established to account for water and sewer operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent is to provide goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, financed and recovered primarily through user charges.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with
the District’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for
sales and services provided to them. The District also recognizes as operating income tap fees, and other
revenues related to operations. Operating expenses include the costs of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Basis of accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
The proprietary fund type is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when the related
liabilities are incurred.

Property taxes and assessment income are recognized when collected by the Beaufort County Treasurer.
Fees and payments due under developer contracts are treated as capital contributions and are recognized in

the period received. Tap fees and connection fees are recognized as income in the period the customer
connects to the system or in the period a related front foot assessment is finalized.
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Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include restricted and
unrestricted cash on hand or on deposit, certain bank money market funds, interests in the South Carolina
Local Government Investment Pool, repurchase agreements, and investments with an original maturity of
three months or less.

Accounts receivable, allowance for doubtful accounts and bad debt expense

The District carries accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts which is based on
historical collection experience and approximates 0.12% and 0.13% of water and sewer revenues for the
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Management charges off to expense any balances that
are determined to be uncollectible. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the balance of the allowance for doubtful
accounts was $20,000. Bad debt expense for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $10,150 and
$1,523, respectively.

Inventory and prepaid items

Inventory consists of supplies and is recorded as an expense at cost when consumed on a weighted average
cost basis. Certain payments to vendors reflect expenses applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaids. Prepaid expenses are accounted for using the consumption method.

Leases

The District is a lessor for several noncancellable leases for space on its water tower facilities to various
cellular phone companies for the attachment of antennae. The District recognizes a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources in its financial statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the District initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of
payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by
the principal portion of lease payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as
the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease
commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over the life
of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments include how the District determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount
the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts.

e The District uses the annual escalator in the lease contract as the discount rate for leases.
e The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in the
measurement of the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the lessee.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will

remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected
to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.
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Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost when constructed or purchased. The District capitalizes
assets, or groups of similar assets, that have a useful life of at least three years and a cost over $5,000. Assets
contributed to the District by developers are capitalized at the developers' cost to construct the water and
sewer system. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in
a service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition cost rather than fair value. Betterments and
improvements over $5,000 which extend the useful life of an asset at least three years are capitalized and
depreciated over their estimated useful life. Depreciation of all property, plant and equipment is provided
by the straight-line method and estimated useful lives of assets in service are as follows:

Useful Life
Description (in Years)
Waterworks System 5-50
Sewer Collection System 5-50
Office Building and Improvements 5-40
Wastewater Treatment Plant 5-50
Transportation Equipment 5
Operations Equipment 3-15
Office Furniture and Equipment 3-15

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Compensated absences

The District accounts for compensated absences by accruing a liability for future absences according to the
guidelines of GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, which amounted to
$293,430 and $237,232 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. These balances are expected to be used
within one year and are therefore included in Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the South
Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and additions to/deductions from SCRS’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SCRS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other obligations financed by the District are reported as liabilities in the statements of
net position. If material, bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred refunding costs, are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium
or discount. Issuance costs are expensed in the year incurred.
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Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position contains a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense) until then. The District has deferred charges from debt refunding, which qualify for
reporting in this category. Deferred charges on refundings and advance refundings result from the difference
in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The District has deferred outflows related to
pensions. For contributions to the pension plan subsequent to the measurement date, these contributions
will be a reduction of the collective net pension liability in the next reporting period. For deferred outflows
related to pensions for the net difference between expected and actual experience, the outflows are
amortized over the expected remaining service lives of plan members. Deferred outflows related to pensions
for the net difference between projected and actual investment earnings are amortized over a five-year
period. Deferred outflows related to changes in pension assumptions are amortized over the expected
remaining service lives of plan members. Deferred outflows related to changes in proportionate share of
plan contributions are amortized over the expected remaining service lives of plan members.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position contains a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District has deferred inflows related to pensions. Deferred inflows
related to pensions for the net difference between projected and actual investment earnings are amortized
over a five-year period. Deferred inflows related to pensions for the net difference between expected and
actual experience are amortized over the expected remaining service lives of plan members. Deferred
inflows related to changes in proportionate share of plan contributions are amortized over the expected
remaining service lives of plan members. The District also has deferred inflows related to lease revenue
which are amortized over the remaining term of the lease.

Net position
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses and

contributions of capital. Net position is classified in the following three components: net investment in
capital assets; restricted for debt service and grants; and unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets
consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is
attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of those assets; debt related to unspent
proceeds of other restricted cash and investments is excluded from the determination. Restricted for debt
service and grants consists of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such
as lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal
mandates, less any related liabilities. Unrestricted consists of all other net position not included in the above
categories.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the District’s
policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward unrestricted resources.
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Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Claims and judgements
These events and obligations are recorded on the accrual basis, when the event occurs, and the obligation
arises.

Reclassification
Certain accounts and amounts in the June 30, 2023 financial statements have been reclassified in order to
conform to the June 30, 2024 presentation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Date of Management’s Review

In preparing the financial statements, the District has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through October 22, 2024, the date that the financial statements were available to
be issued.

Note 2 - Cash, cash equivalents and investments

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the bank balances of the District’s demand deposit accounts totaled $1,731,625
and $1,447,016, respectively, and had a carrying balance totaling $1,657,054 and $1,148,979 respectively.
A sum of $400 is held in petty cash funds of the District. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, all investments of
the District were redeemable on demand without penalty and are, therefore, classified as cash and cash
equivalents.

Investment Policy

The District’s cash management program seeks to achieve three objectives with regards to investments:
safety of principal, adequate liquidity to meet daily cash needs, and a reasonable yield commensurate with
the preservation of principal and liquidity. The following investment strategy has been designed to
accomplish these objectives:

1. The District will invest in very creditworthy, highly liquid investments with maturities of one
year or less and in intermediate-term securities of high credit quality with maturities no greater
than five years. The District will only invest in those securities specified under South Carolina
Code Section 6-5-10. These include collateralized money market accounts and certificates of
deposits, U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, high quality obligations of certain U.S. agencies and
instrumentalities, and the local government investment pool.

2. The primary objective of all District investment activity is the preservation of capital and safety
of principal. Each investment transaction shall ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether
from security default, sale of instruments prior to maturity or erosion of market value.
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Note 2 - Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

Investment Policy (continued)
3. At all times, the District shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet cash flow requirements by
matching investment maturities with forecasted cash flow requirements, investing in securities
with active secondary markets, and maintaining appropriate portfolio diversification.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a financial institution, the District’s
deposits may not be returned. The District’s policy is to request collateral for all bank deposits in excess of
amounts of up to $250,000 per custodian with major banking institutions which are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. As of June 30, 2024, the District’s deposits were fully collateralized and
thus were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a
nationally recognized rating organization. The District’s investment policy limits investments to those that
are very creditworthy. Investments at June 30, 2024 and 2023, were respectively comprised of $13,135,350
and $12,232,195 in funds held with the South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool (SCLGIP) and
$705,042 and $875,769 restricted funds for debt service. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District’s restricted
funds for debt service were all in Standard and Poor’s AAAm rated money market funds collateralized by
U.S. Treasury obligations.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s investment in a
single issuer. The District’s investment policy does not address this risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of investments.
There may be times when the District has more or less of its funds in particular investment vehicles due to
cash flow needs, prevailing market conditions, and other factors. The cash flow needs of the District along
with prevailing market conditions serve as a general guideline for making investment decisions. In this way,
the portfolio will be able to take advantage of rising interest rates by re-investing maturing securities at
higher yields. In falling rate environments, it will profit from having investments that were made at higher
rates. Following this discipline ensures that the District will always have sufficient cash available for daily
needs, preserve its principal, and earn a competitive yield without assuming unacceptable risks.

SCLGIP investments are invested with the South Carolina State Treasurer’s Office, which established the
South Carolina Pool pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code. The Pool is an investment trust
fund, in which public monies in excess of current needs, which are under the custody of any city treasurer
or any governing body of a political subdivision of the State, may be deposited. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment
Pools and as amended by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, investments
are carried at fair value determined annually based upon quoted market prices for identical or similar
investments. The total fair value of the Pool is apportioned to the entities with funds invested on an equal
basis for each share owned, which are acquired at a cost of $1.00. Funds may be deposited by Pool
participants at any time and may be withdrawn upon 24 hours’ notice. Financial statements for the Pool
may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Treasurer, Local Government Investment Pool, P.O.
Box 11778, Columbia, SC 29211-1960. The Pool is not rated.
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Note 3 - Cash held by the Beaufort County Treasurer

Cash held by the Beaufort County Treasurer (the Treasurer) includes any remaining proceeds of general
obligation bond issues, property tax collections and interest earned on monies held by the Treasurer. The
deposits are a pool of funds invested by the pool for the entities which receive property taxes from the
Treasurer. As such, collateral is not identified for each deposit, but rather for the fund as a whole. The pool
is not rated. These deposits are collateralized by cash or governmental agency securities, which are fully
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the federal government. Additional information on Beaufort
County’s cash and investment policies and holdings can be found in their annual financial report which is
available at www.bcgov.net. The funds will be used as follows:

As of June 30,
2024 2023
Unrestricted cash - Available for general operating purposes $ 83,448 §$ 11,106
Restricted cash - Bond prinicipal retirement and interest payments 624,037 320,827

$ 707,485 § 331,933

Note 4 - Restricted assets

A reserve fund for debt service is mandated by bond covenants. The debt service funds are used to segregate
resources accumulated for debt service payments coming due over the next twelve months. At June 30,
2024 and 2023, the debt service reserves totaled $1,329,079 and $1,196,596, respectively. The District also
holds funds, as mandated by bond covenants, for operation and maintenance, and depreciation and
contingencies. The operating and maintenance fund is intended to provide for the payment of the operations
and maintenance expenses. The depreciation and contingency fund is intended to provide a reasonable
reserve for the depreciation of the system, for contingencies and for improvements, betterment and
extensions of the system.

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District also held $1,000,000 in cash restricted for grants. During the year
ended June 30, 2023, the District was awarded a $1,000,000 subrecipient allocation of Beaufort County’s
ARPA funding to be spent on a booster pump station at the District’s Leg-O-Mutton ground storage tank
and an emergency generator at the District’s RO plant. The District is spending its own funds on engineering
and bid preparation for these projects and will spend the restricted funds on the actual construction costs
that have been bid in accordance with ARPA guidelines in upcoming fiscal years. Accordingly, these funds
are recorded as Unearned Grant Revenue on the Statements of Net Position at June 30, 2024 and 2023.
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JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 5 - Accounts receivable

Current trade accounts receivable includes the following as of June 30:

2024 2023
Receivables from customers $ 1,098,721 $ 1,192,483
Unbilled receivables from customers 751,478 664,991
Other receivables 35,384 28,919

$§ 1,885,583 § 1,886,393

Receivables from customers are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $20,000 as of June
30, 2024 and 2023.

Accounts Receivable — Connection Grants represent amounts due from the Community Foundation of the
Lowecountry (CFLC) which operates programs called the Water Fund and Project SAFE that provide grants
for low- and moderate-income homeowners to connect to the public water and sewer system, respectively.
The District provides funding to the CFLC in the form of Bucks for a Better Island, a program that rounds
up customer bills to the next highest dollar. This account also represents amount due from the Town of
Hilton Head which is operating a program to provide sewer connection grants for low- and moderate-
income renters and homeowners that may not fully qualify for Project-SAFE to connection to the public
sewer system.

Note 6 - Sewer assessments

The District has constructed various sewer collection systems, the cost of which is to be repaid by annual
sewer assessments collected by the Beaufort County treasurer from the property owners that benefited from
these systems. These assessments are being collected annually and are expected to be paid in full beginning
2016 through 2044. Assessments receivable totaled $2,106,210 and $2,222,985 as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively. A portion of the annual receipts is recognized as interest income each year. For the
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, $60,360 and $58,773, respectively, of the assessments collected was
recognized as interest income.
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Note 7 - Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Waterworks System
Sewer Collection System
Office Building and Improvements
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Transportation Equipment
Operations Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Waterworks System
Sewer Collection System
Office Building and Improvements
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Transportation Equipment
Operations Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total assets being depreciated

Year End Totals

June 30,2023  Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2024
$ 1,299,193 $ - - $ - $ 1,299,193
1,049,989 1,446,671 - (389,868) 2,106,792
2,349,182 1,446,671 - (389,868) 3,405,985
64,629,846 1,079,193 - 19,139 65,728,178
55,067,932 943,982 (256,841) 30,000 55,785,073
4,504,119 - (22,871) - 4,481,248
36,971,939 546,524 340,729 37,859,192
1,428,065 231,893 (263,636) - 1,396,322
2,134,929 119,050 (171,819) - 2,082,160
672,988 24,130 (107,792) - 589,326
165,409,818 2,944,772 (822,959) 389,868 167,921,499
(42,458979)  (2,048,383) - - (44,507,362)
(27,010,272)  (1,135,290) 256,341 - (27,888,721)
(2,640,351) (106,305) 14,581 - (2,732,075)
(26,237,833)  (1,670,203) - - (27,908,036)
(1,031,950) (139,548) 263,636 - (907,862)
(1,624,720) (103,850) 163,489 - (1,565,081)
(637,915) (11,897) 107,792 - (542,020)
(101,642,020)  (5,215,476) 806,339 - (106,051,157)
63,767,798  (2,270,704) (16,620) 389,868 61,870,342

$ 66,116980 $ (824,033) $ (16,620) $ - $ 65,276,327
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Note 7 - Property, plant, equipment and depreciation (continued)

June 30,2022  Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2023

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 1,299,193 § - $ = $ - $ 1,299,193
Construction in progress 37,206 1,052,189 - (39.406) 1,049,989
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,336,399 1,052,189 - (39,406) 2,349,182

Capital assets being depreciated:

Waterworks System 64,210,835 379,605 - 39,406 64,629,846
Sewer Collection System 54,256,168 811,764 - - 55,067,932
Office Building and Improvements 4,391,129 112,990 - - 4,504,119
Wastewater Treatment Plant 36,279,760 694,040 (1,861) - 36,971,939
Transportation Equipment 1,341,156 211,483 (124,574) - 1,428,065
Operations Equipment 2,082,690 57,741 (5,502) - 2,134,929
Office Furniture and Equipment 682,901 18,227 (28,140) - 672,988
Total capital assets being depreciated 163,244,639 2,285,850 (160,077) 39,406 165409818
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Waterworks System (40,417,763)  (2,041,216) - - (42,458,979)
Sewer Collection System (24,354,404)  (2,655,868) - - (27,010,272)
Office Building and Improvements (2,537,674) (102,677) - - (2,640,351)
Wastewater Treatment Plant (26,155,424) (84,270) 1,861 - (26,237,833)
Transportation Equipment (1,008,782) (147,742) 124,574 - (1,031,950)
Operations Equipment (1,531,162) (99,060) 5,502 - (1,624,720)
Office Furniture and Equipment (656,354) (9,701) 28,140 - (637,915)
Total accumulated depreciation (96,661,563)  (5,140,534) 160,077 - (101,642,020)
Total assets being depreciated 66,583,076  (2,854,684) - 39,406 63,767,798
Year End Totals $ 67919475 $(1,802,495) $ - $ - $ 66,116,980

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $5,215,476 and $5,140,534,
respectively. Transfers relate to construction in progress completed during the year.

48



PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL'STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Note 8 - Long-term obligations

Long-term debt includes various finance purchase leases, bonds, loans, and notes payable that have been
issued or approved by the District for the improvement or acquisition of water and wastewater
infrastructure, equipment, and defeasance of outstanding debt. General covenants, along with debt service
requirements, are disclosed below. See Note 4, restricted assets, for a discussion of cash restricted for debt
service.

Revenue bonds and State Revolving Loans payable are collateralized by an irrevocable pledge of income
and revenues derived from the operations of the systems and are secured by a lien upon those revenues. The
District’s debt instruments contain various covenants and restrictions, which among other things, require the
District to provide certain financial information and meet certain financial tests. The District’s bond resolutions
require that the “net earnings” (as defined in the bond resolution) are equal to at least 120% of the annual
principal and interest requirements of all series of revenue parity bonds outstanding in that year. For the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District’s “net earnings” were 303% and 243%, respectively, of its annual
principal and interest requirements of all series of revenue parity bonds.

General Obligation Bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the District and are
generally limited to 8% of the assessed value of all taxable property of the District.

During 2021, the District entered into several finance purchase agreements for vehicles with payment terms of
four years with interest rates varying from 2.69% to 2.79%, secured by the underlying vehicles. As of June 30,
2024 and 2023, the assets acquired through finance purchase in the amount of $203,133 are included in
transportation equipment with accumulated amortization of $134,523 and $94,511, respectively, included in
accumulated depreciation on the statement of net position. Amortization expense totaled $40,011 for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is included in depreciation expense on the statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position.

Each of the District’s outstanding debt issues are either direct borrowings/placements (“DBP”) or publicly traded
(“PT”). The District’s DBP debt generally contain provisions that in an event of default, (a) outstanding amounts
can become immediately due if the District is unable to make a payment and (b) lender could exercise its option
to demand return of the financed assets.

Notes payable — Revenue/Other — DBP

On July 23, 2014, the District signed a promissory note to the South Carolina Water Quality Revolving
Fund Authority. The total proceeds from this note were $2,921,430. Proceeds were used to defray the costs
of installing and implementing an Advanced Meter Reading Infrastructure. The note bears interest at a rate
of 1.00% per annum. Principal and interest of $40,337 are payable quarterly beginning April 1, 2016
through January 1, 2036. The loan had a balance of $1,786,582 and $1,929,172 at June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.
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Note 8 - Long-term obligations (continued)

Bonds payable — Revenue — DBP

On August 21, 2017, the District issued $515,000 of Series 2017A revenue bonds as a bank loan for
purposes of funding sewer connections in certain previously unserved areas of the District. Interest on the
bonds is payable semi-annually at 2.69% per annum. Principal payments are due annually on June 1st of
each year beginning in 2018 and continuing through 2032. The bonds will be repaid by annual assessments
to the owners in the areas that were connected over a 20-year period and will be collected by the county
treasurer. The 2017A revenue bonds outstanding amounted to $298,244 and $331,265 at June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

On November 2, 2020, the District issued $14,925,000 of Series 2020B revenue refunding bonds as a bank
loan to take advantage of favorable interest rates and to restructure the payback period to reduce near term
revenue debt service requirements. Proceeds were used to currently refund the 2017 SRF loan, the Series
2014A revenue bonds, the 2015A revenue refunding bonds, the 2015B revenue refunding bonds, and the
Series 2020 revenue bonds. Proceeds in the amount of $14,822,366 along with $1,267,584 of the District’s
accrued debt service funds were used to pay the principal, accrued interest, and redemption premiums due
on the refunded issuances as of November 2, 2020. The remaining proceeds were used to pay issuance
costs. The refunding transaction resulted in a deferred amount on the refunding of $1,001,304, which was
recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized over the 4.58 remaining life of the old
bonds. The unamortized balance at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $200,261 and $418,727, respectively. As
a result of the refunding, the District increased its total debt service requirements by $590,721, which
resulted in an economic loss (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old
and new debt) of $108,592. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually at 1.21% per annum. Principal
payments are due annually on June 1st of each year beginning in 2021 and continuing through 2030. The
Series 2020B revenue refunding bonds outstanding amounted to $11,280,000 and $12,505,000 at June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

On November 2, 2020, the District issued $4,170,000 of Series 2020C revenue refunding bonds as a bank
loan to take advantage of favorable interest rates and to restructure the payback period to reduce near term
revenue debt service requirements. Proceeds were used to advance refund the Series 2012A revenue
refunding bonds and the Series 2012B revenue bonds. Proceeds in the amount of $4,137,349 along with
$28,001 of the District’s accrued debt service funds were used to purchase funds within an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments on the previously existing debt issues until the debt
is called or defeased. The remaining proceeds were used to pay issuance costs. The 2020C advance
refunding met the requirements of an in-substance debt defeasance; accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the District’s financial statements. At June 30,
2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance of the 2012A defeased bonds was $2,730,000 and $2,855,000,
respectively, and the outstanding balance of the 2012B defeased bonds was $815,000 for both years. The
refunding transaction resulted in a deferred amount on the refunding of $401,233, which was recorded as a
deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized over the 3.75 remaining life of the old bonds. The
unamortized balance at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $8,916 and $115,912, respectively. As a result of the
refunding, the District increased its total debt service requirements by $101,037, which resulted in an
economic loss (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt)
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Note 8 - Long-term obligations (continued)

Bonds payable — Revenue — DBP (continued)

of $134,165. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually at 0.94% per annum. Principal payments are
due annually on June 1st of each year beginning in 2021 and continuing through 2025. The Series 2020C
revenue refunding bonds outstanding amounted to $850,000 and $1,690,000 at June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

On February 24, 2023, the District issued $235,000 of Series 2023 revenue bonds as a bank loan for
purposes of funding sewer connections in certain previously unserved areas of the District. Principal and
interest payments of $25,529 are due annually on June st of each year beginning in 2024 and continuing
through 2035. The bonds are to be repaid by annual assessments to the owners in the areas that were
connected over a 20-year period which will be collected by the county treasurer. The 2023 revenue bonds
outstanding amounted to $221,851 and $235,000 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Bonds payable — General Obligation — DBP

On November 2, 2020, the District issued $9,910,000 of general obligation refunding bonds as a bank loan
to take advantage of favorable interest rates. Proceeds were used to refund the 2008 SIRF GO loan, the
2008 SRF GO loan, the 2014 SRF GO loan, the 2007 GO bonds, the 2009 GO bonds, and the 2010 GO
bonds. Proceeds in the amount of $9,836,204 along with $467,616 of the District’s accrued debt service
funds were used to pay the principal, accrued interest, and redemption premiums due on the refunded
issuances as of November 2, 2020. The remaining proceeds were used to pay issuance costs. The refunding
transaction resulted in a deferred amount on the refunding of ($37,319), which was deemed immaterial to
amortize and was recorded as a reduction of bond defeasance amortization expense in the year of refunding.
As a result of the refunding, the District reduced its total debt service requirements by $837,279, which
resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old
and new debt) of $658,550. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually at 1.25% per annum. Principal
payments are due annually on May 1st of each year beginning in 2021 and continuing through 2028. The
2020 general obligation bonds outstanding amounted to $4,470,000 and $5,910,000 at June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

Maturities and debt service costs of finance purchase leases, bonds, and notes payable are as follows:

Direct Borrowing/Placement Finance Purchase
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 3,534,253 ' $ 234912 $ 80,921 § 2962 $ 3,853,048
2026 3,582,289 193,256 - - 3,775,545
2027 3,660,390 148,675 - - 3,809,065
2028 2,908,561 103,097 - - 3,011,658
2029 2,086,804 66,896 - - 2,153,700
2030 - 2034 2,830,313 82,013 - - 2,912,326
2035 - 2036 304,067 3,820 - - 307,887
Grand Total $ 18,906,677 $ 832,669 $ 80921 $ 2962 § 19,823,229
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Note 9 - Non-current liabilities

The non-current liability activity during fiscal years 2024 and 2023 was as follows:

June 30, June 30, Amounts due
2023 Additions Reductions 2024 within one year

Revenue bonds - DBP 14,761,265 - (2,111,169) 12,650,096 2,145233
GO bonds - DBP 5,910,000 - (1,440,000) 4,470,000 1,245,000
Notes payable - Revenue/other - DBP 1,929,172 - (142,590) 1,786,582 144,020
Finance Purchase 116,925 - (36,005) 80,920 80,921
Net pension liability 5,213,073 - (131,610) 5,081,463 -
Subtotal $ 27930435 $ - $ (3,861,374) $ 24,069,061 $ 3,615,174
Less current portion (3,729,764) (3,615,174)
Noncurrent liabilities $ 24,200,671 $ 20,453,887

June 30, June 30, Amounts due

2022 Additions Reductions 2023 within one year

Revenue bonds - DBP 16,603,422 235,000 (2,077,157) 14,761,265 2,111,170
GO bonds - DBP 7,295,000 - (1,385,000) 5,910,000 1,440,000
Notes payable - Revenue/other - DBP 2,078,283 - (149,111) 1,929,172 142,589
Finance Purchase 152,931 - (36,006) 116,925 36,005
Net pension liability 4,767,968 445,105 - 5,213,073 -
Subtotal $ 30,897,604 $ 680,105 $ (3,647274) $ 27930435 $ 3,729,764
Less current portion (3,647,273) (3,729,764)
Noncurrent liabilities $ 27,250,331 $ 24,200,671

Note 10 - Economic dependence

The District has a service area that is located within the geographic boundaries of Hilton Head Island, South
Carolina. A change in the overall economic conditions of this geographic area may have a significant
influence upon the operating results of the District.

Note 11 - Lease arrangements

The District leases space on its water tower facilities to various cellular phone companies for attachment of
antennae with agreements ranging from one years to ten years with interest rates between 3% and 5%. The
District recognized $630,767 and $617,196 of revenue for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, including lease revenue of $598,399 and $584,104, respectively, and interest revenue of
$32,368 and 33,092, respectively. Principal and interest payments due under non-cancellable terms are as
follows:
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Years ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 465,316 34,039 499,355
2026 436,300 34,453 470,753
2027 277,833 21,363 299,196
2028 241,029 13,028 254,057
2029 147,653 5,798 153,451
2030 45,604 1,368 46,972
Grand Total 1,613,735 110,049 1,723,784

The District is also currently renting office space and land use to third parties. These agreements have
clauses that allow either party to cancel without cause with less than a year’s notice. Rental income in
connection with these arrangements was $87,674 and $86,094 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Note 12 - Risk Management, disaster recovery, and insurance recoveries

The District is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; job related injuries or illnesses to employees; natural disasters and employee health
and accidents. To insure against casualty risks the Authority is a member of the State of South Carolina
Insurance Reserve Fund (SC IRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and insurance program for local governments in South Carolina.

The District acquires insurance from the State Accident Fund for job related injury and illness (Workers’
Compensation) to its employees. Workers’ Compensation is insured under a retrospectively rated policy
where premiums paid are estimated throughout the year and adjusted subsequent to the policy period based
on actual experience. Medical insurance coverage, encompassing health, dental, life and other medical
benefits to employees and their dependents, was obtained via the State’s group insurance program.

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year except that the SC IRF
discontinued its coverage of underground lines during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The District was
not able to find a comparable policy so it will be self-funding damage to these assets going forward. No
settlements have exceeded insurance coverage for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. During
2024 and 2023, the District did not experience any material uninsured claims. Accordingly, there was no
liability or expense recorded for other actual claims and management does not believe any provision for
unasserted claims is necessary.
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Note 12 - Risk Management, disaster recovery, and insurance recoveries (continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, $21,316 and $9,171, respectively, was received for non-
disaster related insurance recoveries of which $15,316, and $7,471, respectively, were offset against the
related repair expense. The remaining $6,000 and $1,700 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, is included in disaster and insurance recovery income on the statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position as the related asset replacement was not specifically identifiable to remove from
the District’s capital asset records.

Note 13 - Construction and development commitments

Policy

The District has financed a portion of its expansion through direct charges to developers and through
governmental grants. Developers install the systems within a given area and/or contribute toward treatment
plant or water production facilities in exchange for a portion of the capacity. All systems contributed must
be approved by the District and are contributed, generally without cost to the District, once they are
completed and acceptable for use.

Regulatory mandates

The District, as well as some other water authorities on Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, has entered
into contracts for additional water supply sources to meet its future needs due to restrictions placed on the
District by the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control. The restrictions and
contract for water supply have a significant financial impact on the District. During the year June 30, 2015,
the District signed its current agreement with Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority (BJWSA) to
provide an additional water supply for the District's service area. Since completion of the water supply
construction, the District is required under the agreement to purchase a minimum of 1 million gallons of
water per day, based upon BJWSA's operation and maintenance cost for providing the water. Purchases
from BJWSA amounted to $1,078,633 and $1,053,370 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, of which $283,544 and $283,417, respectively, were injected into the ASR system. Water
withdrawn from the ASR system totaled $266,461 and $234,598 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

Expansion

As part of an overall funding plan for expansion of the District's present facilities, the District has entered
into various contracts with developers and others. Under these contracts, contributions of capital assets
valued at $863,172 and $126,046 and payments of capacity fees totaling $1,381,832 and $356,520 were
collected during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. All developer contract
commitments entered into prior to the current expansion program have been substantially met. The District
extended its boundaries to include those undeveloped areas on the northern part of the island under
developer contracts. The cost of expansion is allocated to the developers based upon capacity requested.
The infrastructure necessary to connect or serve the developers' property will be constructed by the
developers and contributed to the District at no cost to the District; these contributions totaled $853,392 and
$108,627 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and are included as part of developer
contributions of systems.
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Note 13 - Construction and development commitments (continued)

Expansion (continued)

In 2024 and 2023, the District entered into an agreement with the Town of Hilton Head Island whereby the
Town will reimburse the District one-half of the cost of installing new fire hydrants, up to $50,000 per year.
Reimbursements of $0 and $17,419 were received under these agreements during the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively, and are included as part of the developer contributions of systems. During the
year ended June 30, 2024, the Town also contributed $9,780 toward leasehold improvements as a part of
its rental agreement with the District for office space.

Construction commitments
The District had outstanding engineering and construction contract commitments of $2,738,422 and
$1,618,272 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Note 14 - Deferred compensation plans

Section 457/401(k) Plan

In April 2004, the District reactivated its Internal Revenue Code Section 457 retirement plan. All persons
employed by the District on March 31, 2004 became eligible employees. In May 2012, the District also
adopted a 401(k) Plan option. Under the Plan, all participants may make an elective deferral up to 100%
of their annual compensation subject to the Internal Revenue Code maximum contribution limitations. The
District makes a 6% matching contribution to each eligible participant’s account who has not chosen to
also participate in the South Carolina Retirement Plan. Employee contributions for the years ended June
30, 2024 and 2023 were $111,221 and $105,206, respectively. The matching contribution for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $6,471 and $6,240, respectively. Participants are immediately vested
in all contributions and earnings thereon.

South Carolina Retirement System
Effective April 2004, the District joined the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS).

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description. The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan, was established July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for teachers
and employees of the state and its political subdivisions. SCRS covers employees of state agencies, public
school districts, higher education institutions, other participating local subdivisions of government and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly at or after the 2012 general election.
PEBA issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.peba.sc.gov.
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Note 14 - Deferred compensation plans (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Membership. Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. As a
condition of employment, all employees are required to become members of the SCRS. However,
employees who worked for the District on the date of its admission into the Retirement System could elect
non-membership within six-months. An employee member of the system with an effective date of
membership prior to July 1, 2012 is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an
effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

Benefits Provided. Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does
not have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws.
Key elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final
compensation/current annual salary. A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five
or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service
regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55
with 25 years of service credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight
or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement
that the total of the member’s age and the member’s creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class
Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy
the five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available
to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program.

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser
of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1
of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement
provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July
1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit
had they not retired.

Contributions. Actuarial valuations are performed annually by an external consulting actuary to ensure
applicable contribution rates satisfy the funding parameters specified in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws. Under these provisions, SCRS contribution requirements must be sufficient to maintain an
amortization period for the financing of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) over a period that
does not exceed the number of years scheduled in state statute. Effective July 1,2017, employee rates were
increased to a capped rate of 9.00 percent for SCRS. The legislation also increased employer contribution
rates beginning July 1, 2017 for SCRS until reaching 18.41 percent. The legislation included a further
provision that if the scheduled contributions are not sufficient to meet the funding periods set in state statute,
the PEBA board would increase the employer contribution rates as necessary to meet the funding periods
set for the applicable year.
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General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)

Contributions (continued) Pension reform legislation modified statute such that the employer contribution
rates for SCRS to be further increased, not to exceed one-half of one percent in any one year, if necessary,
in order to improve the funding of the plans. The statute set rates intended to reduce the unfunded liability
of SCRS and PORS to the maximum amortization period of 20 years from 30 years over a ten-year schedule,
as determined by the annual actuarial valuations of the plan. Finally, under the revised statute, the
contribution rates for SCRS may not be decreased until the plans are at least 85 percent funded.

Required employee contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were 9.00%. Required
employer contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were 18.41% and 17.41%,
respectively. The District does not participate in the incidental death benefit program. The District's required
contribution for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $518,900 and $466,620, respectively. For
each of the years, the District contributed 100% of the required contribution to the SCRS.

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District reported a liability of $5,081,463 and $5,213,073, respectively, for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2022 rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30,
2023, using generally accepted actuarial principles. There was no legislation enacted during the 2023
legislative session that had a material change in the benefit provisions for the SCRS. The District’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2023 to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers for the
year ended June 30, 2023. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District’s proportion was 0.0210 percent and
0.0215 percent, respectively.
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Note 14 - Deferred compensation plans (Continued)

Deferred OQutflows/Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized pension expense of $406,321. At June 30, 2024,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 88,223 § 14,092
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments - 6,956
Changes in proportion and differences between

proportionate share of contributions 37,299 140,659
Assumption changes 77,855 -
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 518,900 -
Total $ 722,277 $ 161,707

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $408,173. At June 30, 2023,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 45292 $ 22,718
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 8,040 -
Changes in proportion and differences between

proportionate share of contributions 79,419 164,247
Assumption changes 167,195 -
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 466,620 -
Total $ 766,566 $ 186,965

The $518,900 and $466,620 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Note 14 - Deferred compensation plans (Continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued)

As of June 30, 2024 As of June 30, 2023
Deferred Outflows Deferred Outflows
Year ended June 30, (Inflows) of Resources Year ended June 30, (Inflows) of Resources
2024 $ 67,097 2023 $ 51,385
2025 $ (150,784) 2024 $ 73,941
2026 $ 128,339 2025 $ (148,299)
2027 $ (2,982) 2026 $ 135,954
2028 $ - 2027 $ -
Thereafter $ - Thereafter $ -

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of the ongoing plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension liability
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be
completed at least once in each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was most recently
issued for the period ending June 30, 2019.

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2023 was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actual cost method Entry age normal

Salary Increases 3.0% to 11.0% (varies by service), including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.00 %, including inflation

Inflation 2.25%

Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500 annually

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender. The base
mortality assumptions, the 2020 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2020 PRSC), was
developed using the Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future improvement
in mortality using 80% of Scale UMP projected from the year 2020. Assumptions used in the determination
of the June 30, 2023, total pension liability are as follows:

Former Job Class Males Females

Educators 2020 PRSC Males multiplied by 95% 2020 PRSC Females multiplied by 94%
General Employees and Members of the | 2020 PRSC Males multiplied by 97% 2020 PRSC Females multiplied by 107%
General Assembly

Public Safety and Firefighters 2020 PRSC Males multiplied by 127% 2020 PRSC Females multiplied by 107%
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Note 14 - Deferred compensation plans (Continued)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 20-year capital market
assumptions. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an arithmetic
building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market-based inputs. Expected
returns are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation
adopted at the beginning of the 2023 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected
inflation and is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7 percent assumed annual
investment rate of return used in the calculation of the total pension liability includes a 4.75 percent real
rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.

Fxpected Long Term Expected
Arithmetic Real Portfolio Real Rate of
Allocation/Exposure Policy Target Rate of Retuim Return
Public Equity 46.0% 6.62% 3.05%
Bonds 26.0% 0.31% 0.08%
Private Equity ' 9.0% 10.91% 0.98%
Private Debt' 7.0% 6.16% 0.43%
Real Assets 12.0%
Real Estate' 9.0% 6.41% 0.58%
Infrastructure’ 3.0% 6.62% 0.20%
Total Expected Return® 100.0% 5.31%
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%
Total Expected Nominal Return 7.56%

! Retirement System Investment Commission (RSIC) staff and consultant will notify the Commission if the collective exposure to
Private Equity, Private Debt and Private Real Assets exceeds 30 percent of the total plan assets.

2Portable Alpha Strategies, which are not included in the Policy Target, will be capped at 15% of total assets; hedge funds (including
all hedge funds used in portable alpha implementation) are capped at 15% of total assets.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS will
be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws.
Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
the projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6 percent) or 1-percentage
point higher (8 percent) than the current rate:

As of June 30, 2024 As of June 30, 2023
1% Current 1% 1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase Decrease Discount Increase
(6.0)% Rate (7.0)% (8.0)% (6.0)% Rate (7.0)% (8.0)%

District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $ 6,565,735 $ 5,081,463 § 3,847,788 § 6,683,803 $ 5,213,073 § 3,990,352

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PEBA financial report.

Payable to Plan
The District reported a payable of a $62,126 and $53,143 to PEBA as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, representing required employer and employee contributions for the month of June 2024 and

2023, respectively, for the SCRS. These amounts are included in Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities in the
statements of net position and were paid in July 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Note 15 - Net position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
outflows of liabilities. The net position amounts were as follows:

As of June 30,
2024 2023
Net investment in capital assets
Net property, plant and equipment in service 65,276,327 66,116,980
Less: Debt as disclosed in Notes 7 & 8 (18,987,598) (22,717,363)
Deferred amount on refunding, net 209,177 534,639
Accounts payable for capital assets (173,974) (299,288)
46,323,932 43,634,968
Restricted for debt service & capital grants
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,329,079 2,196,596
Less: Unearned Grant Revenue (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
Less: Accrued Debt Interest Payable (27,255) (34,906)
1,301,824 1,161,690
Unrestricted 12,918,466 11,585,437
Total net position $ 60,544,222 $§ 56,382,095

Balances at June 30, 2023 include a reclassification of $1,000,000 of unearned grant revenue and $34,906
of accrued interest payable from unrestricted net position, where it was previously reported, to restricted
for debt service and capital grants as they are direct offsets against restricted cash and cash equivalents.

Note 16 - Subsequent Events

On August 30, 2024, the District signed a general obligation promissory note to the South Carolina Water
Quality Revolving Fund Authority in an amount not to exceed $2,589,929 to defray the costs of engineering
only on the expansion of the RO Water Treatment Plant from 4 mgd to 6 mgd, the construction of a second
Aquifer Storage and Recovery well, and the replacement of the booster pump station at Leg O Mutton. The
note bears interest at a rate of 2.10% per annum. Principal and interest payments of $39,731 are expected
to begin quarterly on May 1, 2025 through February 1, 2045.

The District’s Commission approved a resolution to issue general obligation bonds in an amount not to
exceed $20,500,000 at its May 22, 2024 Commission meeting. The District anticipates closing on
$20,400,000 of Series 2024B general obligation bonds as a bank loan for the purposes of expanding of the
RO Water Treatment Plant from 4 mgd to 6 mgd, constructing a second Aquifer Storage and Recovery
well, and replacing the Leg O Mutton booster pump station, and various other water and wastewater system
improvements on November 5, 2024. Interest is anticipated to be payable on the bonds semi-annually at
3.65% per annum. Principal payments are anticipated to be due annually on May 1st of each year beginning
in 2028 through 2044.
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Schedule of the District’s South Carolina Retirement System Contributions
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 20245 - Last ten years

South Carolina Retirenient System
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 518900 § 466620 $ 424042 § 387,521 $ 370538 $ 352212 § 307,158 § 272562 § 222257 § 239,148

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 518,900 466,620 424,042 387,521 370,538 352212 307,158 272,562 222257 239,148

Contribution deficiency (excess) - - - - - - - - - -

Hilton Head No. 1 PSD's covered payroll $ 2818576 $2.680,184 $2584,048 $2514,738 $2404,535 $2444222 $2290,514 $2388802 $2037,186 $2224629

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 18.41% 17.41% 16.41% 15.41% 15.41% 14.41% 13.41% 11.41% 10.91% 10.75%

Note: For last 10 fiscal years, there should be a zero amount for contribution deficiency (excess) because all required contributions were made per South Carolina Retirement Systent’s previous

reporis.

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 - Last ten years
South Carolina Retirement System
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Measurement date 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/3072019 6/30/2018 6/3012017 6/30/2016 63072015 6/30/2014
Hikton Head No. 1 PSD's proportion of the net pension Rability 0.021017% 0.021504% 0.022032% 0.021345% 0.022686% 0.021859% 0.023369% 0.020752% 0.023400% 0.023939%
Hilton Head No. 1 PSD's proportionate share of the net pension lability $ 5081463 $ 5213073 $ 4767968 § 5454096 $ 5,180,120 S 4897854 § 5260737 § 4432597 § 4437923 § 4,121,502
Hikton Head No. 1 PSD's covered payroll $ 2680184 $ 2584048 $ 2514738 § 2404535 § 2444222 § 2,290,514 S 2388802 § 2,037,186 § 2,224,629 § 2204558
Hillon Head No. 1 PSD's proportionate share of the net pension lability
as a percentage of s covered payroll during the measurement perod 189.59381%  201.74056%  189.60101%  226.82539%  211.93329%  213.83209%  220.22491%  217.58429%  199.49048%  186.95367%)
Plan fiduciary net posttion as a percentage of the total pension Eability 58.60000% 57.10000% 60.70000% 50.70000% 54.40000% 54.10000% 53.30000% 52.90000% 57.00000% 59.90000%;
Source - South Carolina Retirement System

3 GASB 68 was implemented for fiscal year 2015 and 2014.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

Operating Revenues

FY 24 Actual to FY 24 Budget

Fiscal Year 2024

Comparison

Actual

Budget

Dollars

%

Favorable (Unfavorable)

Water Service $ 8,020,935 $ 8,222,600 $ (201,665) -2.5%
Sewer Service 6,295,468 6,292,700 2,768 0.0%
Tap In Fees - Water 159,173 187,800 (28,627) -15.2%
Connection Fees - Sewer 420,091 248,400 171,691 69.1%
Golf Course Irrigation 218,906 156,000 62,906 40.3%
Insurance recovery, net 6,000 - 6,000 100.0%
Service Fees 20,908 20,100 808 4.0%
Other Operating Revenues 29,628 38,500 (8,872) -23.0%
Total Operating Revenues 15,171,109 15,166,100 5,009 0.0%
Departmental Expenses

Payroll & Related 4,669,437 4,998,200 328,763 6.6%
Administrative Expenses 1,028,890 1,193,500 164,610 13.8%
Operations 3,284,179 3,381,100 96,921 2.9%
Maintenance 1,505,505 1,581,600 76,095 4.8%
Purchased Water 1,061,550 1,079,100 17,550 1.6%
Water Tap In Expenses 109,607 141,000 31,393 22.3%
Sewer Connection Expenses 402,999 225,600 (177,399) -78.6%
Professional Fees 126,256 177,000 50,744 28.7%
Total Departmental Expenses 12,188,423 12,777,100 588,677 4.6%
Depreciation 5,215,476 5,190,000 (25,476) -0.5%
Total Operating Expenses 17,403,899 17,967,100 563,201 3.1%
Operating income (loss) (2,232,790)  (2,801,000) 568,210 20.3%
Non-operating revenues

Property taxes-G.O. Debt Levy 1,793,252 1,515,000 278,252 18.4%
Property taxes-Operations Levy 1,305,973 1,160,000 145,973 12.6%
Rental Income 87,674 87,600 74 0.1%
Tower Lease Income 598,399 570,900 27,499 4.8%
Interest Income - Leases 32,368 32,100.00 268 0.8%
Interest Income 900,541 450,000 450,541 100.1%
Gain (Loss) of disposal of equipment 34,206 126,000 (91,794) -72.9%
Total Non-operating Revenues 4,752,413 3,941,600 810,813 20.6%
Non-operating Expenses

Interest expense 277,038 277,200 162 0.1%
Bond Defeasance Amortization 325,462 325,500 38 0.0%
Bond Issuance Costs - - - 0.0%
Total Non-operating Expenses 602,500 602,700 200 0.0%
Total Non-operating Revenues/Exp. 4,149,913 3,338,900 811,013 24.3%
Increase (decrease) in net position, before capital contributions 1,917,123 537,900 1,379,223 256.4%
Water Capacity Fee 581,400 114,000 467,400 410.0%
Sewer Capacity Fee 800,432 156,000 644,432 413.1%
Developer Contributions of Systems 863,172 50,000 813,172 1626.3%
Total Capital Contributions 2,245,004 320,000 1,925,004 601.6%
Change in net position $ 4,162,127 $ 857,900 $ 3,304,227 385.2%
Net position, beginning of the fiscal year $ 56,382,095

Net position, June 30, 2024 $ 60,544,222
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Notes to Budgetary Comparison*

Budgetary Highlights

Operating Revenues: Actual operating revenues are $15,171,109 versus budgeted operating revenues of

$15,166,100 which results in a variance of $5,009 or 0.0% over budget. The following is a summary of

material/selected variances for the Operating Revenue categories:

6

Water Service revenues are below budget by $201,665 or 2.5% which is due to lower
consumption than expected. Consumption levels were budgeted at prior year levels. Billed
water consumption for fiscal year (FY) 2024 declined 70.6 million gallons from 1,986.5
million gallons billed during FY 2023 to 1,915.9 million gallons billed during FY 2024.

The overage to budget in Sewer Connection Fee revenues is offset by a corresponding
overage in Sewer Connection Expenses. These line items vary depending on the number and
type of new sewer connections. The District continues to see new sewer connections through
Project SAFE, the Town grant program, developer payments, individual owner payments, and
its front foot assessment program.

Golf Course Irrigation revenues are higher than budgeted due to more consumption than
anticipated; this revenue is reliant on the operating practices of a few reclaimed irrigation
customers.

Total Operating Expenses: Total operating expenses are $563,201 or 3.1% under budget. The following
is a summary of material/selected variances for the Operating Expenses categories:

Payroll & Related expenses are under budget by $328,763 or 6.6% which is mostly related to
the timing of filling budgeted positions. This also includes a $112,579 year end adjustment
that was provided by the South Carolina retirement system related to the year end net pension
liability. While the District actually paid $518,900 to the retirement system in FY 2024, only
$406,321 is recorded as an expense in these statements in accordance with the GASB pension
accounting standards.

Administrative expenses are under budget by $164,610 or 13.8%. The District was not able to
find a comparably priced policy to replace the underground line insurance policy which was
discontinued by the SC Insurance Reserve Fund. The premium on that policy was around
$74,000 per year. Going forward, the District will need to consider this risk when determining
the appropriate level of operating reserves to maintain on hand. The FY 2024 budget also
included an unused allowance for asset management program fees; the District is still actively
researching the best alternative in this area and intends to select a software package in
upcoming years. Communications and bad debts expense also came in lower than anticipated.

6 In most cases, a variance of more than $100,000 or 10% constitutes a material variance for the District’s annual reports. Water
and Sewer variances are typically discussed regardless of their variances given that they are the two main drivers for the
District’s overall revenue.
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Non-Operating Revenues
revenues of $3,941,600 which

13 versus budgeted non-operating
blover budget.

o Property Taxes are over budget at June 30, 2024, due to higher assessed values than budgeted. When
the FY’24 budget was prepared, the county did not have an estimate of the anticipated F'Y’24 value
of a mill which would include the county’s five-year reassessment values. Without an estimate, the
budget utilized the prior year total assessed property value of a mill of $369.3 million with a modest

growth allowance. The actual total assessed property value of a mill with the reassessment appears
to be closer to $437 million for FY’24.

e Interest Income is $450,541 over budget in line with continued higher market interest rates. Staff
endeavors to keep all cash not needed for current operations in the SC Local Government Investment
Pool which is currently seeing rates over 5.5%. Interest was conservatively budgeted at 3.25%.

Capital Contributions: Capacity fees and developer contributions of systems are $1,925,004 over budget.
Four large scale developer capacity fee payments were received in FY 2024. Additionally, the water and
sewer system of a large-scale developer project was completed in FY 2024 and deeded over to the District.
These are not budgeted items as the timing on large scale developer projects is tenuous and anticipated
projects often fall through.

The change in net position for the period was $4,162,127 which was $3,304,227 higher than the budgeted
change in net position of $857,900. Four large developer capacity fee payments, stronger interest earnings
than budgeted, stronger property tax collections than anticipated, and savings to budget in operating
expenses offset lagging water operating revenues.
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Description Rate 6/30/2022 Addition Reduction 6/30/2023 Addition Reduction 6/30/2024 Current
Revenue Bonds - DBP

Series 2017A 2.69% 363,422 - (32,157) 331,265 - (33,021) 298,244 33,910
Series 20208 1.21% 13,720,000 - (1,215,000) 12,505,000 - (1,225,000) 11,280,000 1,245,000
Series 2020C 0.94% 2,520,000 - (830,000) 1,690,000 - (840,000) 850,000 850,000
Series 2023 4.15% - 235,000 - 235,000 - (13,149) 221,851 16,323
Total Revenue Bonds - DBP 16,603,422 235,000 (2,077,157) 14,761,265 - (2,111,170) 12,650,095 2,145,233

Notes Payable - Revenue/Other - DBP

SCJEDA - Notes Payable 0.00% 7,939 - (7,939) - - - - -
SIRF Series 2014 Revenue Bonds 1.00% 2,070,344 - (141,172) 1,929,172 - (142,550) 1,786,582 144,020

Total Notes Payable - Revenue/Other 2,078,283 - (149,111 1,929,172 - (142,590) 1,786,582 144,020
Total Revenue /Other Debt __ 18,681,705 _ 16,690,437 _ 14,436,677

General Qbligation Bonds - DBP

Series 2020 1.25% 7,295,000 - (1,385,000) 5,910,000 - (1,440,000) 4,470,000 1,245,000
Total General Obligtion Bonds - DBP 7,295,000 - (1,385,000) 5,910,000 - (1,440,000) 4,470,000 1,245,000
Yinance Purchase Liabilities Various 152,931 - (36,005) 116,926 - (36,005) 80,921 80,921

Total Long-Term Debt Liability 26,129,636 235,000 (3,647,273) 22,717,363 - (3,729,765) 18,987,598 3,615,174

Less current portion (3,647,273) (3,729,764) (3,615,174)

Total Long Term Debt $ 22,482,363 $ 18,987,599 $ 15,372,424



HILTON.E NO. 3 BL RVICEDISTRICT

Schedule of Bond & Note Principal and Interest Payments

JUNE 30, 2024
$515,000 $14,925,000 $4,170,000 $9,910,000 $235,000
For the Revenue Bond 2017 A Revenue Bond 2020 B Revenue Bond 2020C GO Bond Revenue Bond 2024 FFA BOND TOTALS
Yearending __ Dated August 21, 2017 Dated November 2, 2020 Dated November 2, 2020 Dated November 2, 2020 Dated Feb 24, 2024 Total Total
June 30, Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Total
2025 8,025 33,910 136,488 1,245,000 7,990 850,000 55,875 1,245,000 9,207 16,323 217,585 3,390,233 3,607,818
2026 7,110 34,823 121,423 2,085,000 - - 40,313 1,300,000 8,529 17,000 177,375 3,436,823 3,614,198
2027 6,174 35,759 96,194 2,105,000 - - 24,062 1,355,000 7,824 17,705 134,254 3,513,464 3,647,718
2028 5,212 36,720 70,725 2,135,000 - - 7,125 570,000 7,089 18,440 90,151 2,760,160 2,850,311
2029 4224 37,709 44,891 1,880,000 . - - - 6324 19,205 55,439 1,936,914 1,992,353
2030 3,210 38723 22,143 1,830,000 - - - - 5,527 20,003 30,880 1,888,726 1,919,606
2031 2,168 39,765 - - - - - - 4,697 20,833 6,865 60,598 67,463
2032 1,098 40,835 - - - - - - 3,832 21,697 4,930 62,532 67,462
2033 - - - - - - - - 2,932 22,598 2,932 22,598 25,530
2034 - - - - - - - - 1,994 23,535 1,994 23,535 25,529
2035 - - - . - - - - 1,017 24,512 1,017 24,512 25,529
2036 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
$ 37221 $ 298244 $491864 § 11280000 $ 7,990 $ 850000 $ 127375 $ 4470000 $§ 58972 § 221851 $ 723422 $17120,095 §17,843517
Current s (33910) $ (1,245,000) $ (850,000) $§(1,245,000) s (16323) $ (3,390233)
Noncurrent § 264334 $ $ - $ 3,225,000 $ 205528 $ 13,729,862
$2,921,430
Forthe SRF Revenue Note NOTETOTALS BOND & NOTETOTALS
Year ending Dated July 23, 2014 Total Total Total Total
June 30, Interest Prncipal Interest Principal Total Interest Principal Total
2025 17,327 144,020 17,327 144,020 161,347 234,912 3,534,253 3,769,165
2026 15,881 145,466 15,881 145,466 161,347 193,256 3,582,289 3,775,545
2027 14,421 146,926 14,421 146,926 161,347 148,675 3,660,390 3,809,065
2028 12,946 148,401 12,946 148,401 161,347 103,097 2,908,561 3,011,638
2029 11,457 149,890 11,457 149,890 161,347 66,896 2,086,804 2,153,700
2030 9,952 151,395 9,952 151,395 161,347 40,832 2,040,121 2,080,953
2031 8,433 152,914 8,433 152,914 161,347 15,298 213,512 228,810
2032 6,898 154,449 6,898 154,449 161,347 11,828 216,981 228,809
2033 5,347 156,000 5,347 156,000 161,347 8,279 178,598 186,877
2034 3,782 157,566 3,782 157,566 161,348 5,776 181,101 186,877
2035 2,200 159,147 2,200 159,147 161,347 3,217 183,659 186,876
2036 603 120,408 603 120,408 121,011 603 120,408 121,011
$ 109247 $ 1,786,582 §$109247 $ 1,786,582 $1,895829 $ 832,669 $18906,677 § 19,739,346
Curmrent $ (144,020 s 144,020 $ (3,534,253)

Noncurrent $ 1,642,562 $ 1,642,562 $15372424
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The purpose of the statistical section is to provide additional information useful in assessing a
government’s financial condition. The statistical section provides information on financial trends,
revenue capacity, debt capacity, operating information as well as demographic and economic
information.

Statistical Section Table of Contents

Pages
Financial Trends 73-76
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s
financial performance and position have changed over time
Revenue Capacity 77-82
These schedules contain information identifying the factors affecting the District’s ability to
generale revenue
Debt Capacity 83-86
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
District’s current level of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt
in the future
Demographic and Economic Information 87-88
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators showing the environment in
which the District operates
Other Operational and Capital Information 89-92

These schedules contain operational, capital, and service information to convey how the
District’s financial reports relate to its service

72



2018 2024

Operating Revenues

Water Senvice §5,727692 $6,009410 86,680,173 86,586,002 57,148,606 $7,735802 $7,746,340 pIAIYAX ST,7TT4816 $8,020,935
Sewer Service 4838019 5,056,081 5,143,168 5226965 5,408,090 579,313 5852393 6,013,685 6051117 6,295,468
Water Tap In Fees. 106,202 56,427 137423 213,517 180487 240,179 241227 214342 2399% 159173
Sewer Connection Fees 84543 109,934 219483 229355 278,737 242418 212,488 216,469 34,630 420091
Avalabiity Fees 565423 525302 506,930 491474 445,190 452,602 420,187 21219 - -
Gulf Course Irrigation 204,934 16434 284,937 175015 182316 155676 207,233 155,994 167,553 218906
Service Fees 42616 39,113 2,105 34059 38391 23015 14,662 26,118 19913 20,508
Disaster Recovery, net - - 58691 115466 3942 26,502 HRE 7,854 N 6,000
Other Operating Revenues 21264 284773 28676 53566 48281 91432 265862, 51.992 20288 29628
Total Operating Revenues $11,590723  S12285435  SI3088589  SI3I25419  SI3TH240  SI4746939  $15011222  SI4531067  SMEN03  SI5171,109
Opzrating Expenses
Payroll and Related Expenses $3,713013 $3,294,097 $3,689,699 $3,951,862 $3,889,589 $4062,153 $4203335 $3952377 54,251,569 $4,669,436
Administrative Expenses 197358 767276 817410 961,211 957919 1,006,662 1,020,574 1,026,137 1,091,603 1028890
Operations Expenses 2248966 2,308,426 2509332 2,570,764 2500471 2,608,108 2,657,074 2865270 3259419 328417
Maintenance Experses 1,101,389 1343199 1,163,384 1,450,531 1416172 1216813 1,322,787 1526461 1,409,057 1,505,505
Purchased Water 987,407 46,550 1238997 1343,588 1,387,939 892,181 899,685 1031270 1,004,551 1.061,550
Water Top In Expenses K462 115995 191,120 216,109 171,891 152,870 171,909 166,639 173,700 109,607
Sewer Connection Expenses 82,353 150,570 17472 221,6% 247232 215,867 200934 18,236 325863 402,999
Professional Fees 305,698 229387 99,701 146,084 127011 342116 203678 218,636 287303 126256
Degreciation 4,485,346 4482776 4576123 4733613 4846397 504727 5188028 5,142,783 5140534 3215476
Total Operating Expenses SI3811992  $13438276  $14,520488  SIS505458  SIS6H621  S15541497  SI5868004  SI6I60839 16943601 $17:403,898
Openating Income (Loss) (2221269)  (L12881)  (1431899)  (2470040) (1910381} (794,558) (856782)  (L629772)  (2253558)  (2.232789)
Non-Operating Revenues nses.
Property Taxes-Debt Senvice $1,391,881 $1396,680 $1,403,497 $1,41325 51,371,933 S1414091 $1.499344 $1,522,142 $1,583,535 $1,793252
Property Taxes-Operations Levy 913931 931,507 973,607 984,29 1,011,176 1,034,553 1,071,8% 1,086,204 1,155522 1305973
Rental Income 80,579 78,552 9,115 79068 9,157 79,758 8,156 83,965 86,094 81,674
Tower Leases Income 508,185 471,540 531,964 462,986 485,678 625,067 537492 511437 584,104 598,399
Interest Income - Leases - - - - - - 15992 13881 33092 32368
Interest Income 132,549 9,713 99,041 108,346 156,389 184,093 102306 109605 604314 900,541
Gain (Loss) on Disposal - 1,500 3,500 95,716 15000 - 2,500 38,540 49240 34205
Bond Issuance Costs {67.329) (119,930} - {69,609} - (42,056) {225,650) - {37,500) -
Amortization of Bond Costs (223222) (243.693) (256,428) (256428) (256428) (256428) (265,132) (325,462) (325.362) (325462)
Interest Expense (1.613384) 1230078} (1091.811) {1.030.789; £941.525) {8104 (511.229) (350625 (312317} (277.038)
Total Non-Operating Income (Loss) 81,123,190 $1,3787710 S1,742.486 51,814,509 51,921,980 $2,198031 §2,306,125 $2,754,687 $3,420622 $4.149.912
Net Income (loss) before Capital {51,098079) $225930 $310,587 {8655,130) $11,59 81403473 S149,343 SLI24915 $1,167,064 $1917,123
per Financial Statements
Cagacity Fees 631,652 585,744 565,093 563,612 878264 864,478 1,157,787 1,396,743 356,520 1,381,832
Add Depreciation 4485316 448,776 4,576,123 4733613 4946397 504,727 5,183,028 5,142,783 5,140,534 5215476
Net Pension Expense 288,870 298810 251,759 514,614 382374 560,016 613324 290,852 408,173 406,321
SCRS Retirement Contributions. (241,688) {222257) {272,562) (307,158} (352212) (367,120) (387,521) (424,042) (466,620) (518900)
Amortization 223222 243,693 247,787 256,428 256428 256,428 265132 325462 325462 325462
Bond Issuance Costs 61329 119,950 - 65,609 - 42,056 225,650 - 37,500 -
Interest Expense (Boads) 1,613384 1230078 1,100452 1,030,789 941,525 841,047 509,933 347,001 308748 273469
Assessments - Delt Senke 486,300 452,658 157,973 190,300 190,184 183409 200485 209221 222,184 237,137
Less: Property Taxes ~ Debt Service 1.391.881 1.396.680 1403497, (L431.325) (1371,933) (1414001} 14998 H) (1.522.142) 1,583,335} (1.793.252)
et Farnings Avatlable for Debt Service $5.064454 $6,020,702 85,533,715 $4957413 $5,882626 87419423 §7.722.320 $6,8%,792 85916030 ST:444,668
Debt Senvice on Revenue Bonds $3981,537 S3:H13) $3,923.462 $4008312 $1040,662 S1048243 $2,686,001 $2,440,269 $2437980 $2,:461,000
Required per Bond Covenants (120%) 120% 120% 120% 120% 120% 120% 120% 120% 120% 120%
Coverage of Debt Service by Net 127% 175% 141% 124% 146% 183% 288% 282% 243% 303%
Debt Coverage without Capacity Fees 111% 158% 127% 110% 124% 162% 244% 225% 228% 246%

7 Please note that fiscal years 2022 and onward reflect implementation of GASB 87.
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Operating Income (Loss from operations) S (2221269) §  (1,152841) $ (1431.899) $ (2470,040) $ (1910381) $ (794,558) § (856782) § (1,629,772) § (2253558) § (2,232,789)
Total Non-Operating Income (Loss) 1,123,190 1378770 1,742,486 1,814,909 1,921,980 2,198,031 2,306,125 2,754,687 3,420,622 4,149,912
Capital Contributions and Assessments 894.531 1404843 2334412 5452.120 3213568 2.5284% 1.157.787 1.891.418 482,566 2245004
Changes in net position (203,548) 1,630,773 2,644,999 4,796,990 3225167 3,931,963 2,607,130 3016333 1,649,630 4,162,127
Net position at beginning of year 33082658 32.879.110 34.509.883 37.154.881 41951871 45.177.038 49.109.001 51.716.132 54732465 56.382.095
Net position at end of year $ 32879110 § 34509883 § 37154881 § 41951871 § 45177038 § 49109001 § 51716132 § 54732465 § 56382095 § 60544222

Net Position at End of Year

70,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
30,000,000 -
20,000,000 -
10,000,000 -
o 2015 ' 2016 I 2017 l 2018 I 2019 ' 2020 ' 2021 ' 2022 ‘ 2023 I 2024
wUnrestricted M Restricted for Debt Service  ®Net Investment in Capital Assets

8 Please note that fiscal years 2022 and onward reflect implementation of GASB 87.
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201 016 v 8 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net position

Net investment in capital assets $27,588236  $28981,560 $30,631,424 $36023464 $39,248405 $41211,563 $42457,546 $42,602,561 $43,634,968 $46,323,932
Restricted for debt service 3,426,103 2,482,528 2,406,220 2425274 2,412,700 2,570,882 630,403 887,721 1,161,690 1,301,824
Unrestricted 1,864,770 3,045,794 4,117,237 3,503,133 3,515,934 5,326,557 8,578,183 11,242,183  11,585437 12918466
Net position $32,879,110 $34,509,882 $37,154,881 $41,951,871 $45177,039 $49,109002 $51,716,132 $54,732465 $56,382,095 $60,544,222
Ratio Analysis
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Liquidity (Current Ratio) 2.88 4.30 4.89 4,05 6.05 679 1097 12.65 11.48 12.08
Long-Term Debt to Equity ratio 1.59 1.31 1.22 0.90 0.74 0.59 0.51 0.41 0.34 0.25
Operating ratio 0.80 0.73 0.76 0.83 0.78 0.71 0.71 0.76 0.80 0.80
RATIO ANALYSIS
14.00
13.00
12.00 /\“\.,_,/A
11.00 /
10.00
9.00 //
800 7
7.00 ————
6.00
500 /v/A\\.,
4.00
3.00
200 F
—
100 = i — = = &
’ 2015 20’1 6 2(;1 7 20'1 8 2019 20‘20 ZOIZI 20‘22 2(;23 20‘24
s Liquility (Cumrerd Ratio) e Long-Tarm Debt to Equity ratio e Operating rtio
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Operating Revenues, |E
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Revenue Capacity
Customer Statistics at Fiscal Year-End®
Number of Water vs. Wastewater Customers at Fiscal Year-end

Percent Percent| Ratio of Customers

Year Water| Increase| Wastewater| Increase| with Both Services
2015 16,867 0.6% 15,633 1.0% 92.68%

2016 16,899 0.2% 15,758 0.8% 93.25%

2017 17,076 1.0% 15,961 1.3% 93.47%

2018 17,345 1.6% 16,258 1.9% 93.73%

2019 17,503 0.9% 16,473 1.3% 94.12%

2020 17,693 1.1% 16,693 1.3% 94.35%

2021 18,033 1.9% 17,075 2.3% 94.69%

2022 18,424 2.2% 17,566 2.9% 95.34%

2023 18,549 0.7% 17,726 0.9% 95.56%

2024 18,653 0.6% 17,863 0.8% 95.76 %

Water & Irrigation Customer Statistics at Fiscal Year-End
Water & Irrigation Customer Growth at Fiscal Year-end

Master Metered Percent

Year [ Residential Residential Commercial Total Increase
2015 10,997 4,851 2,041 17,889 0.65%
2016 11,060 4,907 2,009 17,976 0.49%
2017 11,226 4,907 2,022 18,155 1.00%
2018 11,492 4,907 2,029 18,428 1.50%
2019 11,627 4,907 2,054 18,588 0.87%
2020 11,812 4,907 2,064 18,783 1.05%
2021 12,186 4,907 2,026 19,119 1.79%
2022 12,073 5,397 2,054 19,524 2.12%
2023 12,158 5,400 2,098 19,656 0.68%
2024 12,249 5,399 2,118 19,766 0.56%

Wastewater Customer Statistics at Fiscal Year-End
Wastewater Customer Growth at Fiscal Year-end

Master Metered Percent
Year [ Residential Residential Commercial Total Increase
2015 9,305 4,851 1,477 15,633 0.95%
2016 9,431 4,907 1,420 15,758 0.80%
2017 9,588 4,907 1,466 15,961 1.29%
2018 9,882 4,907 1,469 16,258 1.86%
2019 10,097 4,907 1,469 16,473 1.32%
2020 10,311 4,907 1,475 16,693 1.34%
2021 10,699 4,907 1,469 17,075 2.29%
2022 10,739 5,351 1,476 17,566 2.88%
2023 10,859 5,354 1,513 17,726 0.91%
2024 10,976 5,353 1,534 17,863 0.77%

° These totals do not include irrigation meters.
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Billings at Fiscal Year-End (Just Water, No Irrigation Meters)

AF 1

Reported in kgals (thousands of gallons)

Just Water| Percent
Year Meters| Increase Wastewater| % Inc
2015 1,439,514 -6.3% 1,274,826 -3.5%
2016 1,475,858 2.5% 1,275,251 0.0%
2017 1,819,663 23.3% 1,573,203 23.4%
2018 1,640,939 -9.8% 1,402,469 -10.9%
2019 1,680,080 2.4% 1,474,373 5.1%
2020 1,740,042 3.6% 1,526,212 3.5%
2021 1,789,282 2.8% 1,582,591 3.7%
2022 1,786,118 -0.2% 1,595,976 0.8%
2023 1,692,614 -5.2% 1,532,388 -4.0%
2024 1,644,421 -2.8% 1,511,998 -1.3%

Billings at Fiscal Year-End (Water and Irrigation Meters)

Reported in kgals (thousands of gallons)

Water &
Irrigation| Percent
Year Meters| Increase Wastewater % Inc
2015 1,692,874 -6.3% 1,274,826 -3.5%
2016 1,724,451 1.9% 1,275,251 0.0%
2017 2,159,321 25.2% 1,573,203 23.4%
2018 1,933,031 -10.5% 1,402,469 -10.9%
2019 2,006,513 3.8% 1,474,373 51%
2020 2,068,280 3.1% 1,526,212 3.5%
2021 2,087,714 0.9% 1,582,591 3.7%
2022 2,087,003 0.0% 1,595,976 0.8%
2023 1,986,576 -4.8% 1,532,388 -4.0%
2024 1,915,867 -3.6% 1,511,998 -1.3%

78



DRAET

Water/Irrigation Customers vs. Water/Irrigation Kgal Sales
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Water and Wastewater Rate Comparisons

Water Rate Comparison

Effective Date
FY'15(1) FY'16 FY'17 FY'I8 FY'19 FY'20 FY21 FY22 FY'23 FY24

Residential [Base Charge $ 13.00/S 13.00]/$ 1400|$ 1400]$ 1550|$ 1650|$ 1650|$ 1650|$ 1650|S$ 1650
Water First 10,000 Gallons $ 140($ 140|$ 140|S 140|$ 140]|S 147| 8 14718 14718 147] 8 1.52

Next 10,001 to 20,000 gallons $ 1L7|s 17|s 17|s 1L7|s 1728 182]$ 1.82]$% 182| 8 1918 211

Next 20,001 to 30,000 gallons $ 220|$ 220]1% 220($ 220|$ 21818 227| 8 227] 8 22718 236] 8 2.54

Over 30,000 gallons $ 255|% 255|% 255|8 2558 260] 8 27918 27918 27918 298] 8 3.38
Residential [Base Charge $ 1300|$ 13.00|$ 1400|S$ 1400|$ 1550|$ 1650|S 1650 $ 1650 $ 1650 $ 1650
Irmigation  |First 10,000 Gallons Irrigation $ 1L7|s 17Mm|s 171|s$ 17|$ 172 8 1828 182 $ 182 ¢ 191 s 2.11

Next 10,001 to 20,000 gallons $ 1L71|$ 17|s 17|s 17|$ 172§ 1828 182] s 18218 1918 211

Next 20,001 to 30,000 gallons $ 220($ 220|$ 22008 220|8% 21818 2278 227|$ 227]$ 236|$ 2.54

Over 30,000 gallons $ 255|$ 255|% 255|$ 255|$ 260]$ 279]|S 27913 27918 29818 338
Commercial |Base Charge $ 1800|$ 1800|$ 1900|S 1900|$ 2050|S$ 21.50|$ 2150 $ 2150 $ 2150 $  21.50
Waterand |First 10,000 Gallons $ 169|S 169|S8 169|8 169|S 169|S 169 $ 169 $ 169] $ 1.69| $ 1.69
Imrigation | Next 10,001 to 20,000 gallons $ 19|$ 19|$ 19|$ 19|s 201|s 204|$ 204|8 20418 20618 211

Next 20,001 to 30,000 gallons $ 2518 251|$ 251|$8 251§ 2528 25218 2528 252]8 2538 2.54

Over 30,000 gallons $ 287|$ 287|$ 287|$ 287|$ 297|$ 3.07]S$ 3.0718 30718 318]8 338
(1) Effective January 1, 2015

Wastewater Rate Comparison
Effective Date
FY'15(1) FY'16 FY'17 FY'18 FY'19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

Residential |Base Charge $ 1600[$ 1600|$ 1700($ 1700|$ 17.50|$ 1850|$ 1850 $ 1850 $ 1850 $ 1850

Per 1,000 gallons with 10kgalCap | $ 200|$ 200|$ 200|$ 200|$ 200]$ 20018 20018 200]$ 20008 216
Commercial |Base Charge $ 1600|$ 1600|$ 17.00|$ 1700|$ 1750|$ 1850 S 1850 | $ 1850 $ 1850 $ 1850

Per 1,000 gallons (No Cap) $ 200(8$ 200]$ 200]S 200f$ 200|8$ 20018 200] % 20018 2.00]$ 2.16

(1) Effective January 1, 2015
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Water/Wastewater Bill History (Residential Customers Using 10 Kgals/Month)
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= Water Only mWastewater m Total Bill
Water and Sewer Installation Fees
Water meter installation fees (existing service lines) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
3/4" Meter $ 640 $ 640|$ 640| $ 640 | $ 640 | $1,020 | $1,020 | $1,020 | $1,180 | $1,180
1" Meter 850 850 850 850 850 1,280 1,280 1,280 1,500 1,500
2" Meter with meter box and backflow 2,330 2,330 | 2,330 2330] 2,330 2,720 | 2,720 2,720 | 3,440 | 3440
3" Meter with meter box and backflow (Time and Material)* T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M
Water meter installation fees (no existing service lines) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
3/4" Meter $1,020 [ $1,020 | $1,020 | $1,020 | $1,020 | $1,210 | $1,210 | $1,210 | $1,390 | $1,390
1" Meter 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,450 1,450 1,450 1,710 1,710
2" Meter with meter box and backflow T&M T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M
3" Meter with meter box and backflow (Time and Material)* T&M T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M
Sewer Installation Fees 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Sewer Connection Fee $ 100[$ 100|$ 100[$ 100|$ 100|$ 100 $ 100|$ 100|$ 100| $ 150
Sewer Installation Costs T&M T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M| T&M
* T&M equals Time and Materials
More information is available at: http/svww.hhpsd.convabout-hhpsd/customer-service/
Capacity Fees

The District requires developers to pay capacity fees in order to defray the
cost of providing expanded service to the area to be developed per
residential equivalency unit.

Capacity Fee (per unit)

Water Capacity (House) $2,400.00
Water Capacity (Mobile Home) $1,800.00
Sewer Capacity $3,040.00

* The same water and sewer capacity fees have been in effect since 2005.
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District Top Ten Water/Irrigation Customers

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2024

2024 Billed | % of Total 2024
User Name Type Revenues Billed Revenues
Hilton Head Beach & Tennis Resort $ 218497 2.72%
Cypress of Hilton Head Association |Residential Homes 170,272 2.12%
Westin Resort Resort 148,413 1.85%
Marriott Surfivatch Resort 110,144 1.37%
Hilton Head Resort/Four Seasons Resort 105,256 1.31%
Marriott Vacation Club Resort 90,431 1.13%
Fiddler's Cove Condo Complex 84,743 1.06%
Marshside Owner's Association Apartment Complex 73,486 0.92%
Spa at Port Royal Resort 68,950 0.86%
Aquatera Hilton Head Apartment Complex 65,712 0.82%
Remaining Customers 6,885,030 85.84%

$ 8,020,935 100.00%

District Top Ten Wastewater Customers
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2024

2024 Billed | % of Total 2024
User Name Type Revenues Billed Revenues
Hilton Head Beach & Tennis Resort $ 230,340 3.66%
Westin Resort Resort 135,784 2.16%
Hilton Head Resort/Four Seasons Resort 120,566 1.92%
Cypress of Hilton Head Association |Residential Homes 111,163 1.77%
Fiddler's Cove Condo Complex 95,464 1.52%
Marriott Vacation Club Resort 85,673 1.36%
Marriott Surfvatch Resort 82,406 1.31%
Marshside Owner's Association Apartment Complex 80,276 1.28%
Spa at Port Royal Resort 73,733 1.17%
Aquatera Hilton Head Apartment Complex 63,975 1.05%
Remaining Customers 5,214,087 82.82%

$ 6,295468 100.00%
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Debt Capacity
Total Outstanding Debt by Debt Type

Total
Finance Total Outstanding Average
SRF Revenue | SRF GO Notes Purchase Outstanding |Bond Premiums [ Debt Net of Debt Per
Fiscal Year| GO Bonds |Revenue Bonds Loans* Loans Payable Payable Debt / discounts Amortization | Customer
2015 9,528,162 34,677,573 2,563,810 5,015,406 133,939 - 51,918,891 44,988 51,963,879 2,905
2016 8,887,829 31,888,358 2,888,397 5,528,734 115,939 - 49,309,257 80,774 49,390,031 2,748
2017 8,222,841 28,770,617 2,755,436 5,237,548 97,939 - 45,084,381 72,133 45,156,514 2,487
2018 7,533,001 26,078,181 3,769,233 4,924,110 79,939 - 42,384,464 63,492 42,447,956 2,303
2019 6,823,102 22,811,429 3,692,024 4,603,642 61,939 - 37,992,136 54,851 38,046,987 2,047
2020 6,087,937 19,911,323 3,500,050 4,275,983 43,939 - 33,819,232 46,210 33,865,442 1,803
2021 8,630,000 18,659,736 2,210,113 - 25939 188,937 29,714,725 - 29,714,725 1,554
2022 7,295,000 16,603,422 2,070,344 - 7,939 152,931 26,129,636 - 26,129,636 1,338
2023 5,910,000 14,761,265 1,929,172 - - 116,926 22,717,363 - 22,717,363 1,156
2024 4,470,000 12,650,095 1,786,582 - - 80,921 18,987,598 - 18,987,598 961
Debt Service Coverage Analysis®
330%
303%
o,
288% 282% /
280%
43¢
230%
18396
175%
180%
o
1% 146%
130% - "
80% 1 1 1 L I 1 1 L 1 1 ]
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
e Required per Bond Covenants (120%) === Coverage of Debt Service by Net Earnings
The District’s Millage History
Debt Type 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Operations 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Debt Service 4.57 431 440 4.05 4.10 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.10 4.10
Total 7.57 731 740 7.05 7.10 7.20 7.20 7.20 7.10 7.10

10 Bond covenants require that the District maintain and collect rates and charges which together with income are reasonably
expected to yield annual net earnings equal to at least the sum of one hundred twenty percent (120%) of annual principal and
interest requirements for all revenue bonds outstanding.
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Ratio of (net) General Obligation Bonded Debt

Real Property Motor Vehicle & Other
Ratio of
General Assessed Assessed Estimated (net)
Obligation | Taxable Value at | Fstimated Appraised|Value Various| Appraised Total Estimated General
Fiscal Year | Tax Year Debt 4% & 6% Value Rates Value Appraised Values | bonded debt
2015 2014 $ 14543568] $  273,689,810| § 6,292,159456] § 37,841,050] $§ 486,066,160 $ 6,778,225,616] 0.21%
2016 2015 14,416,563 276,766,480 6,374,778,755 40,419,860 527,077,690 6,901,8564451  021%
2017 2016 13,460,389 280,372,310 6,463,470,955 46,618,080 578,551,170 7,042,022,1251  0.19%
2018 2017 12,457,111 286,061,400 6,593,162,755 47,799,978 597,464,630 7,190,627,385]  0.17%
2019 2018 11,426,744 305,078,770 7,236,129,455 47,973,493 587,625,970 7,823,755425]  0.15%
2020 2019 10,363,920 311,484,940 7,345,163 455 42,889,611 547,543,940 7,892,707,3951  0.13%
2021 2020 8,630,000 316,904,720 7.456,241,055 44,538,724 559,478,160 8,015,719,215] 0.11%
2022 2021 7,295,000 325,289,700 7,639,145,155 43,972,915 560,692,390 8,199,837,545]  0.09%
2023 2022 5,910,000 344,885,780 8,026,850,455 48,577,413 640,616,090 8,667,466,545]  0.07%
2024 2023 4,470,000 402,924,340 12,178,128,655 48,453,145 654,145,300 12,832,273,955}  0.03%
Source: Beaufort County Treasurer.
(1) The County implemented its county-wide reassessment in tax years 2018 and 2023,
General Obligation Outstanding Debt
Taxable Taxable Assessed | Total Taxable Total Average
Fis cal Assessed Value | Value of Personal |Assessed Value of |8% Debt Limit| Oufstanding | Available Debt | Percent of| Debt Per | Number of
Year Tax Year | of Real Property Property the District Value GO Debt Limit Debt Limit| Customer | Customers
2015 2014 $ 273,680.810| § 37,841,050 § 311,530,860] §  24,922469| § 14,543,568] § 10,378,900 58% 813 17,889
2016 2015 276,766,480 40,419,860 317,186,340 25,374,907 14,416,563 10,958,344 5% 802 17,976
2017 2016 280,372,310 46,618,080 326,990,390 26,159,231 13,460,389 12,698,842 51% 741 18,155
2018 2017 286,061,400 47,799,978 333,861,378 26,708,910 12,457,111 14,251,799 471% 676 18,428
2019 2018 305,078,770 47,973,493 353,052,263 28,244,181 11,426,744 16,817,437 40% 615 18,588
2020 2019 311,484,940 42,889,611 354,374,551 28,349,964 10,363,920 17,986,044 37% 552 18,783
2021 2020 316,904,720 44,538,724 361,443,444 28,915,476 8,630,000 20,285 476 30% 451 19,119
2022 2021 325,289,700 43,972,915 369,262,615 29,541,009 7,295,000 22,246,009 25% 374 19,524
2023 2022 344,885,780 48,577,413 393,463,193 31,477,055 5,910,000 25,567,055 19% 301 19,656
2024 2023 402,924,340 48,453,145 451,377,485 36,110,199 4,470,000 31,640,199 12% 226 19,766
Source: Beaufort County Treasurer's Office

The above table shows the then outstanding principal, authorized debt limit, available debt limit and other
information regarding the District’s general obligation indebtedness from FY 2013 through FY 2024.

General Obligation Debt Limit

Section 14 of Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) provides that subsequent
to November 30, 1977, the special purpose districts of the State may issue bonded indebtedness in an amount not
exceeding eight percent (8%) of the assessed value of all taxable property therein. The assessed value of all taxable
property located within the District for the year 2024, which is the last completed assessment thereof, exclusive
of properties subject to a fee in lieu of tax, is a sum of not less than $393,463,193 and thus the eight percent (8%)
debt limit of the District is not less than $31,477,055. The District presently has the following bonded
indebtedness chargeable against this limit:

Original Outstanding Balance
Originally Issued Date Amount as of June 30, 2024
Series 2020 November 2, 2020 3 9,910,000 | $ 4,470,000
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Assessed Values of Taxable Property of the District

Fiscal Year Tax Year Real Property Personal Property Total

2015 2014 $ 273,689,810 $ 37,841,050 311,530,860

2016 2015 276,766,480 40,419,860 317,186,340

2017 2016 280,372,310 46,618,080 326,990,390

2018 2017 286,061,400 47,799,978 333,861,378

2019 2018 305,078,770 47,973,493 353,052,263

2020 2019 311,484,940 42,889,611 354,374,551

2021 2020 316,904,720 44,538,724 361,443,444

2022 2021 325,289,700 43,972,915 369,262,615

2023 2022 344,885,780 48,577,413 393,463,193

2024 2023 402,924,340 48,453,145 451,377,485

Source: Beaufort County Treasurer's Office
The County implemented its county-wide reassessment in tax years 2018 and 2023
Tax Year 2023 Market Value for the District
Assessed Value | Assessment Appraised

Classification of Taxable Property Ratio Value
1. Real Property and Mobile Homes $ 196,444,100 4.00% $ 7,097,522,500
2. Real Property and Mobile Homes 206,480,240 6.00% 5,080,606,155
3. Business Personal Property 3,418,970 10.50% 31,689,240
4, Merchant’s Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1,903,620 10.50% 17,727,110
5. Motor Vehicles® 25,234,510 Various 395,261,980
6. Marine Equipment® 4,084,441 Various 68,010,060
7. Airplanes 1,595,606 4.00% 25,258,440
8. Manufacturing Property 501,660 10.50% 4,777,610
9. Public Utilities 6,824,930 10.50% 64,999,320
10. Rental Property and Signs® 4,889,408| Various 46,421,540
Total $ 451,377,485 $ 12,832,273,955

Figures do not include Merchant’s Inventory, motor carrier reimbursement or manufacturer’s depreciation reimbursement.
There is presently no property in multi-county industrial parks or property otherwise subject to fee in lieu of taxes in the

District.

Source: Beaufort County Treasurer's Office

(1) Includes personal automobiles and commercial vehicles, which are assessed at different ratios.

(2) Includes personal watercraft and commercial fishing boats, which are assessed at different ratios.

(3) Includes residential rental property and comumercial signs, which are assessed at different ratios.
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ax Collection Record for the District

Taxes Subject to Current Current % Delinquent Total %
Fiscal Year Collection Collections Collected | Taxes Collected | Total Collections | Collected
2014-2015 2,332,346 2,248,505 96.4% $ 63,889| $ 2,312,394 99.1%
2015-2016 2,359,833 2,259,929 95.8% 73,254 2,333,183 98.9%
2016-2017 2,347,367 2,253,133 96.0% 65,734 2,318,867 98.8%
2017-2018 2,436,930 2,348,903 96.4% 61,866 2,410,769 98.9%
2018-2019 2,463,280 2,377,954 96.5% 62,786 2,440,740 99.1%
2019-2020 2,497,764 2,403,056 96.2% 69,007 2,472,063 99.0%
2020-2021 2,566,458 2,469,818 96.2% 74,939 2,544,757 99.2%
2021-2022 2,645,453 2,571,183 97.2% 35,099 2,606,282 98.5%
2022-2023 2,787,199 2,721,177 97.6% 28,304 2,749,481 98.6%
2023-2024 3,191,775 3,105,585 97.3% 38,966 3,144,551 98.5%
Source: Beaufort County Treasurer's Office
Tax Year 2023 - District Largest Taxpayers
2023 2023-24
Employer Type of Business | Assessed Amounts
Value Paid
Marriot Ownership Resort Inc Real Estate $ 6,760,500 | $ 1,714,070
Palmetto Electric Cooperative Utility 4,812,440 1,098,777
SCG Hilton Head Property LL.C Real Estate 4,247,510 1,079,199
Andrick Development Real Estate 2,305,740 582,909
Barnwell Family Associates LLC Real Estate 2,191,710 552,533
Blue Water Investments Real Estate 1,791,880 455,513
Foiles William M Esquire Trustee Real Estate 1,752,910 445434
Bayshore Hilton Head LLC Real Estate 1,716,120 439,608
Hilton Head Medical Center LL.C Medical 1,455,000 388,235
MTSC Inc Real Estate 1,449,080 360,752
Source: Beaufort County Treasurer's Office.




Demographic and Economic Information
Population per Capita Income

Hilton Head Beaufort County South Carolina
Year |Population |Per Capita |Population |Per Capita |Population |Per Capita
2014 40,039 { § 47,049 171,838 | $ 32,503 4,832,482 | § 24,936
2015 40,456 46,091 175,852 32,290 4,896,146 25,951
2016 40,512 44,869 179,859 32,401 4,961,119 27,016
2017 40,500 47,454 183,149 33,877 5,024,369 25,521
2018 39,639 50,289 186,844 34,966 5,084,127 27,909
2019 39,861 51,773 188,715 36,306 5,148,714 27,986
2020 37,661 56,942 187,117 38,946 5,118,425 29,426
2021 38,076 60,988 191,748 41,070 5,190,705 30,727
2022 38,069 61,752 196,371 43,463 5,282,634 32,823
2023 38,097 66,506 198,979 48,132 5,373,555 36,072
Source: U.S. Census Bureau

Town of Hilton Head Island Top Employers 2023

Employer Employees Type of Business
SERG Group Restaurants 944 Food Services
Sea Pines Resort LLC 683 Hospitality
Coastal Restaurants and Bars 671 Food Services
Marriott Vacation Club International 560 Hospitality
Beaufort County School District 478 Educational
Hilton Head Medical Center and Clinics 457 Health Services
Greenwood Communities & Resorts (Palmetto Dunes) 394 Hospitality
Publix Super Markets Inc. 340 Grocery
Cypress of Hilton Head 315 Health Services
Omni Hilton Head Oceanfiont Resort 236 Hospitality
Total 5,078

Source: Town of Hilton Head Island 06/30/2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
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Beaufort County Labor Force and Employment

Category 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Civilian Labor Force 69,435 71,661 72,535 74,104 75,517 79,798 77,127 73,502 76,398 79,850
Employment 65,493 67,748 69,081 71,113 73,082 77,165 72,961 70,873 73,997 77,626
Unemployment 3,942 3,913 3,454 2,991 2,435 2,633 4,166 2,629 2,401 2,224
Unemployment Rate 7.9% 5.6% 5.0% 4.0% 3.4% 3.3% 5.4% 3.5% 3.1% 2.8%

Source: South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce

Unemployment Rate Comparison

Year Beaufort County | South Carolina United States
2014 7.9% 6.5% 6.2%
2015 5.6% 6.0% 5.3%
2016 5.0% 5.0% 4.9%
2017 4.0% 4.3% 4.4%
2018 3.4% 3.4% 3.9%
2019 3.3% 2.9% 3.7%
2020 5.4% 6.2% 8.1%
2021 3.5% 4.0% 5.3%
2022 3.1% 3.2% 3.6%
2023 2.8% 3.0% 3.6%
Source: South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce.
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Other Operational and Capita Informatto

Full Time Equivalent Employees by Function

Fiscal Executive Finance & Customer Operations
Year Staff Service Staff Staff Total
2015 8 9 20 37
2016 7 9 19 35
2017 6 8 22 36
2018 6 8 22 36
2019 6 8 21 35
2020 5 8 23 36
2021 5 8 24 37
2022 5 9 24 38
2023 5 9 24 38
2024 5 9 26 40
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11 Rainfall measurements were recorded at the wastewater treatment plant.
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Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years

June 30,2015 Additions Disposals Transfers June 30,2024
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,299,193 - - - $ 1,299,193
Construction in Progress 5,926,019 18,566,698 (131,904) (22,254.021) 2,106,792
Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 7,225,212 18,566,698 (131,904)  (22,254,021) 3,405,985
Capital assets being depreciated:
Waterworks system 55,813,321 3,537,201 (993,027) 7,370,683 65,728,178
Sewage disposal system 38,672,883 4244378 (1,024,079) 13,891,891 55,785,073
Buildings 4,339,091 165,028 (22,871) - 4,481,248
Sewage treatment facitities 34,711,422 2,972,709 (463,440) 638,501 37,859,192
Transportation equipment 1,017,719 1,341,085 (962,482) - 1,396,322
Operations furniture and equipment 2,080,981 661,702 (660,523) - 2,082,160
Office fumniture and equipment 748,927 151,529 (311,130) - 589,326
Sub Total 137,384,344 13,073,632 (4,437,552) 21,901,075 167,921,499
Less Accumulated depreciation (65,972,348)  (44,470,454) 4,391,645 - (106,051,157)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 71,411,996 (31,396,822) (45,907) 21,901,075 61,870,342
Year End Totals $ 78,637,208 (12,830,124) (177,811 (352,946) $§ 65,276,327

Schedule of Net Property, Plant, & Equipment (PP&E)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2018 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

PP&E $138,683,537 $146346,818 $147,901,161 $155357,839 $156261,306 $ 161,887,889 $162,767,990 $164,543,832 $166,709,011  $ 169,220,692
Accumulated Depreciatior  (65,972,348) _ (70,288,692)  (74,619,859) _ (78,115,155) _ (82,552.877) (87,488,189)  (91,731,711) _ (96,661,563) (101,642,020) (106,051,157)
Net PP&E i Service 72,711,189 76,058,126 73,281,302 77,242,684 73,708,429 74,399,700 71,036279 67,882,269 65,066,991 63,169,535
Construction in Progress 5926019 785,002 1457297 513,974 2,802,108 57,707 45310 37,206 1,049,989 2,106,792

Net PP&E $ 78637208 $ 76843128 $ 74738599 $ 77,756658 $ 76510537 $ 74457407 $ 71,081,580 $ 67919475 § 66,116980 $ 65,276,327




Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority (BJWSA)-Purchased Water Expense Summary

Walter Purchased from BJWSA Summmary (Whole Dollars)

FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
20158 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
All District Purchases from BJWSA $ 1,110,409 § 812,457 § 1,555262 S 1460476 S 1,472,872 S 981,138 S 1,030216 § 1222325 § 1,158,859 § 1,270,500
Broad Creek Purchases (109,306) (73,259) (320,129} (121,776) (82,490) (71,933) (126,719) (171,492) (105,489) (191,866),
Capitalized Purchased Water - - - - - - - - - -
Prepaid Purchased Water Expense (210,007 (195,537) (217,652) (216,031) (220,013) {234,031 (249,583) (254,67D) (238.417) (283,545)
Purchased Water Expense S 791,096 $ 543,661 S 1,017,482 S 1,116,669 S 1,170,368 S 675,174 $ 653914 S 796,156 S 814953 S 795,089
Water Purchased from BJWSA Sunmary (KGals)
FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
All Kgals Purchased from BJWSA 852,633 538,925 1,125,264 1,039,001 985,829 603,904 638,084 754,288 672,322 661,653
Reclaimed Water Adjustment - - - - - - - - - -
Broad Creek Purchases (67,224) (44,309 (251,213) (80,844) (49,207) {44,896) (70,811) (92,463) {61,000) (96,705)
Capitalized Purchased Water - - - - - - - - - -
Prepaid Purchased Water Expense (247,602) (232,782) (256,061) (251,199 (250,015) (262,899 (279,977 {279,685) (265,565) (254,025)
Purchased Water (KGals) 537,807 261,839 617,990 706,958 686,607 296,114 287,296 382,140 345,757 310,923
Total Peak Purchases 437,997 391,043 643,858 590,557 617,696 435,925 442,909 505,588 446,256 472,715
Total Off-peak Purchases' 414,636 147,882 481,406 448,444 368,133 167,979 195,175 248,700 226,066 188,938
Total Off-peak and Peak Purchases 852,633 538,925 1,125,264 1,039,001 985,829 603,904 638,084 754,288 672,322 661,653
BJWSA Rates Per Kgal Summary
FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
2015 2016 2017 2018 2015 2016 2017 2018 2023 2024
Rates Chargedby BJWSA
Peak Rate* $ 1748 1768 1788 18218 1868 1918 195]8% 197 |8 2078 226
Off Peak Rate $ 08418 08418 085]8 03863$ 088|$ 08918 09018 09118 10418 1.07
District Cost/Kgal Prior to Broad Creek
Purchases” $ 13018 1518 138]§ 14118 14918 162]$ 16118 1628 1728 192
Effective District Cost/Kgal After Broad
Creek Purchases” $ 12718 14918 141]8 13918 14818 163| 8 15918 15918 172]8 191
! Off-peak rate agreement signed on September, 2009 and the rate increases every fiscal year based on CPL

7
~ The FY 2021 peak rate did not go into cffect until January I, 2021. All other peak rates were effective the entire fiscal year.

3 Combined peak and off-peak purchases calculated as all District purchases from BJWSA divided by all Kgals purchased from BIWSA.

+ During off-peak months, the District pays the peak rate for the first 1 million gallons purchased from BIWSA and the off-peak rate for any amount purchased over one
nillion gallons. However, the District charges the Broad Creek PSD the off-peak rate for all of the water that they purchase during off-peak months. During peak months
Broad Creek PSD is charged the peak price. As such, this calculation backs out Broad Creek PSD payments to the District and the Kgals that Broad Creek purchased to

amive at the District's Effective Cost/Kgal for its own water usage.
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HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
STRATEGIC GOALS & OBJECTIVES
Adopted: November 2023

1st Qtr. Fiscal Year ‘25 Management Report:

(“New:” indicates update for 1 Qtr. Report)

1. Goal No. 1 — Water Services: Provide for all of our customers’ water supply needs with the highest

quality water possible in a cost-effective manner

1.1. Ensure water supply and quality through regular monitoring, reporting, and optimal production and
distribution system performance.

1.1 Management Tactics:

1)

2)

PSD water supply capacity is currently adequate and water quality is meeting or exceeding all current state
and federal water quality standards, and all required reporting and monitoring is in compliance.

New: We are currently conducting water quality monitoring under the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency’s Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 5 (aka “UCMR 5”). This is a national scientific
monitoring program in which the EPA periodically requires sampling for potential contaminants in order to
determine potential regulations in the future.

Substances sampled for under the UCMR are unrequlated. Their detection does not constitute a known
threat to water quality nor a water quality violation. The EPA uses the UCMR program to determine if
regulations should exist and if so, at what levels. Substances sampled for under the UCMR often never
become regulated, other times multiple rounds of UCMRs occur before a regulation is proposed. UCMR
sampling is based on laboratory detection limits, which are levels that, below which, available laboratory
analyses are unable to detect the substance.

UCMR 5 is focused on 29 different PFAS compounds as well as the metal lithium, which is found in ocean
water and combined in small amounts in rocks. Our UCMR 5 sampling includes PSD finished Reverse
Osmosis water and our four active Upper Floridan Aquifer (freshwater) wells, as well as our intertie with
Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority wholesale water.

Our UCMR 5 sampling includes four separate rounds of sampling. The first round was completed in
September. The sampling detected low levels of lithium in all four PSD Upper Floridan Aquifer freshwater
wells*. The lithium detection limit is 9 milligrams per liter (mg/I), and the wells ranged from 9.69 to 10.6
mg/I. No lithium was detected in finished RO water. No PFAS was detected in any PSD water sources.



There were low-level detections of four PFAS (out of 29 PFAS compounds sampled) at the BIWSA intertie,
two were .0043 and .003 on detection limits of .003 mg/|, and two were .0047 and .0052 on detection
limits of .004 mg/I.

*Note: Broad Creek PSD’s UCMR 5 monitoring was required to be completed last year, and it also found
lithium in all of its Upper Floridan Aquifer wells.

Our UCMR 5 monitoring will continue through June 2025.

3) We are working on multiple projects to add long-term drinking water capacity and enhance drinking water
storage and distribution. First, we received a $10-million grant from the S.C. Infrastructure Investment
Program (SCIIP), two fund two long-term water supply projects: 1.) Expansion of our Reverse Osmosis (RO)
Drinking Water Treatment Facility from 4-mgd (million gallons per day) to 6-mgd production; and 2.)
Construction of a second Aquifer Storage & Recovery (ASR) Well, which would yield 2-mgd of supply during
spring and summer. Second, we received $1 million from the Beaufort County government from its
American Rescue Plan Act allocation and are using that funding to construct a water distribution booster
station at our Leg O’Mutton site and add an emergency generator at the RO Plant.

New: RO Plant Expansion Update

e Harper Construction of Greenville, S.C., was low responsive bidder ($10.5 million) on June 18.
e Notice to Proceed: Nov. 1.
e Project completion set for October 2026.

New: RO Well #4, ASR #2 & Pipelines Update

e BRW Construction Group of Savannah was low responsive bidder ($14.9 million) on Aug. 12.
e Contract approval set for October Commission meeting.
e Project completion estimated for summer 2026.

Leg O’ Mutton Booster Station Update

e BRW Construction Group of Savannah was low responsible bidder ($1.99 million) on March 28.
e Notice to Proceed: June 26.
e Project completion set for June 2025.

4) New: The SCDOT has begun locating PSD water and sewer infrastructure in the vicinity of the U.S. 278
Corridor Project. We have had to heretofore prevent DOT barge-based geotechnical boring in the vicinity
of the subaqueous portions of the wholesale water pipeline in Mackay and Skull creeks, due to extreme
threat to the pipeline. We continue to await the S.C. DOT’s announcement of the final design and initiation
of the U.S. 278 Corridor Project, which will necessitate the relocation of our transmission pipeline buried
under the Intracoastal Waterway, as well as relocation of PSD local water/sewer mains.

5) New: The PSD Water Quality Laboratory in August was once again named a Laboratory of Excellence by the
S.C. Department of Environmental Services (DES). A news release was sent.



6) New: The PSD completed its mandatory Lead Service Line Inventory ahead of the October deadline and
submitted it to the S.C. DES. The PSD completed the inventory using a combination of building records
research and field team inspections.

We have created a “Lead in Water” web page (https://hhpsd.com/lead/) invites customers to contact us to
have their water tested, and provides other useful links on the topic.

1.2 Utilize best available technologies where economically feasible.

1.2 Management Tactics:

7) PSD supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system upgrades and enhancements are ongoing
including at the Reverse Osmosis Facility.

8) Ongoing cybersecurity programs and training are in place.
1.3 Maintain an evergreen Long Range Water Supply Plan to assure supply and quality.

1.3 Management Tactics:

9) Long range water supply planning updated in spring 2022, including future capital project options and
updated hydrogeological modeling of aquifer conditions and expectations.

1.4 Proactively emphasize efficient use of water in all activities internally and with customers, particularly
in regard to landscape irrigation.

1.4 Management Tactics:

10) New: The PSD earned a national U.S. EPA 2024 WaterSense Excellence Award for Education and Outreach!
This was the PSD’s third WaterSense Excellence Award. It was given in recognition of our outstanding
customer communications on water efficiency throughout the year as well as our collaboration with
Clemson Extension Service on sustainable landscaping education for residents. A news release was sent.

10) New: Multiple items in 1st. gtr. e-newsletters and Summer 2024 bill insert newsletter provided
information about water efficiency, including the island’s local irrigation ordinance and a new program by
U.S. EPA WaterSense to encourage water-efficient swimming pool operations.

11) New: PSD hosted and promoted a Clemson University Extension Service public workshop on the “Carolina
Yards & Neighborhoods” environmentally-sustainable, water-efficient landscape program in August.

2. Goal No. 2 — Recycled Water Services: Provide for all of the District’s wastewater collection, treatment,
and recycled water distribution services in a cost-effective manner while enhancing and protecting the
Island’s environment.

2.1. Continue to create access to the public sewer system for all properties seeking access, including the
use of external funding, and assessment programs.



2.1 Management Tactics:

12) PSD currently has more than 96% of customers connected to the sewer system, versus a national
percentage of 80% and versus BJWSA percentage of 60%.

13) Multiple programs and customer communications in place to facilitate customer conversions from septic
to sewer, including our “Connect Now” customer communications campaign, PSD long-term low interest
connection financing, Project SAFE sewer connection grants, and the Town of Hilton Head sewer connection
grant program. The Town continued to fund its sewer connection grant program in its FY '25 budget.

New: Community Foundation of the Lowcountry this quarter has informed the PSD and our partner in Project
SAFE, the Deep Well Project, that the Project SAFE fund has approximately $230,000 on hand. Given the
current pace of sewer connections that utilize SAFE, it is conceivable that Project SAFE could be nearly
exhausted at the conclusion of FY '25, as we have been averaging about $200,000 per year in SAFE connection
grants. Additionally, the Hilton Head Water Fund at the Foundation, which covers income-based water
connection grants, has approximately $36,000 on hand. We have been averaging about $45,000 a year in
Water Fund connections. The PSD’s bill roundup program, Bucks for a Better Island, generates approximately
$60,000 a year. As such, the potential exists for the SAFE/Water Fund program to face an approximately
$180,000 annual shortfall if connections using these funds continue at their current pace. The PSD and Deep
Well are interested in urging the Foundation to renew its capital campaign for SAFE; however, the Foundation
of course faces multiple community needs and demands on its donors.

14) “Connect Now” postcards are mailed to all customer accounts that could add sewer but have not yet done
so. Postcard contains info. about both grant opportunities and PSD long-term, low-interest financing.

2.2. Adhere to all regulatory standards and timely delivery of complete and accurate applications and
reports.

2.2 Management Tactics:

15) We received a “Satisfactory” rating on our annual DHEC Sanitary Survey inspection of the Recycled Water
Plant in March. Only “Satisfactory” or “Unsatisfactory” ratings are given.

2.3. Utilize best available technologies where economically feasible.

2.3 Management Tactics:

16) New: We have initiated an engineering study necessary to complete replacement of our screw pumps in
the Recycled Water Plant.

17) Our FY '25 budget includes a program to monitor ammonia and nitrate to enhance our wastewater quality
analysis and regulatory compliance program.

18) We have completed installation of a real-time monitoring system on the majority of our sewer lift stations.
The system, called Streametric, provides an array of readings related to the pump operations of the lift
stations (alarms, run times, starts/stops, motor amperage, etc.). It is a more comprehensive,



technologically advanced, and cost-effective system than our prior system. The system is critical for
effective sanitary sewer operations and to avoid sanitary sewer overflows at lift stations.

2.4 Identify and reduce odors from our collection and treatment processes.

2.4 Management Tactics:

19) Multiple odor control measures are in place, including dosing of odor-control agent and deployment of
deodorization blocks at key sewer lift stations.

20) We have implemented a new odor-reduction tactic that provides real-time monitoring and data
acquisition of odor levels that allows us to optimize our odor-control agent dosing.

3. Goal No. 3 — Environmental and Sustainability: Operate in a sustainable manner with high regard for
protecting and improving the environment.

3.1. Consider the creation of programs that inform the public proactively of new areas of environmental
concern regarding water and wastewater.

3.1 Management Tactics:

21) We continue to monitor for PFAS in our water supply and are following the national regulatory
developments related to PFAS via our trade associations, particularly the S.C. Water Quality Association.
Our most recent round of PFAS monitoring showed no detection of PFAS in any of the PSD groundwater
sources. The only detection comes at the intertie with the wholesale water provided by BIWSA.

22) Due to our non-detection of PFAS, the PSD Commission voted unanimously to opt out of multiple PFAS
class action settlements, to preserve the PSD’s right to seek legal remedies in the future should a problem
arise in our groundwater sources. The non-detection of PFAS would have resulted in the PSD receiving no
funds from the settlement since the utility would not be able to demonstrate an impact.

3.2. Introduce sustainable environmental initiatives as appropriate.

3.2 Management Tactics:

23) A key movement toward long-term sustainability of our water resources is the PSD’s effort to continue to
move away from our reliance on the freshwater Upper Floridan Aquifer and instead develop the brackish
Middle Floridan aquifer and increase our use of Aquifer Storage & Recovery.

24) Pete Nardi is serving as Past President of WateReuseSC, our state’s chapter of the national WateReuse
Association. New: In August, WateReuseSC presented draft legislation to DES that would require the
creation of recycled water regulations in our state, thereby expanding the recycled water toolbox for
South Carolina. DES currently is performing an internal legal review of the legislation. A next step will be to
identify General Assembly member(s) to introduce the legislation.



25) Our Recycled Water Plant has been re-certified as an Audubon Cooperative Sanctuary, which is a
recognition of sustainable practices at our business. We are the only wastewater treatment plant in the
United States with this designation.

3.3. Explore applying new methods (models) dealing with global climate change impact to
our specific situation.

3.3 Management Tactics:

26) Our 2022 hydrogeological modeling of the aquifer system at Hilton Head Island is a key part of the long-
term body of science related to our local groundwater. The model will help inform future science on
climate change impacts to the aquifer over time.

3.4. Identify and develop opportunities to reduce operating inputs such as power and chemicals.

3.4 Management Tactics:

27) Our RO Plant expansion project includes increasing the liquid chlorine storage capacity at the plant to a 30-
day supply.

4. Goal No. 4 — Customer Relations: Direct all activities to achieve a consistently high level of customer
satisfaction.

4.1. Respond to, resolve, and monitor customer concerns promptly while minimizing public disruptions.

4.1 Management Tactics:

28) New: FY '24 completed stats:

a. 17,700+ customer calls answered by Customer Service Representatives!
An increase of more than 2,000 calls vs. FY ’23.
89% of all calls answered within 60 seconds!
Average of 72 calls answered per day — more than nine calls per hour.
More than 4,200 customer work orders generated —approx. 12 a day.

®oo T

29) Customer Service and Field Service teams are currently adequately staffed to respond to daily customer
calls.

30) Monthly telephone hold time average is less than one minute.
31) 24-hour emergency hotline and Field Services on-call are in place.

4.2. Develop and execute programs that enhance the District’s brand equity and maintain positive
relationships between the District and its customers and the community.

4.2 Management Tactics:




32) Ongoing and extensive customer communications in place, including website, news releases, bill insert
newsletters, social media on multiple platforms, and in-person presentations to groups, including:

New (a.-.):
a. Pete Nardi appeared on WHHI-TV’s “Talk of the Town” in July to promote the August 15t
“Carolina Yards” customer workshop and water efficiency in the summer months.
b. The “Carolina Yards” workshop, led by Clemson Extension Service staff, was attended by approx.
30 people.
c. Jerry Cutrer and Pete Nardi gave a presentation on the Commission and PSD resources and
services to more than 60 people at The Cypress on Aug. 21.
d. Summer 2024 bill insert newsletter mailed to all customer accounts.
e. Pete Nardi interviewed by Island Packet newspaper for a story about PFAS as it relates to local
water sources.
f. News release sent in August on PSD Water Quality Laboratory earning “Laboratory of Excellence”
recognition from S.C. DES.
g. PSD hosted students from Heritage Academy on Sept. 17 to tour the Recycled Water Plant and
learn about PSD water resources.
h. Members of the HHI-Bluffton Leadership Class of 2024-25 toured the Recycled Water Plant and
interviewed Pete Nardi on leadership on Oct. 2 as part of their required Community Enrichment
Activities.
i. PSD earned 2024 EPA WaterSense Excellence Award for Education and Outreach. A news release
was sent.
j. Pete Nardi spoke to the HHI-Bluffton Leadership Class of 2024-25 about local water resources on
Oct. 9 as part of their annual Government Day.

33) New: PSD Commission Candidate filing concluded Aug. 15 with Stuart Bell and Steven A. Robinson, Sr. filing
in Dist. 2; Patricia Flynn Soltys filing in Dist. 3; Jerry Cutrer filing in Dist. 4; and Andrew Paterno filing in Dist.
6. The election will take place Tuesday, Nov. 5.

34) PSD staff continue to be involved in array of industry-related volunteer activities that both enhance the
PSD’s reputation and provide knowledge transfer to/from our utility, including:
New:
a. 10 new Operator licenses have been earned so far in FY ’25.
b. Training and conferences attended include: Certified Government Finance Officer; S.C. Assoc. of
CPAs; WEFTEC ’24; WaterSmart Innovations '24; WEASC Sea Island District; E-One Low-Pressure
Sewer.

4.3. Inspire every employee to make customer service an integral part of his or her job performance.

4.3 Management Tactics:

35) A key tactic of this objective is achieved via the PSD hiring process, which places an emphasis on customer
service aptitude and experience. Many current PSD team members have joined us from customer-facing
roles in the local hospitality, health care, and residential and commercial maintenance industries.

36) Employee Recognition Program in place to recognize team members via customer, coworker, and
supervisor input. Employee Recognition Program recognizes team members quarterly based on customer
and co-worker feedback. New: Nine team members received Employee Recognition during the 1%t gtr.:



Andre Swinton, Anthony Pascetti, Arthur Washington, Doug Nice, J.P. Sarricolea, Jody French, Kiefer Clear,
Shani Wittingham, and Shaun Chisolm.

4.4. Research and evaluate new customer-focused areas of interest and value-added services utilizing
best available technologies where economically feasible.

4.4 Management Tactics:

37) New: We have created a new water distribution system pressure monitoring program on our Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition system. The program allows us to view pressure in real time at strategic
locations throughout the distribution system. Congrats to SCADA Supervisor Dave Disney for this
achievement!

4.5. Review and/or develop policies detailing positions on various customer service issues,
such as water leaks, remediation of water issues, etc.

4.5 Management Tactics:

38) New: Staff drafted and the Commission adopted in September an updated Drought Management Plan and
Drought Response Regulation, using current guidance from the S.C. Climatology Office. This was the first
update of the plan and regulation since 2003.

39) The FY ’25 budget process resulted in implementation of revised sewer connection and backflow
prevention inspection fees to reflect current costs incurred by the PSD.

4.6. Celebrate District and Staff accomplishments.

4.6 Management Tactics:

40) News releases, bill insert announcements, and social media posts sent on: Water Quality Laboratory once
again being recognized as a Laboratory of Excellence as part of its annual certification by the S.C. DHEC;
PSD earning its third U.S. EPA WaterSense Excellence Award for Education and Outreach.

41) PSD partnered with Community Foundation of the Lowcountry to create a scholarship campaign in
recognition of Customer Service Supervisor Vermell Scott, who is retiring in 2025.

5. Goal No. 5 - Financial Responsibility: Conduct all District activity in a fiscally responsible manner.

5.1. Ensure fair, adequate, sufficient, and equitable rates, fees and charges through cost-of-service rate
methodology.

5.1 Management Tactics:

42) Working with Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority on a revised wholesale water agreement that
would have significant, beneficial impacts for all parties going forward.



New: Pete Nardi and Verna Arnette of BJWSA are planning to select a third-party rate consultant to
recommend an equitable wholesale rate agreement for the two utilities, with the goal of completing a new
agreement in FY '25. Broad Creek PSD has opted not to participate in the process.

43) FY 25 rate adjustments were based on cost-of-service analysis.

5.2. Plan and use debt prudently.

5.2 Management Tactics:

44) Beaufort County Council gave unanimous authorization for the PSD to issue up to $23 million in general
obligation debt related to the local match for our SCIIP projects as well as potential capital project needs.

45) The S.C. Drinking Water State Revolving Fund has approved our use of SRF funds for $2.5 million in our
engineering costs related to our SCIIP/ARPA projects.

46) The PSD had $14.4 million in projects for our Recycled Water Plant (WWTP) placed on the S.C. Clean Water
(wastewater) State Revolving Fund (SRF) FY 25 Intended Use Plan. This is the first step necessary to be
approved for a low-interest loan through the SRF. The projects include replacement of screw pumps,
construction of a new influent screen as backup, warehouse and garage replacement, and onsite sodium
hypochlorite generation system. Our projects ranked 12th out of 22 utilities/municipalities placed on the
list, which totals approximately $520 million in estimated project costs. Attached is the full FY ’25 Intended
Use Plan.

47) New: The PSD obtained a 20-year, $20.4-million tax exempt non-bank qualified general obligation bond
(Series 2024B) at 3.65% interest from TD Bank to cover the local commitment necessary for our SCIIP
projects. The bond, which can be prepaid subject to a 2% prepayment penalty as early as May 2027, is set
for closing on Nov. 5.

5.3. Identify and implement opportunities to reduce operating costs, without sacrificing high-quality
products and services.

5.3 Management Tactics:

48) We actively monitor non-revenue water to reduce water production costs. Non-revenue water is currently
in an acceptable 10-15% range.

49) Our FY '25 budget includes a program to monitor nitrate and ammonia in our WWTP aeration basins to aid
in our adjustment of our aeration to save energy costs.

5.4. ldentify and develop opportunities that enhance the District’s revenue and improve its cash flow.

5.4 Management Tactics:

50) We are carrying out our ongoing meter changeout program, which is a key tactic to ensure that the PSD is
capturing consumption and generating accurate bills.



51) We are lowering our bad debt expense via pro-active communications with delinquent payers.

52) We are reducing the number of and dollar amount of leak adjustments by proactively communicating with
customers.

53) We are participating in the S.C. Local Government Investing Pool, which is an investment mechanism
authorized by the General Assembly to provide local governments an opportunity to acquire maximum

returns on investments by pooling available funds with funds from other political subdivisions.

5.5. Review internal controls and policies regularly to ensure security of District assets and the integrity of
District reports. Conform to the state and federal mandates regarding annual audits.

5.5 Management Tactics:

54) Appropriate internal controls are in place and routinely reviewed.

5.6. Monitor and report on operating ratios, goals, and benchmarks to maintain/improve performance and
maintain a high credit rating.

5.6 Management Tactics:

55) Quarterly financial reporting provides ratios/benchmarks update.

56) PSD earned 14™-straight GFOA award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for our FY ‘23 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report.

5.7. Develop and manage business and operational plans and prepare budgets that support those plans.

5.7 Management Tactics:

57) Our FY 25 budget included consumption rate increases in the upper tiers to send a price signal to promote
water efficiency among customers.

58) Asset management planning is informing annual Operating & Maintenance and Capital Improvement
Program budgets.

6. Goal No. 6 — Organizational Excellence and Leadership: Achieve organizational excellence and
leadership.

6.1. Promote, monitor, and support safety in all workplaces and activities.

6.1 Management Tactics:

59) Routine safety training is in place. Longtime PSD safety instructor Bob “Safety Bob” Stinnett leads monthly
courses and supervisors provide regular in-field discussions and “tailgate talks.”

60) CPR/AED training provided for all PSD staff free of charge from Hilton Head Fire Rescue.
10



61) New: Active shooter response training led by former law enforcement officers is set for October.

62) The Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office conducted a free assessment of PSD Oak Park Drive campus physical
security. New: Several security-related improvements have been implemented as a result of Sheriff’s
Office recommendations.

63) PSD Workers’ Compensation coverage provided by the S.C. State Accident Fund, which continues to
provide premium based on PSD incident history. We have had one (non-OSHA reportable) workplace injury
in FY 25 to date.

6.2. Attract and retain a professional, diverse, motivated, customer-oriented staff, at a level consistent
with meeting the District’s goals, while considering novel approaches to recruitment.

6.2 Management Tactics:

64) Competitive compensation and benefits packages are funded in the FY ‘24 budget and included in the draft
FY 25 budget.

65) PSD recruits in a variety of formats that include diversity-focused recruitment websites/listings.

66) Word-of-mouth and recommendations from existing team members continue to provide a key resource
for recruitment, particularly at the local level.

67) We participate in potential recruitment with a variety of partners, including our local schools and trade
associations. We utilize word-of-mouth, social media, and traditional media in our recruitment advertising.

68) We have signed up as a participating utility in the S.C. Rural Water Association’s brand new Pre-
Apprenticeship Program, wherein our costs of adding an intern who is still in high school may be
subsidized by the association and wherein the association may match interns with us.

69) We have signed up to participate in a new Workforce Collaborative effort by the S.C. AWWA/WEASC. The
program is being modeled off Baywork program in San Francisco. The member utilities will pool resources
(training, recruitment, referrals, etc.) to create a sustainable water/wastewater workforce for the state of
South Carolina.

70) Multiple training programs and opportunities are in place utilizing trade associations, in-house resources,
and independent study. New: Training examples this FY include: Biological Wastewater Treatment, Water
Treatment, E-One Low-Pressure Sewer Pumps, Effectively Driving Change, and Email Habits and Non-
Verbal Communication Skills, Financial Planning and Budgeting, Wastewater Collections.

71) New: S.C. Labor Licensing and Regulation operator licenses earned this fiscal year: “D” Water Distribution,
“A” Wastewater Collections,” “C” Wastewater Collections, “C” Water Treatment, “D” Water Treatment,
“B” Biological Wastewater, “C” Biological Wastewater (2), “D” Biological Wastewater (2).

72) The PSD should continue to add staff as necessary to work toward a generally accepted water/wastewater
sector goal of a 400-to-1 customer-to-staff ratio. Current ratio is approximately 638-to-1.

11



6.3. Define and implement organizational succession planning.

6.3 Management Tactics:

73) Organizational structure, as well as training and educational opportunities, are in place to support
departmental succession as needed.

6.4. Provide educational opportunities for Commissioners on board governance and the PSD’s operations.

6.4 Management Tactic:

74) Clerk to Commission Connie Whitehead developed a hard-copy Commissioner Orientation Manual and it
has been provided to the Commission.

7. Goal No. 7 — Asset Management: Acquire, maintain, protect, and secure the District’s property,
databases, plant and equipment assets (investment in the future).

7.1. Maintain and execute a system preventative maintenance program that minimizes the number,
severity, and duration of loss of service incidents.

7.1 Management Tactics:

75) Water and wastewater systems’ preventative maintenance program is in place and utilizing Geographic
Information Systems, particularly in the area of sewer lift station maintenance.

76) Appropriate staff level is a key tactic to minimize the number, severity, and duration of loss of service
incidents, particularly due to a small amount of available contractors to assist in such situations.

77) The adopted FY ‘25 budget supports a staff level appropriate to meet current system needs and help
prepare for continued growth in the PSD customer base.

7.2. Prepare an asset inventory and 5-year replacement plans for the water/wastewater systems.

7.2 Management Tactics:

78) PSD asset inventory is up to date and serves as basis of S.C. Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF) policies covering
utility assets. “Self-insurance” tactic (days cash on hand) review among staff and the Commission was part
of the FY ’25 budget process and will be an ongoing consideration.

79) Replacements/enhancements funded in FY ‘25 Capital Improvement Plan.
80) PSD Capital Improvement Plan is updated annually and prepared on a 5-year basis. The adopted FY '25

budget includes a 5-year replacement plan and supports an appropriate annual capital improvement
program.
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7.3. Maintain a current comprehensive security infrastructure/disaster preparedness and recovery plan.

7.3 Management Tactics:

81) Emergency Response Plan is up to date and certified to U.S. EPA.

82) PSD has a key seat at the table for all Beaufort County and Town of Hilton Head Island multi-agency
emergency planning activities. Our critical assets are listed for priority attention by the Town, County, and
Palmetto Electric.

7.4. Exercise oversight over new construction projects to ensure construction complies with District
standards and appropriate documentation is provided. In addition, ensure that new construction is

compatible with the existing system and service can be extended to nearby properties.

7.4 Management Tactics:

83) Our System Specifications for development have been updated and are in use. The specifications provide
the PSD’s standard requirements for utility infrastructure in order to assist developers in planning and
construction.

84) Internal and external project management is in place on developer and PSD projects.

7.5. Maintain adequate and comprehensive insurance coverage of District assets.

7.5 Management Tactics:

85) PSD is insured by the State of South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF) at adequate levels. We annually
review our insured assets and coverage and make modifications thereto.

86) Cybersecurity insurance has been added.

7.6. Maintain and protect confidential information through technology systems to ensure integrity of
operations and information security.

7.6 Management Tactics:

87) Cybersecurity systems are in place on all business and operational systems.
88) Cybersecurity training is being implemented for all staff members.
7.7. Maintain physical security of property and equipment.

7.7 Management Tactics:

89) Extensive camera surveillance of PSD facilities is in place.

90) Alarm systems in place on key PSD facilities.
13



91) New: Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office performed free assessment of PSD Oak Park Drive campus physical
security and PSD implemented multiple security enhancements based on Sheriff’s Office review.

92) Security in place for field assets.
7.8. Utilize best available technologies were economically feasible.

7.8 Management Tactics:

93) New: Detailed asset inventory and naming system created for Recycled Water Plan Assets. Reverse
Osmosis assets are next up.

94) Detailed asset inventories and naming systems underway to plug into Computerized Maintenance
Management Systems (CMMS) when selected.

95) Advanced Metering Infrastructure in place.

96) Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system enhancements are ongoing.

97) Geographic Information System enhancements are ongoing and utilizing field- and desktop-based
updating.

98) Computerized water distribution model update completed.

8. Goal No. 8 — External Relations: Develop, expand and leverage the District’s positive relationships with
external organizations, utilities and governments.

8.1. Develop and expand cooperative and mutually beneficial relationships with the Town of Hilton Head,
county, state, and federal elected representatives, local and state public service districts, public

agencies and associations, the media and communities within the District.

8.1 Management Tactics:

99) Town staff assisted the PSD in response to S.C. DOT plans for barge-based geotechnical boring in vicinity
of PSD subaqueous drinking water pipeline in Mackay and Skull creeks.

100) Hilton Head Town Council voted in 2022 in support of working with the PSD on development of our
second Aquifer Storage & Recovery well on the Town-owned Ashmore Tract, as well as the expansion of
our Reverse Osmosis Drinking Water Treatment Facility, which involves the Town-owned Old Welcome
Center site and Jenkins Island Tract. Town staff and Town Council have been very supportive and helpful in
addressing our need for easements on Town-owned property to complete our SCIIP projects. Town Council
approved the easements at its Oct. 17 meeting. New: Town Council unanimously approved during this
quarter all necessary easements for PSD SCIIP projects.

8.2. Monitor and evaluate the impacts of federal, state and local legislation and regulations that impact
the District’s current and future operations.

8.2 Management Tactics:

101) PSD General Manager Pete Nardi has helped launch the new S.C. Chapter of WateReuse Association to
influence reuse water regulations/legislation.
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102) We are monitoring legislation via our involvement in S.C. Water Utility Council and S.C. Water Quality
Association.
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To:

HiltonHead

PSD

Catwrala”
>

Hilton Head PSD Commission

From: Pete Nardi, General Manager

Re:

PSD Updates

October 16, 2024

Dear Commissioners, please see below the following updates:

We are experiencing demand of approx. 6 million gallons a day (mgd), which is normal for this time of
year and prevailing weather conditions. We plan to begin recharging the ASR well by the end of
October.
BJWSA has informed us that the FY 25 off-peak rate will be increased 3% to $1.10 per 1,000 gallons.
The off-peak rate will be in effect from October 1 to February 28, 2025. It may be extended through
March 2025 based on BJWSA demand.
The PSD and BJWSA are moving forward in our efforts to draft a new wholesale rate agreement. We
have selected a rate consultant to both identify an equitable rate structure and draft a revised
agreement. We are aiming for completion of a draft in early 2025. Broad Creek PSD has declined to
participate.
The PSD is applying for a $1.5-million grant from the S.C. Rural Infrastructure Authority (RIA) to assist in
the replacement of our screw pumps in the Recycled Water Plant. We anticipate the RIA’s decision
near the end of the calendar year.
S.C. Infrastructure Investment Program (SCIIP) Projects Update:
o RO Plant Expansion
= Contractor has been given notice to proceed.
o RO Well #4, ASR Well #2, and Transmission Mains
= Contract approval on October Commission meeting agenda.
= All permits and easements in place.
o Leg O’Mutton Water Booster Station
= Project is underway.
o Please see attached to this monthly report a high-level summary sheet on the SCIIP projects, for
Commission reference.
PSD hosted a group of residents from The Cypress on a tour of our Recycled Water Plant and RO Plant
on Oct. 17.
The entire PSD team this month engaged in Asset Management training sessions with Tacoma Zach of
MentorAPM, a leading asset management/computerized maintenance management system provider.
The sessions focused on the benefits of reliability-centered maintenance for product quality,
sustainability, and safety. A big thanks to PSD Asset Management Specialist Hal Hylton for arranging
this training.
| attended the 2024 AWWA WaterSmart Innovations Conference Sept. 23-27, where | moderated
multiple technical sessions as an AWWA Trustee, including “A New Paradigm for Water Use”



(presenters from UT, CA, and AZ); “Public Education & Outreach for Outdoor Water Use” (presenters
from CA); and “Engagement in Landscape” (presenters from TX, NM, and UT).

e The PSD earned the 2024 U.S. EPA WaterSense Excellence in Education & Outreach Award, which was
presented at WaterSmart Innovations. The award was given in recognition of our ongoing customer
communications about water efficiency and sustainable landscaping, including our partnership with
Clemson Extension. We were among 22 organizations/businesses to receive the award, including the
City of Tuscon, Jacksonville’s power/water utility, Beazer Homes USA, the Alliance for Water Efficiency,
Arlington Water Utilities, Oklahoma City, and others. This was our third WaterSense Excellence Award.
A news release is attached. Photo below:

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

All my best,

2L

Pete Nardi
General Manager
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HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT

www.hhpsd.com

Contact: Pete Nardi
Hilton Head PSD
(843) 681-0525
pnardi@hhpsd.com

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Hilton Head PSD earns EPA WaterSense Excellence Award

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, S.C. (September 30, 2024) — Hilton Head Public Service
District (PSD) has earned the 2024 Excellence in Education and Outreach Award from
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s WaterSense program. The PSD earned the
award for its efforts to inform and educate customers about water efficiency and
environmental sustainability programs. This is the PSD’s third EPA WaterSense
Excellence Award.

“With a continuous stream of water conservation messaging, Hilton Head PSD earned its
third WaterSense Award for Excellence in Education and Outreach,” the EPA said in a
statement. “To reach a larger audience, Hilton Head PSD partners with the Clemson
University Extension Service to provide education about responsible lawn care and
landscaping through social media, newsletters, and their website at www.hhpsd.com.”

The PSD promotes a variety of WaterSense outreach campaigns, including encouraging
customers to take the I'm for Water Pledge at the beginning of the year; helping
homeowners identify leaks during Fix a Leak Week; and getting those with irrigation
systems to conduct a Sprinkler Spruce-Up. The PSD suggests improvements to Hilton
Head’s many swimming pools by sharing WaterSense’s pool efficiency resources in the
summer, and it encourages customers to look for the WaterSense label on fixtures at the
end of the year through its Tis the Season for Savings campaign.

“Congratulations to our customers, who truly care for our most precious natural resource
— water,” said PSD General Manager Pete Nardi. “Earning this national recognition from
the EPA is a demonstration of the importance that Hilton Head Island places on water
resource stewardship and our delicate island environment.”

The PSD actively promotes Clemson University Cooperative Extension’s “Carolina
Yards” program (www.clemson.edu/extension/carolinayards), which teaches sustainable
landscape management practices. It also informs customers about the local irrigation and
rain-sensor ordinance on Hilton Head Island that restricts irrigation to no more than two
days a week at all times and requires working rain sensors on all irrigation systems.
WaterSense campaigns such as Fix a Leak Week and Shower Better are highlighted in
PSD communications. The PSD uses communication tools such as its e-newsletter, The




Liquid Letter, social media, and bill-insert newsletters to inform and educate customers,
among other outreach efforts. The PSD is assisted in its promotional outreach by Bragg
Media Marketing and its founder, Heather Bragg.

~-END--
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